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APR Energy powers the progress of
the communities we serve by providing
cost-efficient reliable electricity, on a
fast-track basis, anywhere in the world.

We leverage state-of-the art technology
and industry-leading expertise to
provide utility and industrial customers
with fuel-efficient turnkey plants that are
rapidly deployed, customisable, and
scalable,

Cautionary Statement

This announcement (in particular the Chairman’s Statement and the Chiel Executive Officer's Statement) has been prepared salely
to provide additional information to shareholders to assess the Company's strategies and overall performance. Certain statements
in this announcement constitute or may constitute forward-looking statements, Any slatement in this announcement that is not a
statement of historical fact including. without limitation, those regarding the Company’s future expectations, operations, financial
performance, financial condition, and business is or may be a forward-looking statement. Such forward-looking statements are subject
to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materialty from those projected or implied in any forward-looking
statement. These risks and uncertainties inciude, among other factors, changing economic, financial, business or cther market
conditions. These and other factors could adversefy affect the outcome and financial effects of the plans and events described in
this announcement. As a resuft, whilst they are made in good faith based on information available up o the time of their approval of
this announcement, you are cautioned not {o place any reliance on such forward-iooking statements. The forwald-loaking statements
reflect knowledge and information available at the date of this announcement and the Company undertakes no obligation to update
its view of such risks and unceriainties or (o update the forward-looking statements contained herein. Nothing in this announcement
should be construed as a profit forecast.




Highlights

e Record new contract wins In 2013 totaling 740MW and 298MW of extensions reflecting 90% renewal rate

« Full year revenues up 16% to $308 million, Adjusted EBITDA up 15% to $181 mulion

s Adjusted profit ior the year of $48 million, Adjusted basic EPS of $0 60 in ine with expectations

= Power generation capacity increased 58% during the year to 2,074MW

o High fleet utilisation rate of 81% at year end, Average utihsation of 74% across the year

s« Completion of the GE Power Rental Business acquisition

e Strong start to 2014 with extension of 200MW project in Libya and 82MW new contract in Myanmar

o New contract announced today with globat mining customer for 60MW turbine plant in South Pacific

o Libyan customer up to date with all paymenis, $3100 million of cash received to date in respect of contract

e Full Year dwvidend mantained at 10 pence per share

Reported Reported Adjusted’ Ad)justed’ Adjusted’
$ miflion unless othervise stated 2013 2012 2013 2012 Change
Revenue 3083 2657 308 3 2657 16%
Operating profit 690 92 778 672 16%
Profit/{lcss) before taxation 275 49 560 B33 (12%)
Profit/{loss) for the year 198 (149} 48 3 533 (9%)
Basic earnings per share (3) $024 (0 19) $0 60 30 68 (12%)
Adjusted EBITDA - - 1812 1570 5%
Adjusted EBITDAmargin (36) - - 55% 59%

! The Group uses adjusted financial information In managing the business and evaluating the Group s underlying perfarmance The Group adjusls for certain
tems including amartisation of intangibles Founder secunbies revaluation movements and acquisiion related costs A reconciiation to therr statutory
equ:valents 1s available in the Financial Beview on page 34
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Qverview

APR Energy at a glance

APR Energy 1s a global

Sennng both developed and developing markets APR Energy sells electnicity and generation
capacity to utiities, countries and industiies that have criical power deficits or that reguire

|eader n rap|d|y dellvered dedicated, disinbuted, or seasonal generation solutions

large-scale power
solutitons and, following
our acquisition of the GE
Power Rental Business
and our GE strategic
alliance, we are the
world’s feading provider
of fast-track mobile
turbine power

Fast-track power

APR Energy delivers power fast

when and where it 15 needed We
combine highly mokbile technology with
proprietary medular plant design and
advanced engineenng, logistics, and
nstallation capabilities to deploy, nstall
and commission a large-scale power
plant within days or weeks

Global reach

With a presence n over 25 countries

a network of regonal hubs and
commercial offices a fleet capacity
exceeding two gigawalis (GW), and
attendant supplier relationships i all cur
key markets, APR Energy stands ready
te respond quickly to urgent electncity
needs wherever they may be around
the globe

Fleet capacity* (MW)

2,074

*Defined in the glossary on page 133
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APR Energy installs operates,

and mantaing its own plants and
equipmeni Including site preparation
and integration with surrounding
infrastructure Customers therefore, do
not worry about project management,
plant operations, or upfront funding

or financing, typically paying only for
electcity generation and capacity
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APR Energy s industry-leading logistical,
project management and engineenng
expertise enables us to mobitise
large-scale power plants quickly

and efficiently Our fast-track highly
developed processes Integrate across
all logistics, planning engineering
nstallakon legal, and commercial
teams to ensure searmiess and rapid
execution

Contracted utilisation* (%)

2012 2013
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Through our use of ighly mobite, turnkey power plants, APR Energy delivers, waithin weeks
large blocks of power that can run entire ciies  The rehable power we provide helps foster
economic growth, socio-political stabilty, and an overall improved guality of Iife for the

communiies we serve

Advanced, mobile

technology

APR Energy offers the newest pawer
generation fleet In the industry providing
customers with the latest acvancements
in fuel efficiency and emissions controls
QOur fleet features proven mobile gas
turtaine technology from GE, as well as
diesel and natural gas reciprocaling-
engine power modules from Caterpiltar

Proven track record

APR Energy has installed over 2 5GW
of power capacity across more than 25
countries around the globe pawenng
milions of homes and keeping
economies growing Our high rate of
contract renewals IS a testarment to hegh
levels of customer satisfaction and the
value of the service we provide

Technology mix

Gas

Power Modules Mobile
5% Turbines

56%
Diesel
Power
Modules
39% —
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Qur solutions are hrghly customisable
to accommodate each customer's
unique needs and can scale to over
400MW Installed on either an intenm of
semt-permanent basis APR Energy's &
solutions can deliver the power capacity z
equivalent to a traditional power plant 3
and integrate seamlessly into existing =
infrastructure &
=
@
Q
APR Energy partners with the iocal %
cammunibes in which we cperate -
to bhuild postive relabonships and ]
contribute to their overall well-bemg g
We hire a large number of our plant
employees locally and, thuough owr
community development programme,
we support local infrastructure,
education healthcare and disaster relief g
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Ovenview

Our global reach

A global footprint that
spans over 25 countries

APR Energy has installed over 2 5GW of
capacity across more than 25 countries
and s able to respond quickly to urgent
electricity needs wherever they may anse
around the world

APR Energy s international network of

regional hubs and offices allows us

to leverage proximity strong suppher

relationships, and efficient logisthics *
to provide world-class service and a g
tmely response Al the same time, our
commitment to managing the business
and assets on a homogenous and globat
basis means that each lacal APR Energy
regional hub has access to deep vertically
integrated channels of customer support

Amernicas
485MW*
29%

of APR Energy
cortracted
Being close te our customers 1s one of APR capaciy
Energy's key competitive advantages It

allows us to respond quickly to the needs

of our clients and new opportunities As

a global business we are able to use our

resources strategically by moving stafi and

eguipment around the world to wherever

our customers need them

Americas

e Dilapidated infrastructure and
transmission ine bottlenecks

o Power demand consistently
outstripping GDP growth

e Lack of power gnd integration
ameng countries

e High vulnerability to geophysical and
hydrological events

o Rich mineral reserves and resouices
attracting investment

4 | APR Energy | Annual Report 2013
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Afnca Middle East Asia Pacific

e Increasing pepulation, urbanisation, o Hapid population and economic e Tight reserve margins and low utility

and standard of iving driving
demand growth

Hydro-dominant systems with
Increasing sensitvity to chimatic
changes

Well-endowed with oil and gas
resources

Damaged and destroyed
infrastructute due o conflicts and
pohical strife

Underdeveloped power transmission
ard distribution infrastructure

growth heightening electricity
demand

Increasing need to retire ageing,
nefficient infrastruciure

Uninterrupted power supply
requirement durning peak summer
months

Accelerated investment and
rebuilding in the aftermath of the
Arab Spring

Extreme weather with summer
peaking

cash reserves for public sector
growth

QOutdated equipment running at
partial capacity

Liberalisation of power markets and
regulatary framework

Awareness and acceptance of
advanced technologies for power
generation

History of highest natural
catastrophe occurrences and
upward trend
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Chairman’s Statement

‘ Mike Fairey, Charman

It 15 & pleasure ta report on a year of
transformational change and significant
achievement APR Energy 1s a growth
business operating 1N an attractive and
growing market The value our customers
place onthe large-scale rapidly delvered
power that we provide 1s reflected in the
Group's successiul new contract wins and
extensions dunng the year

Our mobile turbine technology continues
1o be key n winning new customers The
fow emission dual-fuel turbines offer

quick istallation, greater reliabiity and
extended mantenance intervals, providing
maximum operating flexbity The turbines’
abisty to fun on diesel or natural gas also
makes thern available for a broad range of
apphcatiens throughout the world

The demand for our power solutions across
cur portfolic of technotogies and geographic
regions remains strong This, coupied with
the structural dynarmics of the fast-track
power market, bodes well for the Group s
conbnued growth

Dunng 2013 there were two excellent
examples that illustrate how we are
benefitting from the rapidly growing global
market for large-scale power solutions

o We successfully installed and
commissioned our 450MW project
in Libya prowding power to over a
mithon people This is the largest single
contract in the fast-track power incustry
- a tremendous achievement that was
successfully executed across multiple
sites, notwithstanding the challenging
operatng environment

o Similarly we commissioned and further
extended our contract in Uruguay to
300MW Featuring mobile gas turbines,
our plants are now a cntical pan of the
countty s power generation infrastructure

With a diverse pipeline of opportunities an
expenenced management team, a capable
workforce and a focused financial discipline,
the Board believes that the Group 15 well

placed to continue to fulfil its significant
growth potential

The Board provides active oversight

to support the Group In secunng key
opportunities and achieving disciphned
growth We consider the Group's nsk
appetite and nsk management, in the
context of matenal contracts and extensions,
to ensure that any associated nsks,
including concentration fsk, have been

fully considered In the case of the Group s
significant contract in Libya, this included
entenng nto an enhanced credit structure,
backed by a leading UK Financial Institution
which affords us the confidence that all
payments will be recovered in full This
confidence 1s reflected by the receipt of
$100 milkon from our Libyan customer since
the contract commenced representing the
racetpt of all outstanding payments

In October, the Board was pleased to
announce and complete our acquisition of
GE s Power Rental Business Following this
APR Energy became the world's leading
provider of fasi-track mobile turbine power
This transformational transaction allows us
to move forward rapidly towards delivering
our objectives

The transaction alse oftered attractive
diversification of our revenue base into new
markets and sectors, which we believe
offer significant potental for the future The
deal creates along-term strategic alliance
with GE, providing a dedicated supply

of new turbines a collaborative business
development platform and expanded
access to worldwide suppont services

We are excited to be working closely

with GE, whose partnerstip and equity
commiimery 1$ testament to our prospects
and wision 1o be the leader in the large-scale
fast-track power industry We welcome GE
as a key strategic investar in APR Enesgy
and therr parnicipation en our Board

The Board continually strives to achieve
high standards of corperate governance
and we beleve that the observance of these
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A year of transformational change and significant achievement
provides strong foundation for continued growth in the fast evolving
global market for large scale, rapidly delivered power

standards (s in the best interests of all our
stakeholders The Board compnses tigh
calibre indivwduals, who possess the range
of skills and expenence needed to ensure
quality contribution 10 our decision making
We believe that diversity adds significant
value to the quahty of discussion and
decision making as reflected by the Board's
composition in terms of both gender and
nternational representation

The Board belisves that moving to a
Prermium listing would be advantageous for
the Company and reflects a positive step

in the Company s matunty The Board 1s
actively taking steps towards a Premium
Listing, which i expects to achieve within the
coming twelve months

In recognition of the Board s confidence

in the Group's underlying and future
prespects, the Directors are proposing a
final dmdend for 2013 of 6 7p (2012 6 7p)
per share With the interm dwdend of
33p {2012 3 3p) this results in a full year
dividend of 10 0p (2012 10 0p) Subject
to shareholders approval at the Annual
General Meeting cn 20 May 2014, the final
dwvidend will be payable on 3 June 2014 to
shareholders on the register as at 4 April
2014 The Board will continue to mantain
a regutar review of its dwdend policy and
reiferates its intentton to pay an annual
dwvidend

2013 was a fransformational year for

APR Energy and one which we exited
strongly We have a highly motvated and
expenenced management team and have
made real progress in advancing our
strategy to deliver power solutions to our
ncreasing custormer base where and when
they are needed We remain confident that
the Group will create significant shareholder
value in the future

Mike Fairey
Chairman
25 March 2014




Chief Executive Officer's Statement

2013 was a year of significant change for
APR Energy, and | am pleased to report the
progress we have achieved

Our ability to deplay large-scale power,
rapidly, combined with our turnkey approach
and advanced technology, provides
customers with the confidence of having
rehable power when they need it Qur ability
to do this consistently has ied to great chent
‘stickiness — and our contract renewal rate
of over 90% 1n 2013 15 testament to that

Order intake was strong, driven by record
new contract wing of 740MW (2012 SEOMW)
and contract extensions of 298MW (2012
724MW), Including In Uruguay Indonesia
Angola and post year-end Libya, where
clients not only renewed contracts but
expanded them at similar pneing

We have focused on delivering a strong
operationat pertormance, with utiisation a
key target for management Across the year
the Group achieved a utilisation rate of 74%
With the commissioning of a number of
sigrificant contracts dunng the second half
and ongoing renewals, total fleet utlisation
increased to 81% at year end This reflects
a significant improvement in diesel power
modute utibsation and almast full uthsation
across our turbine fleet demonstratng our
customers' desire for this technology

Our acquisiion of the GE Power Rental
Business in QOctober 2013 together wath our
new pannership and supply agreement has
accelerated the pace at which the Group
can address the growing market opportunity
Durnng the year we continued to invest in
our power generation capacily, Increasing It
by nearty 60% to 2,074 MW (31 December
2012 1 311MW) through a combination of
acquisitive and organic capacity expansion
Thus nvestment focused primarty on our
mobile gas turbines, the key technology
underpinning our strategy As a result of
this investment, our lleet at the year end
compnsed 56% mobite gas turbines, 39%
diesel power modules and 5% gas power
modules

John Campion, Chief Executive Officer

2013 financlal performance

Through a combination of strong order
book growth and successful project
execution we delivered a strong operating
and financial pertormance Our financial
results for 2013 reflect the inclusion of the
GE power rental busmness from the end of
Qctober

Revenue increased 16% to $308 millan
(2012 $266 milion) dreven primanly by
new contract wins, contract extensions and
hugh utiisation levels on an entarged fleet,
following the commssioning of a number
of significant contracts dunng the year

The timing of these projects becoming
operatonal resulted 1n revenue being
heawvly brased o the second half of the
year as expected

Adjusted EBITDA increased 15% to $181
mifhon (2012 $157 mullion} resulting In an
adjusted EBITDA margin of 59% (2012
59%) COver the medium-term, larger-scale,
repeatable projects should benefit from
operating efficiencies, which, together with
the growth of our turbine fleet, s expected
tc enhance margins

Adsted basic earnings per share was

60 cents (2012 B8 cents) based on a
werghted average number of shares of

81 0 million (2012 78 2 million shares), the
ncrease n shares reflecting the 15 5 milhon
shares 1ssued to GE at the end of October
2013

Dunng the year, the Group increased

its credit facilities to $850 rmillian (31
December 2012 $400 million) to provide
significant hqurdity to continue ta grow
our fleet, expand our glabal network,

and qguickly respond to the growing
opportunities n our market, including ihe
GE acquisiion At the year end we had
grown our total fleet capacity by 58% to
2,074MW, (31 December 2012 1 311MW)
reflecting the 520MW of additional capacity
acquired through the GE acquisition and
313MW of organic capacity expansion
funded by fleet capital expenditure of
approximatety $290 milhion

We are pleased with the results achieved in 2013, and believe
our progress durng the year has positioned us well to deliver
sustainable growth into 2014 and beyond

The Group s cash flow reflected these
high levels of fleet investment and
increased mobilisation costs together with
wnwvestments in working capital ansing from
the significantly higher activity i the second
half, the tming of receivables and the
acquisition of the GE business in October
As a result, the Group maintaned a good
financial positran, with year end net debt
as announced n the January 2014 trading
update of $556 milben (31 December

2012 %384 milion) excluding capitalised
financing fees

Our year end net debt posiion reflected
the timing of the receipt of receivables,
including those In respect of Libya n the
case of our Libyan project we established
upon contract signing an enhanced
credit structure backed by a leading UK
Financial Institution  through which the
Group receves payment | am pleased

{o report that in recent weeks we have
seen significant progress - and have
received $100 muthon to date from our
customer in Libya reflecting the recerpt
of alt outstanding and due payments and
sigmificantly reducing our current net debt
position

QCur provision for bad debts remains at

a hustonc low levet reflecting a strong
customer payment record The Group's
use of letters of credit, contract insurance
policies and up iront depasits support
the receipt of contract revenues,
notwithstanding occasional iming 1ssues
given the junsdictions in which we operate

Acquisition of GE's Power Rental
Busliness

A key development dunng the year was our
acquisinon of GE’s Power Rental Business
and GE's investrnent in our Company
Through the transaction we acquired 520MW
of power generation capacity, comprising
five equipment-only rental contracts in
Austraha, Bangladesh Canada, traq and the
US Virgm Islands, and four non-contracted
mabile turbines

Annual Report 2013 | APR Energy | 7
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Chief Executive Officer s Statement

The acquisition of GE’s

Power Rental Business
created the world’s leading
fast-track mobile turbine power
business, strengthening and
diversifying APR Energy’s
business

& Creates a long-term strategic allance
with GE, providing dedicated supply
for the fast rack turnkey power
segment, a collaborative business
development platform and expanded
access to worldwde support services,
subject to existing contractual
arrangements

@ Makes GE a key strategic nvestor in
APR Energy

@ Strengthens and diversifies APR
Energy's global footprint and contract
revenue base, providing access
to new developed and developing
countries

® Enhances APR Energy’s large scale,
fast track power business positioning
APR Energy wetl to take advantage
of expanding opportunities with the
fastest growing technology in the
industry

® Improves APR Energy s footprint in
natural gas, a growing fuel source that
1$ both cost-etficient and emissions
fnendly

® Strong financial ratonale and 1s
expected to be earnings accretive for
the Company

@ Delvers enhanced cash generation for
the enlarged group

In creating the world s leading fast-track
mobile turbine business, the acquisition
advances us towards our stralegic

goals strengthening and diversifying our
business, while creating a valuable long-
ierm strategic partnership with GE The
transaction broadens cur revenue base,
and reduces our concentration nsk, through
exposure tc new geographies and an
established natural gas footprint

While still early days ntegration i1s
progressing well We have realised our first
renewal, with a twelve-month extension

on improved pneing of the 25MW mobile
turne contract in the US Virgin Islands

We are in discussions with customers in
Bangladesh and Iraq, whose contracts are
due for renewal in 2014 We intend to apply
our standard approach and pncing to these
contracts, transfernng customers across to
our full turnkey offenng which we believe
provides an attractive power solution In
the event customers do not require this

full offering, or we are unable to reach
agreement we will seek to redeploy these
assets onto more favourable terms N line
with our histonc turbine pricing

The strategic partnership with GE gives

us the ability to collaborate on business
development opportunities where APR
Energy can offer complementary power
sclutions, while permanent GE plants are
buillt We have been pleased with the level
of nbound requests and expect these
opportunities ta develop over tha short to
medium-term Our parinership provides
access to GE's manufacturing capacity
through which we expect to be able {o
support our future growth opportunities
more efficently, reducing the ime between
order and delivery, as well as reducing the
fime between purchasing new turbines and
therr commussioning, and hence revenue
generation

Using our technological
advantage to deliver sustainable
growth

We continue to differenhiate ourselves by
offerning a broad choice of technologies
1n our fleet, with a particular strategic
focus on dual-fuel mobile turbines the
technology best suited for the rapid
deployment of large blocks of power
Turbines are an integral part of our growth
strategy providing a stronger offering
1nto more attractive targer-scate, longer-
term projects This technology presents a
number of advantages to our customers
Its power density 1 e , small footprint-
to-megawatt ratio, iImproves speed and
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fogistics while providing greater reliability
requirng less maintenance and producing
significanily less emissions than its
reciprocating engine counterparts The
fuel flexibility of our mebile gas turbines
provides an acd:tional advantage for the
customer with the abiiity to switch gquickly
between diesel and natural gas cepending
on customer needs or preference
Furthermore where gas 1s available to a
customer, it can significantly reduce the
generating costs of electricity, as well as
reduce emissions

Our global sirategic partnerships with GE
and Caterpillar provide us with reliable,
state-of-the-art technelogy, around the
clock support across the globe and
beneficial pncing Our partnership with GE
provicies the Group exctusive worldwide
nghts to offer its mobile turbines within our
market while deploying capital in a more
timely manner

Risk management ‘

APR Energy operates in a market with
strong structural growth opportunities
These opportunihes often take us to
challenging parts of the world, including
countines that experience political sociat,
economic and secunty instability And,

as contracts become larger, longer and
maore complex, we recognise the need for
ever more rngorous nsk assessment and
mitigation

We are committed to creating a secure
working environment for our people

while ensunng the secunty of our physicat
assets and surety of payment We are
proactive through our contract due
dihgence to address these 1ssues through
avarety of mitigating actions nciuding
the purchasing of insurance, bonds,
guarantees, and cash advances to protect |
both our financial and operaticnal assels
To mitigate significant recevable nisks, we
also enter Into enhanced credit structures
which through the use of letters of credit,
guaraniee customer payment

Al times we operate in countries that have
recently emerged from significant political
and social upheavals The emerging
governments, often require a perod in
which they establish the administrative
processes, often via committee, through
which they can effectively operate — this
has been the case in Libya Our customer,
the state owned utility has been through

a penod of remendous change, and it
has taken time to establish the requisite
commtttees and processes To mitigate




nsk associated with this contract we
have an enhanced credit structure i
place Backed by a leading UK financial
institution cur documentary letters of
credit assure payment from a pre-funded
escrow account upon presentahon of
approved invoices At the year end date
a significant proportion of these invoices
were outstanding We acknowledge
shareholiders concerns and are pleased
to report that following the receipt of

all outstanding and due paymenis our
customer 1s current and our processes to
mgate r:sk have proved effective

A year of progress across our
global portfolio

We accomplished a number of
achievements around the world that ment
highlighting The structural growth dnvers
within the Group's business are intact and
the prospects for fast-track large-scale
power In all our chosen geographies
remain very strong

Europe, Middle East, and Africa

Quring the year, our foolprnnt across Afnca
more than doubled with many notable
successes In March, we announced the
signing of a new 250MW motile turbine
contract in Libya to provide a turnkey
power solution, followed by the expansicn
of cur 200MW diesel project announced
in June, making this the largest single
contract in the history of the fast-track
power industry

This 450MW solution provides power

to more than one million hemes and

helps meet demand dunng the crtical
summer figh heat season, as well as
provide intenm power while the country
continues 1o rebulld and improve its
ageing infrastructure The timescale was
tight — and not without its challenges — with
COMMISSIONING 0CCUINNG across six sies
inthe peak heat of the summer and dunng
Ramadan Nonetheless, we were pleased
to report that our plants were fully installed
and commercially cperatonal dunng the
third quarter Notwithstanding our sizeable
power contrbution, Libya continues to
face a chronic and growing structural
power deficit, requinng sigmificant long-
term investment to address

We delivered our first cross-border
agreement, a 40MW diesel power module
solution, with the Government of Mal

The sofution was installed in Senegai and
feeds into the interconnacted gnd that
connecis Mall, Senegal and Mauritara

We also extended our 70MW diese!
power moduie contract in Botswana for a
further twelve months i late December
Our facitity in Francistown has been a
key component of the country's power
generation infrastructure since 2009,
filing a cntical gap in its drnive toward
permanent energy sufficiency As part

of this renewal we anticipate to sell

our installed fleet to the client, with the
expected transter of assels 1o occur post
the end of the existing contract in Q4 2014
The sale represents a mutually atiractive
cppoertunity for the client to supplement
its owned diesel power modules while
enabling the Group to dispose of cider
technology and legacy equipment Going
forward we will consider the sate of other
installed assets as opportunilies anse

Our cortinued presence in Angola
exemphfies our market approach In

2012 we established our first project

in the country a 40MW plant located in
Luanda using diese! power modules

After bullding a positive relationship with
the customer and delivering a strong
track-record of refiabihty, we successiully
extended the contract for another term
and expanded our capacity by a further
40MW doubling our footpnint in country
Rather than expanding with more diese!
power moduies, the customer specifically
requested to upgrade to mobile gas
turbines resulting in one of the first-ever
semi-permanent mabile turbine projects
n Sub-Saharan Afnica and APR Energy's
first turbine geal following the GE strategic
aliance Through this relatronship, we
have established a strong platform from
which we hope 1o expand our market for
maobile turbine generaticn sclutions across
the region

Oman's hot summer season puts heavy
demand on the country s power gnd from
May to August, causing intermittent power
outages For the second consecutive
summer we provided power to meet

this seasonal demand Faciitated by our
modular system and supperted by our
regional hub in Dubal, the Group's 32MW
plant iIn Oman was operatanal In under two
weeks

Asia Pacific

Indonesia represents one of the largest
fast-track power markets n the world
During the year, we built on our existing
contract delivenng an additional 40MW
and 75MW 1o bnng our total power
capacity in the country to 130MW Qur
plants provide much needed refiable
power to the 1slands of Nias and Sumatra

and by using the newest generation diesel
power modules we have been able 10
provide fuel-efficiencies 1o our customer

Following the year end we were pleased
10 announce two new significant contracts
In Asia Fistly alandmark contract in
Myanmar for 82MW, with plant capacity to
deliver up to 100MW The plant, featunng
our gas power modules, 1s expecled to

be cperational in the second quarter of
2014 and will be one of the largest thermal
plants in the country prowviding power to
more than six milhon people This bridging
power capacity 1s required whilst the uthty
bulds a new combined cycle power plant
to fulfil the country s needs

Today, we have anncunced our fargest
industnal contract Producing a
guaranteed 6OMW the maobile gas turbine
plant will power the customer's critical
miing operations In the South Pacific
This technology was the customer's
preferred selution, meeting stnct EU
emissions requirements and able to fit
within the challenging space constraints at
the mine site The plant will run on diesel,
while offering our customer the flexbility
o seamlessly switch to natural gas 1f
needed

The project adds to APR Energy's track
record In the extractive industry sector

that includes successful power projects in
Mozambique, Guatemala and Botswana
It1s also represents the Group's second
large-scale turbine project following

its acquisition of the GE Pawer Rental
Business The plant 1s expected to begin
operations in late Q2 2014 and run through
to fate 2015 This contract reflects the
versatility that mobile gas turbines provide,
and the attractiveness of this technology
not just to utiities but to INndustnal
customers as well

Recently we have been informed that
our customer in Austraha has filed for
protection from its creditors As such,
the assets allocated to that project are
tied up in the recevership process
Although it s still In the early stages, the
Group 15 working with the administrators
and receivers of Forge Group Limited
regarding possession of those assets

These contracts, together with our

recent installation of 130MW of new
power gengration In Indonesia, reflect

the success of our rapidly growing Asia
Pacific business following the operung
our Malaysian hub in 2012 and Singapore
commercial ofiice in 2013
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Chief Executive Cfficer s Statement

The Americas

in Uruguay, we were pleased to announce in
late 2012 the extension of our existing 100MW
plant and expansion of an addiienal
200MW of mobile gas turbine capacity
The 100MW La Tablada site commussicrung
and 100MW Punta del Tigre site expansion
went operational in the second quarter
brnging our total power generation
capacity in the country 10 300MW

in December, we announced the first
extension of a contract acquired as part
of the GE transacticn — a twelve-month
extension of the 26MW mobtle gas turbine
coniract in the US Virgin Istands, on
improved pricing in line with APR Energy's
histone turbine pricing

These contracts reinforce ous success In
and commitment to the provision of power
across cur global portfolo We continue

to see customers including those In
emerging markets come back to APR
Energy time and agan, to take repeatable
and often enlarged blocks of power to
meet their ongoing needs

Qur people

Qur pecple are the key 10 APR Energy’s
success and our achievements are

only posstble through their hard waork
and dedication With a rapidly growing
business, maintaining and growing a
highly motivated traned and efficient
workforce 1s a top prionty and 1§ essential
to deliver our visicn

I would ke to thark everyone within the
Group for thewr continued efforts | am
committed to ensunng that we continue to
foster a collaborative working environment
Qur employees live and demonstrate our
values every day helping to make APR
Energy a productive and positive place to
work

We have a reputation for integnty ang
honesty In all our business dealings, a
factor that contributes positively 1o our
long-term retabionships with customers
and suppliers Maintaining our gocd
reputation 15, therefore, essential for our
continued success

With the prospect of significant growth
ahead, we need to ensure the organisation
15 positioned to achieve this in a
disciplined way This includes investing

1IN our people to enable them to work 1o
the best of therr abihies supported by
systems, policies, and procedures that

ensure that our growth 1s achieved in a
controlled and repeatable manner We
are evolving the organisation to ensure
our global footprint 1s aligned to meet
the needs of our customers quickly,
while retaining its agiity to capture
opportunities

A strong foundation for the
future

We have long beleved the market
oppoertunity exists to provide customers
with larger-scale power projects cn a semi-
permanent basis in a way that helps them
to address an often chronic imbalance in
the supply of and demand ifor electricity in
a faster, smarter way

Cur approach 1s to build a strong, rekable
and repeatable platform We have made
significant progress it this area in recent
years, bulding the capabilities to meet
our customers' needs We have invested
In an advanced and scalable fleet We
have developed our propretary modular
builging process and have put regional
hubs in place te serve our sirategic
markets All of these investments enable
us to move at pace - winning new
contracts and continuing to achieve high
renewal rates, improving mebilisation and
instaliation time  while retairing flexibility to
be both scalable and customisable

We have developed strategic partnerships,
which provide us with relable state-of-
the-art technology and around the clock
support across the world And, we have
deliberately differentrated ourselves
through our bread, technologically
advanced and scalable fieet with a
particular facus on our mobile {urbines

Through major projects such as Uruguay
and Libya, we have shown that mobile
turbine technology does and will continue
to, ptay an important role in the growth

of the fast-track power solutions market
as custorners look for rehable technology
with greater power-density and emissions
control We have also seen that, by
employing technologies offerng the latest
advancements in fuel efficiency, we can
reduce significantly the total operating
cost for the customer over the use of older
more technologically-dated equipment
This advantage has helped us win projects
over the course of the year

Wiih this streng fourdation, we are
focused on exdending and expanding our
existing portfolio of contracts and growing
our global footprint via opportunities

10 | APR Energy | Annual Report 2013

with new customers and in new markets
All the while, we continue to evolve and
enhance our platform through a fecus
on operational excellence and continued
investment in our people and our assets

Outlook

APR Energy believes that the outlook for
the mobile gas turbine market remains
positive The Group continues to see strong
structural demand for power solutions in
Afnica, Latin Amenca, the Middle East, and
South East Asia where avallable new power
capacity significantly lags growing demand

The scalabiity of this technology allows
large amounts of power to be deployed
swiftly and efficiently This, combined with
low ermissions and dual-fuel capabulity,
makes turbines the technology of choice
far customers requinng large-scale rapidly
deliverec power The Group 1s well placed
to capture opportunities 1o prowvide larger-
scale, longer term power

Cur focus for the year ahead includes
securing a number of key contracts
renewals transfernng the GE contracts
that are due for renewal onta more
favaurable terms or re-deploying these
assets, developing opportuniies through
our partnership with GE and importantly
contiruing to deliver an improved financial
and operational performance

Market expectations for 2014 reflect
strong year an-year growth for the Group
Subject to fluctuations In exchange rates
the Board's expectations for the current
financial year remain unchanged

John Campion
Chref Executive Officer
25 March 2014




Our market

Drivers of growth

Demand for APR
Energy's solutions 1s
dniven by a number

of factors, including
rapid economic growth
and urbanisation,

lack of funding and
financing for new plants,
ageing infrastructure
and variable weather
patterns

The marketplace in which APR Energy
operates I1s global and extensive It
benefits from strong growth drivers for

the short, medium and long term It1s

a market where dermand significantly
outsinps supply, and this supply/demand
gap s expected to coniinue to nse due

{o certain underlying factors, which are
hkely to persist for many years Those
underlying factors include rapid economic
development and urbanisation in emerging
markets the advanced ageing of a
number of power plants and infrastructure
around the world the lack of funds and
avallable financing for construction of new
permanent plants, gecpolitical and natural
events and cimatic impacts on ran-
dependent hydroetectnic power generation
In addition, the vanability of those factors
compounds the ptanning and farecasting
challenges for many countries, further
exacerbating the problem As a resuit
many countrnes are faced with cntical
electricity shortages, impacting economic
growth and quality of ife

The solutions that APR Energy provides
addresses only a partion of the global
electricity deficit [n many cases we are
competing against the chaice by some
countries to take no action in salving thair
power gaps — 1 e, 1o allow for black-outs
brown-ouls, of provide no power at all

o some of iherr constituents leaving
indusines and private homes to compete
for the small supply of power available
For these reasons there 1s tremendous
opporunity to drive and create new
demand by offering innovative accessible
solutions and by educating our target
customers on the benefits that these
solutrons provide

It has been seen in countres with low
electrification rates that the infroduction

of electrcity, 1n turn, leads to new
incremental demand as canstituents begin
to moderruse This demand growih is
dnven by the introducton and prohferation
of power-intensive apphances such as
refngerators, as well as the need for
constant power access for charging mobile
phones and other personat devices

Our Market Space

While the overall market for electncity 15
large, broad, and diverse, APR Energy's
focus 1s on sovereign utilites, private
utilities, and power-mntensive industries
located in both developed and developing
markets Our target projects typically run
from 20MW to more than 400MW

Histarically, our largest opportunities have
been in high-growth, emerging, frontier, and
underserved markets, focated in the regians
of Africa, Latin Amenca the Middle East,
and Asia However, as we have increased
our fleet weighting in mobile gas turbines
this technology provides a strong play (n
teveloped markets, where power-dense
and low-emissions technology 1s needed to
counter ageing infrastructure and tightening
emissions regulations Power-intensive
industres also have been an area of
increased opportunity, paricularly extractive
industries, which often operate in remaote
locations distant from the power gnd

Customer demand in cur prionty market
spaces remains high These customers
have needs for a number of applications,
incluching bndging power, peaking power,
gnd stability and support industnal
generation and distributed generaton tn
addition, we remain ready to provide rapid
response to event-grniven need, wherever
it may be required in the world, although
the very nature of such events makes them
difficult to predict and forecast

From a strategic perspective, APR Energy
has broadened its market opporiunities
by offenng utlities and industnes a greater
choice of technolegy to meet thewr needs
With a flexible offening that includes mobile
gas turbines our market opporturity
expands beyond traditional temporary
power and rental power markets to brdge
customers to longer-term solutions As
seen from our 300MW project in Uruguay,
many large utiity customers prefer to
work with the reliable, power-dense, and
emissions fnendly turbine technology with
which they are most famihar
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Qur market

Global power rental market
by geography, 2011 - 2017
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Market growth

Over the last decade meeting the world's
ever-growing energy needs has become
a cnbcal challenge The need for power
continues to nse, dniven by growth in
populaticn and iIncomes continued
Industnalsaton and urbanisation of
emerging markets revisions to cimate
change policies, and a number of other
factors Atthe same time decades of
undernnvestment in new and existing
capacity have left governments and utihties
In & position where they must not only
catch up to current demand requirements,
but also invest for future business and
population growth

Aganst this backdrop the structural
opportunity for fast-track power and
bndging power 1s expected to continue to
expand given the persistent supply-side
constraints i certain regions, such as lack
of financing for infrastructure projects, low
electrfication rates, and high transrmission
ard distnbution losses A new permanent
power plant takes years to plan, finance
and consiruct It costs hundreds of millions
of dollars, requires extensive permitting
and often has attendant network and
infrastructure demands

According to recent estimates the global
power rental market 1s expected to grow
from an estimated $8 billion in 2012 to
$17 billion in 2017 with a compound
annual growtn rate of 17% dunng the
same penod Due 1o the long lead time
required for the construction of permanent
pawer infrastructure and the innate

need for standby power in the event of
natural disasters hugh seasonal demand
and mainienance, the marketplace
opportunities for tast-track power projects
will continue to grow

Locking ahead, we expect this growth to
continue due to the following key factors

The global demand for electrncity
continues to outpace supply

According to the International Energy
Agency (IEA} 2013 World Energy Outlook
the demand for electncty 18 projected to
oulpace any other final form of energy,
with over a 65% Increase through 2035, or
2 2% per year on average Over four-fifths
of this demand 1s required by non-OECD
countrnies, due o faster populaticn and
economic growth, and nising standards of
living

The growth i power consumption 1S
led by developing countries, driven
by industnahsation and by increasing
numbers of people using devices that
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consume electncity, ncluding refngerators,
televisions and mobile phones However,
population growth also 1s an important
dnver of energy consumption with the
majority of growth taking pace in Asta and
Afnca Due to this continued population

and economic growth, 1 2 bilhen people still
remain without access to electncity or 17%
of the global population According to the
2013 World Energy Outlook, by 2030 nearly
a brlhon people will still tack electnicity with
the majonty being in sub-Saharan Africa

or developing Asia Even though world
electricity generation increases along with
incremental demand growth, the increase
of generation 1s lower than that of the
demand, resuiting in a continuous and

growing gap

Lack of investment in power capacity
The investment in new generating capacity
and the mantenance of existing capacity
have each remained below levels required
to keep supply In line with the accelerating
demand Given the ongoing uncertainty

in the global economy and the complexity
and cost of constructing large-scale
power plants investment 1n bulding new
capacity and mantaining existing capacity
has been unable to keep pace Even with
planned capacity additions n developing
economies construction lead-tmes for
long-term plants may take three to five
years before being commissioned and
operational Furthermore, construction
COsts run at an approximate range of

$1 5 million to $7 million per megawatt
constructed, depending on the technology
employed Construction of conventional
plants also are centractually complex,
requining the hinng of specialists and
understanding of the financial technical,
socio-econemic, environmental and legal
aspects of the construction, as well as
assessing the long-term impact of the
plant

According to IEA’s 2013 World Energy
Cutlook, if existing policies continue and
new policies are cautiously implemented,
Investrment ot $1 tnillion 15 required in the
world's energy supply system through
2035, or $740 hilon per year, to ensure
the availability of generation transmission
and distribution systems needed to fulfil
the global capacity requirements Out

ol this, 58% of total investment 1s In new
generating capacity while the remainder

1S needed for transrmission and distribution
networks According to the World Energy
QOutlook around 50% of today’s gnd
infrastructure will have reached 40 years of
age by 2035 requinng major investments
inrefurbishments  About 60% of capacity
retirements are in OECD countnes where




about two-thirds of the coal fleet 1s over 30
years old As aresult, developing nations
increasingly will rely on intenm or bridging
power solutions to help meet nsing demand
until more permanent power Seurces can
be financed and buiit

Changing weather patterns driving
magor electricity shortages
Energy-related CO, emissians growlh,
dniven in large part to Increasing coal
demand in non-OECD counines, has
contributed towards the progression

of chmatic changes A shift to low-
carbon technologies, thermal efficiency
improvements of fossil-fuelled power
plants and coal-to-gas switching all
contnbute to an expected reduction of
ermissions growth through 2035, but
immediate etfects will be hard to see
Ciimate change 1s expected to increase
the duration, frequency and intensity

of heat waves and droughts, causing
electricity shortages in countnes that
obtain large shares of their electncity
from renewable sources and also by
stressing transmission infrastructure
due to prolonged heat This vanabilty of
rainfall, increased levels of evaporation,
and changing wind cycles, may hinder
economic growth and affect electricity
pncing and sales revenue Since renewable
energy sources are mare expensive than
cenventional sources and are unable to
prowide reliable dedicated power dunng
peak demand, standby power solutions
remarn essential to provide stability and
additional capacity when renewable
sources are affected or dunng extreme
weather pernods

Ageing power infrastructure and the
need for reliable backup

Ower the next decade a significant
investment 18 needed to refurbish or
replace agemng distribution gnds and
generating plants to keep pace with nsing
electricity consumption This is particularly
proncunced 1n QECD countries, where
over 60% of global capacity retrements
through 2035 will occur in order to abide by
generaton and environmental regulations
QECD countries may face up to 530GW of
capacty retirements through 2035

Given the environmental and safety
concerns associated with an ageing
power infrastructure, both developed and
developing countries will be required to
plan and finance extensive renovations

it order to meet the growing demand for
electricity Cf the new generation capacity
that i1s expected to be built through 2035
around cne-third 1s needed to replace
plants that are retrning The majonty of new

additions are projected to be gas-pawered
plants with a majonty expected to take
place n nen-QECD countnes This equates
to an investment of $17 trlfion or $740
bilion per year through 2035 to develop
new generation faciities and refurbish
transmission and distnbution networks

As a fast-track power sclutions prowvider,
APR Energy 15 1deally positioned to provide
energy companies, municipalties and
federal agencies with additional power
support for penods when current power
faciiies are undergoing maintenance
being upgraded, or replaced

Event-driven opportunities

When disaster strkes, access to a fast
rehable backup power source becomes
cnbical for the populations living in the
affected areas Natural catastrophes are on
the nse worldwide, resulting in sigrificant
direct economic losses and impacting
emerging economies the most Weather
phenomena such as extended droughts
fmgh temperatures, high sea ice melt, and
storm surges linked to heightening cyclone
nsk have increased over the past 10 years
Over 980G documented loss events in 2013
were reported, of which 93% were weather-
related (storms, floods and cimatological
events such as heat waves, cold waves
droughts and wildfires) andc the remaining
were caused by earthquakes and volcanic
eruptions The majonty of events took place
in Asia, although Africa saw a spike In loss
events in 2012 When an unforeseen power
failure due to a weather phenomenan or
natural disaster cccurs emergency power
18 needed instantly to supplement the loss
of gnd power and to begin recovery efforts
and effective humanitanan ad APR Ener‘gy
with its advanced logistical expertise can
prowide rapid assistance for the affected
region and its itizens

Industnal power

According to The World Energy Outlook
2013 industry remains the largest electncity
end-use sector, accounting for 41% of total
electnicity demand and expected to increase
over 2% per annum With the redevelopment
and capacity expansion of existing mines, as
weil as the opening of new mines, demand
for power within the extractive industry will
continue to grew The nsing demand for
mineral resources from developing countries
such as Brazil Russig, india, and China
(BRIC) should contnbute further to this
ncrease

Annual Report 2013 | APR Energy | 13

Age profile of installed thermal
capacity by region
At year end 2012

Nuclear

W50+ years 40-50 years

[ 20-30 years [11020years | <10years

Sources World Energy Outiock 2013 ©® CECDHEA
013

Quarrying & mining
Global power rental market
By geography, 2011-2017

700 - {$ Milhon}

Asia Pacic  Amencas.

Europe Africa

o 201 3 2012 N 2017

Source MarketsandMarkets, 2012

MBIABAQ

SJUBLLIBIEIS feIDUBUIY uoday s10198.10 @auewIoped

uoRBLLIOM| JaLyiD



QOur business

A global leader in fast-track power solutions

APR Energy 1s a global leader in the under-
served market for rapidly deployable, large-
scale power and 1s the world's leadng
provider of fast-track mobile turbine power
Our hughly mobile turnkey power plants
help run cities, countries, and industres
around the world in both developed and
developing markets

APR Energy delivers
large-scale power fast
—when and where
customers need It

Without reliable electneity, countries and
industnies cannot function efficiently or

In many cases, safely Unforiunately,
traditional power plants typically take
years to buld and commussion and due
to lack of funding and cormplex financing
requirements many projects never break
ground In contrast APR Energy's planis
can be installed 1n weeks, not years
supplying the electncity needed to power
milions of homes With a presence in
over 25 countnes and supported by a
network of regional hubs APR Energy has
the capability to respond quickly to needs
across most of the world, getting power to
our customers fast — when and where they
need it

The APR Energy business model

Large-scale, fast-track power

Rapdly delwered, large-scale power
projects are our sole focus Our business
maodel 1s based on selling the capacity
for power generation as well as the
power (tself APR Energy installs, owns
cperates and mantans its power planis,
providing the customer with a complete
turnkey solutton Through this approach,
APR Energy helps customers by rapiclly
deploying the power capacity to address
their supply gaps without requinng the
customer to fund the up-front capital
investment

APR Energy's power plants are typicaily
deployed on an intenm or semi-permanent
basis, and are used for many applcations
ranging from supplemental base-load
capacity and seasonal peaking power,

to distributed generation, and dedicated
industnal power Our solutions are
scalable to over 400MW and use the

latest advancemenits in mobile generation
technology Coniracts typically run from a
penod of 12 months to five years, although
the majonty of our contracts typically

Deliver Sustainable Growth

Customer
centricity

Cperational
excellence

Through the Sale of Electricity, Leveraging...

Tumkey
power plants

Rapid
delivery

Across Markets, Segments, and Opportunities...

Financial
perfarmance

Responsible
behaviour

—

Advanced
technology

Bespoke
approach

Priority Targeted Applications
regions segments
o Tt T s s T T e ToTTT T T
. Underpinned by... l Dnven by... Supported by...
|
Enablers Competenciles Governance
& skills
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renew one or more times, with some
customers remaining under contract for a
number of years

We serve a wide range
of customers across the globe

APR Energy s customers range from
sovereign utilibes in high-growth emerging
or frontier markets that face a structural
imbalance in therr supply and demand of
electricity, to pubhc and private utilties in
developed markets looking to replace and
upgrade their ageing power infrastructure
While utiltties represent our largest
customer base, APR Energy also serves a
wide range of industnal customers seeking
reliable large-scale power sotutions
Extractve industnes hke mining often
require dedicated power solutons given
that their operations are tighly power
intensive and frequently take place in
remote locations with imited or no access
to the power gng

Since many customers often require their
own unigue conhigurations, APR Energy's
engineers work 1o deliver customised
solutions that meet regulatory requirements
create mimimal impact on the surrounding
community and combine the nght mix of
generation technology to achieve peak
eficiency The dversity of APR Energy s
customer base, both in terms of geography
and market segment, reduces our exposure
to downturns in any particular market
segment

A repeatable, scalable process

Once APR Energy establishes a local
presence through the installaton of a
power plant we leverage that presence
as a platform from which we extend or
expand our business Offering flexibie and
long Iife-cycle technology, such as mobile
gas turbines together wath our turnkey
approach, helps provide longewty and
stickingss’ 1o gur contracts As a result,
the majority of our contracts renew and
we have had several notable expansions
of projects including Libya Uruguay, and
Indonesia We apply this model in all of
our markets and It serves as a repeatable
precess The market credibihty we gain
through the successiul delivery of out
projects helps open doars to new business
cpportunities, beth within anag beyond our
existing markets

Case study Angola

APR Energy's Angola project exemplifies our go-to-market approach In 2012 we
established our first project in the countyy, a 40MW plant located in Luanda using diesel
power modules After bulding a positive relatonshup with the customer and delivering a
strong track-record of reliabiity, APR Energy was able to extend the contract for another
term, as well as expand our capacity in country by an addibonas 40MW, doubling the
size of our operations

The customer specifically requested to upgrade technology to mobile gas turbines for the
acdinonal 40MW resulting in one of the first-ever mobile turbine projects in Sub-Saharan
Africa and APR Energy’s fiest turbine contract following its strategic afliance with GE
Through the Angola win, extension and expansion, APR Energy has established a sirong
platform from which we can expand our market for mobile turbine generation solutions
and wilt use the project as a model for future business opportunities In the region

New ¢ Replicate success
Markets o Leverage proven capabilities
Extension o Expand footprint

& Expansion o Extend term

Initial o Burld out platform

Project o Establish presence
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QOur business

Our business applications

| Bridging power !
‘ - oo

Grid stability
and support

; } Base load operation ]
| |

—_—

Ulilites often require additional power
support for penods when current
power facities are undergoing
maintenance or baing reptaced or
upgraded to newer, more efficient
technologies APR Energy's power
solutons provide a reliable power
alternative in such scenanos
minmising the interruption to a
community § electncity supply

during scheduled perods of

outages or bndging untl permanent
infrastructure comes on ine or can be
constructed

Botswana

Expenencing electnony shortages
driven by demand growth and supply
constraints, the Botswana Power
Corparation (BPC} needed bridging
power until a permanent plant could
be constructed In 2009, APR Energy
was contracted to provide 70MW of
reliable electricity to the national gnid in
order to counteract power shortages
The plant has remained in operation
folowing multiple contract extensions,
ands scheduled to continue running
through 2014
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AFR Energy s gnd optimisation and
stabilisation projects help global
customers operate more efficiently
and ultimately enable a more reliable
and secure supply of energy They
incorporate distnbuted generation
solutions at strategically located
substations to help reduce the load
on existing substaton equipment and
release capacity on the transmission
gnd Gnd optimisation and stabilisation
progects greatly improve the efficiency
of the customer’s substation and
electncal networks, often by over 20%

Indonesia

Dunng 2013, APR Energy designed,
constructed, and installed four power
plants in Indones:a totalling 130MW
Indonesia with its vast geography
and underdeveloped infrastructure,

18 one of the world s largest markets
for distnbuted power and gnd stability
projects APR Energy's plants provide
much needed reliable power to

the 1slands of Nias and Sumatra

In adchtion Teveragmng #s newest-
generaticn diesel power modules,
APR Energy was able 1o provide fuel-
efficiency cost savings compared to
other solutions

In some countres, the
underdevelopment of power
generalion infrastructure 1S so severe
{hat they need a power provider

such as APR Energy to help cover
sigmificant portions of ther natonal
power production In such cases,
APR Energy may operate its faciities
as base load plants, running on

a continuous basis to meet its
customers’ critical power needs For
example n Senegal, APR Energy has
accounted for as much as 30% of the
country 5 available capacity Other
such recent projects have included
Yemen, Libya and Angofa

Libya

APR Energy cperates six plants

in Libya to alleviate its chronic

and growing supply and demand
imbakance while the country builds
and repas its mfrastructure These
plants, [ocated within the metropoflitan
Trspoliregon and in the southern
part of the country operate at or

near base-load capacity and are
cniical to keeping the ights on for the
communities they serve With over
450MW of power generation in Libya,
APR Energy makes a sigmficant
contnbution to the country’s overall
elecincity production




Peaking power

In markets where the demand for
electncity exceeds the avalable power
generation capacity utiittes need

to congsider the prachcalities of load
management and load shedding
dunng peak demand times of the day
In some cases, this need 1s seasonal
dniven by extreme temperatures or in
hydroe-dependent countnes, by lack of
rainfall In a peaking power solution
APR Energy s power plant woukd
operate durng peak demand penods,
normally only for a few hours each day
to alleviate these power outages

Oman

Oman’s hot summer season puts
heavy demand on the country s power
gnd from May to September, causing
intermittent power outages Followang
APR Energy's successful execution

of a similar project in Oman the year
hefore, the Group was awarded a new
contract to supply power and backup
capacity to the eastern part of the
country Leveraging its Dubat hub for
rapid distnibution and using its patent
pending modular block system for
plant design, APR Energy installed
the Oman site wathun days one of the
fastest in the Group's history

Distributed generation

In scenancs where the delivery

of electrnicity 1o a city or region 1$
restricted by inadequate or inefficient
transmission knes, a utility company
may need 1o place power generation
closer ta the pont of consumption fo
avord blackouts APR Energy’s flexible
turnkey plants can be placed where
they are most needed generating

the required electnoity and injecting

it either directly into the local medium
voltage distribution network or the
man high voltage gnd  Also referred
to as rural electrificaton distnbuted
genesaton provides an efficient and
secure method of delivering additional
electricity at a local level while helping
to improve the overall efficiency of the
customer's efectrical system

Argentina

The Argentine government-owned
electnony company Energa Argentina
S A (ENARSA), required additional
power sources as a result of slow-
paced invesimen! ransmissicn

line restraints, a continuous nse N
electricity demand, and terntonal
expansion Over the course of
numerous phases, APR Energy
provided ENARSA wath over 90MW

of power disirbuted at five separate
locations The plants feed into regional
substations and supply cnfical power
needed for seasonal peak demands
and gnd support

Industrial generation

Industnal companies and mming
faciimes often require a decicated
source of electricity An unreliable
supply from a jocal gnd or imited
access to the main transmission
network may 1mpaur the delivery of
electnoity required for the customer
to sustamn its operations Industnat
and minng customers are dependent
upon constant power to ensure that
maximum operational capaciy 1s
achweved and costly plant outages are
avoiged Power generation projects
also supply camps with a secure
source of electncity, supporting the
camp's operational activities and
ensunng the safety of personnel

Guatemala

Powenng the Escobal silver mine's
critical operanons, APR Energy's
turnkey plant delvers efectricity
independent from the local gnd
system Located about 40km outside
of the capital Guatemala City, APR
Energy's power plant 1s the sole
provider of energy for the mine and
keeps its cniical operations running

The Guatemala plant follows other
successful ndustrial generation
projects APR Energy has executed,
Inclucding the Moatze Coal Project

In Mozambique for Vale, one of the
largest mining companies in the world,
and the Boseto mine in Botswana
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Qur business

Our value propositions

Large-scale power - fast

The essence of our business ts to deliver
large-scale power fast, when and where our
custormers need it With mobile technology,
regional distnbution hubs near our key
markets and advanced engineenng,
logistics and installation processes we can
deploy, install, and commussion a large-scale
power plant within days or weeks

With our growing fleet and our global
network of APR Energy offices and
distnibution hubs, we are able to respoend
quickly to opportunities as they happen
and are able to mobilise equipment and
our support teams to areas of urgent need
or emerging opportunity Moreover we
have extensive expenence in the rapid
deployment of equiprment to customers via
ar sea and road transport, and we work
closely with recogrised global logistics
providers to reacily deploy our equipment

Available, mobile fieet

With over 2GW of power generation
capacity, APR Energy benefits from one

ot the largest mobile fleets in the iIndustry
including mebile gas turbines and gas and
diesel power modules Qur high power-
density fuel-flexible turbines offer customers
aunigue advantage in that they can be cost
effectively transported and rapidly installed
to deliver up to 30MW per turbine

Regional distribution and logistics

Our full-senvice distnbution hubs in Dubar,
Panama and Malaysia provide us proximity
to our key markets, and enable us to rapidly
deploy a complete, large-scale turnkey
power plant anywhere in the world Through
parinerships with world-class logistics
companies, we are able to quickly deploy
our fleet via ar, sea, orf land Also we
leverage a highly skilled flexible workforce
stationed across the Amencas Afnca the
Middie East and Asia, which can be rapidly
mobilised to meet urgent customer needs

Modular plant design

APR Energy uses a proprietary modular
building systemn that significantly improves
mobilisation and installabion ime while
reducing labour and installation costs, and
improving margin These systems enable us
to build plants of 400MW or more For plants
usING reciprocatng engine generators,

the custorised plug and play systam is

scalable in 6MW blocks Far turbine plants,
power capacity s delivered In 25MW or
30MW blocks All equrpment 1s packaged
for standara 1ISC shipping contaners

The plants are completely automated and
remote controllable, with flexible application
(50/60 hertz)

Customised tumkey approach

APR Energy combines leading-edge
technology with flexible plant desigr:
fast-track installation, and around-
the-clock service and maintenance to
provide our customers with customised,
turnkey solutions to meet therr specific
requrements From the design and
installaton of aur plants through ther
eventual decommissioning, our lighly
trained engineers and support staff stationed
across the globe provide our clients with
reliable 24/7/365 service and uninterrupted
power capacity APR Energy s solutions
are customised to accommodate customer
requirements respectve to apphcation,
scale, generation technolagy preference
fuel type voltage range and configuration
needed to fit a given site

As part of our full turnkey power solution,
APR Energy provides a comprehensive
Balance of Plant oftering that 1s tailored lo
each site and to each customer's urque
requirements Frorn transmission technology
to rernocte monitonng capabifiies the
anciliary equipment we provide plays a
cnticat role in maxmising power delivery to
our clients while minimising downtime and
operating costs To assess full requirements
of each site, APR Energy s project engineers
and techrnical experts work closely with the

customer and local entities to conduct site
analysis and evaluation considenng factors
such as space avalabilty, preferred fuel
type allitude chmate, and delivery vollage

Within our turnkey solution Balance of
Plant and ancllary equipment offerings may
inciude

# Design and commussioning of
substations, transformers and other
electncal infrastructure

& Fuel storage, offioading transfer, and
efficiency monitonng

e Deployment of all necessary supporting
infrastructure including mobile offices,
mobile mantenance containers, mobile
housing water power, and clirmate control

e Secunty perimeter with CCTV and secunty
personnel

# Remote monitonng capabibties including
ol temperature, coolant temperature,
turbo temperature fuel levels power
relays and gnd information

e Remote switching between grid mode
and 1sland mode

Advanced technology

APR Energy s young, diverse fleet offers
customers the broadest choice of power
generation technologies in the market today
incluchng fuel-flexsble mobile gas turbines
and the latest-generation reciprocating
diesel and natural gas generators The
diversity of our fleet enables us to match
customers specific requirements related to
fuel type voltage range, power generation
technology scale, and power density

Using our modular bullding system, APR Energy
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Installed a 32MW plant in Oman i under two weeks




The young age of our fleet enables us to
prowide our clients with reliable power

a cleaner operation, and greater fuel
efficiency Qur technology offers the latest
advancements in reliability fuel efficiency,
and emissions contrel while providing
remote automation and monitonng
capabilities and automatic reactive power
control for voltage support and gnd stability

Through our strategic suppilier relationships
with GE and Caterpiilar Inc  two of the
world s leaders in mobile power generation
technology we offer the clear wisibility of an
integrated supply line capable of fulfiling
the diverse needs of the growing fast-track
power market

Fuel efficlency

When it comes to power generation fuel
represents one of the highest operating costs,
which is why APR Energy has placed a heavy
focus on fuel eficency With the youngest,
most advanced fleet in the industry APR
Energy 1s uniquely positioned to utilise some
of the most fuel-efficient mobile technology
avalable in cur market today thereby helping
customers reduce the overall total cost of
therr power projects As the price and volatility

of fuel continues to nse  so will the need for
more fuel-eficient solutions To meet this
demand, APR Energy continues to invest
N advanced technology and innovative
engineerng that help customers operate
more profitably and efficientty

Emissions control

Al APR Energy we cantinuously strive

10 find new ways Lo lower our emISsIONs
footprint Given the young age of our fleet
and 1ts flexibility in terms of technofogy
and fuel-type, we are able to provide
some of the cleanest solutions avalable
in the fast-track power industry today

All our equipment 1s designed to caomply
with emissions standards set forth by The
World Bank We apply advanced mitigation
techniques where more stringent emissions
levels are required for local markets Qur
generalng equipment 1S controlled by
state-of-the-art electronic engine and
generator management systems, which
are avtomated to increase flexitility and
decrease emissions levels This means
no matter where our clients need us, we
can deliver optimised emissions solutions
tallcred for each appiication

Duning a contract, APR Energy provides all engineerng,
procurement, and construction, including a turnkey suite of services

tallored to customer need

Site and civil

From civil and foundation work to penmeter fencing ighting and comprehensive secunty
systems, APR Energy can provide all site preparation work for each power project We
also provide ali necessary control rooms, offices, workshops, and warehousing 1o mantain

optimal operation of the plant

Mechamical

APR Energy can supply all equipment necessary for fuelling the operation of our power
generation equipment Our systems include all piping pumping and fittenng as well
as continuous metenng to help ensure the performance of the equipment 1s closely

moenitored

Electncal

At each site, APR Energy provides a complete electrical system in order to meet the
customer s design specifications This includes all cabling, protection and metenng, as
well as a custom-designed ground gnd and any required step-up transformers

Advanced controls

APR Energy utiises advanced controls systems via satelite uphnk, using remote control
and monitonng systems along with project specific utility relaying We also supply all

protection and operational interfaces
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Indonesia Leveraging the newest generation diesef
power modutes from CAT APR Energy was able to
provde significant fuel efficiency cost savings

operabng
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Our business

Our technology

Maobile gas turbines

As the world's leading provider of fast-track
mobile turbine power APR Energy uses
some of the most rapidly deployable and
rehable mobite gas turbine technology n
the market today The term 'gas’ in therr
name comes not from the fuel the turbines
consume {although they can operate on
natural gas), but from the gas compres-
sion (mostly air) which dnives the turbine
Using the same aero-dervative technology
found in many jet arliners APR Energy s
mabile gas turbines are hughly rehable
They require much less maintenance, and
produce significantly less emissions than
therr reciprocating engine counterpars

The hugh power density and reliability of these
units allows APR Energy to deiver scalable
solutions of 400MW or more that can integrate
Mo exsting infrastructure and operate on a
semi-permanent basis A key advantage of

a mobile turbing sclution 1s the fuel flexibility

it brings with the ability to switch seamlessly

between diesel and natural gas Mobile
turbines also produce sigruficantly less
ermissions than reciprocating engine solutions,
making them a gaod fit for emaranmentally
conscious customers and developad markets
with stnngent regulatory controls

APR Energy's mobile turbine fleet features
the GE TM2500+ ™ The power-dense turbing
15 capable of producing up to 30MW of power
- the equivalent of approximately 18 - 30
diesel or gas reciprocating generators —
and 1s quick to dispatch, achieving full power
in less than 10 minutes The TM2500+ can
be easily transported anywhere In the

world and set up on a significantly smaller
foctpnnt than an equvalent-MW
reciprocating generatar plant

Through our strategic allance with GE,

a worlc leader In turbine technology

APR Energy has access 1c the fleet and
technology needed to grow Inte the long-term

APR Energy s mobile turbine fleet features the GE TM2500+™ one ol the world 8 Jeading gas furbine solutions
for fast-track apphcations

Mobile gas turbine

Reliable, low emissions and
fusl-efficient engine

Installation in less thjn 24 hours

Easily transportable by

ground, ocean or air

No foundathon or concrete pad required
Remote operaton

gglgrlgl_piack start capabilities

Dual fuel natural gas and hquid fuels
Dual frequency 50/60Hz

Gas power module

Rugged and robust construction
Automatic or manual paralleling

Diesel and natural
gas power modules

The APR Energy diesel power module 1s an
industry leader in terms of fuel efficiency
rehability, and emissions control while the
APR Energy gas power module 1s one of the
most reliable and fuel-efficient natural gas
power module packages within the fast-track
power industry These seliable and compact
modules can support a wide range of utility
and industnal power generaton applications
Whether operating continuously in base
load or as part of a peaking plant, these
generators comiined with APR Energy s
comprehensive operaticn and mantanance
support, help ensure a reliable and efficient
supply of electnicity 10 our customers

Thanks to our global framewoerk agreement
with Caterpiliar Inc |, one of the world s
best-known heavy equipment brands, and
CAT® dealer Ring Power, APR Energy 1s
able to source Caterpillar's ciesel and gas
reciprocating power modules at benefical
pnang The partnership enables us to
maintain a robust fleet infrastructure to help
fulfil project spportunities, gives APR Energy
clear wisibility to Caterpillar s ntegrated suppty
chain and provides us ready access to its
world-class aftermarket sales and support

Diesel power module

Behgbl_e ang _fllle| eﬁ:cuentﬁgq@e

Rugged and robust construction

Automatic or manual paraileling

Automatic loading controf

Automatic leading control

Local or remote aperation

Local or remote oparation

High ambient operating conditions

Low emissions

Low emissions

Fuel type diesel

Fuel type natural gas
Dual frequency 50/60Hz
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Our competencies

APR Energy designs and
assembles its own control
panels, which provide our
power plants with remote
controls and monitonng
capabilities

Power project development

APR Energy s business development team
compnses expenenced power project
developers, not equipment salespeople
APR Energy project developers are
know'edgeable across all aspects of
project develocpment project financing
engineenng procurement and construction
(EPC), and operations | ocated within their
gecgraphic markets, our teams build long-
term relationships by understanding local
market needs and identfying solutions that
best serve the needs of our customers

Global experience

APR Energy has installed over 2 5GW

of power capacity across more than 25
countnes around the world Our full-service
distribution hubs in Dubai, Panama and
Malaysia give us proximity to our key
markets, and enable us to rapidly deploy
compiete, large-scale turnkey power plants
Qur highly skilled people have expenence
executng projects across all corners of
the globe and speak over 25 different
languages With a flexible workforce
stationed across the Amencas, Africa, the
Middle East, and Asia, APR Energy can
rapidly moblise to meet urgent needs
anywhere n the world

Advanced plant design and
engineering

APR Energy s experienced engineering
team designs turnkey plants that scale to
over 400MW and configure them to meet
our customers' unigue requirements Each
APR Energy power solution has been
developed to enable rapid mobilisation and
installation, while ensurning performance
that cperationally meets all guaranteed
avallabiity and efficiency requirements
throughout the ife of a project The
propretary systems and technology we
develop enable us to remotely control

and mgnitor each plant optimise site

and infrastructure, increase generation
efficiency and reduce emissions This
attention to engineening detait and system
compatibihty ensures that the power plant,
Its inferconnection point, and the ultimate
qualty of the delivered electricity meet
customers expectanons

Mobillisation and logistics
QCur highly developed processes integrate
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across all logistics, planning, engineenng,
installation, tegat, and commercial teams to
help ensure seamlass and rapid execution
Through parinerships with world-class
logistics companies, we are able to quickly
deploy our fleet via arr sea, or land In
addition through our proprietary, modular
bulding system, we are able o deploy
install, and demobilise plants with the
highest level of speed and efficiency

An experienced management
team

APR Energy benefits from a stroeng and
expenenced management team led by
the co-founders of the business John
Campion and Laurence Anderson With
over 120 years of collective industry
experience our management team has a
sirong understanding of the globai power
market, its technologies, and the complex
nature of project delivary requirements
This extensive sector knowledge plays

an important part in maintaining long-
term relahonships with key customers
and supphers as well as being crucial to
achieving new contract wins
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Our strategy

Delivering value to our shareholders,
communities and people

APR Energy will achieve
its vision by driving
sustained growth and
operational excellence,
generating customer
value and developing
world-ciass infrastructure
and people

APR Energy's vision I1s to be the leading
provider of large-scale rapidly-deployed
power solulions We do this by providing
cost-efficient reliable electnicity, on a fast-
track basts where our customers need it

We leverage state-of-the-art technotogy and
incustry-leading expertise to provide fuei-
efficient turnkey power plants that are rapudly
deployed, customisable, and scalable

With a proven record of success a sole
focus on large-scale power projects around
the globe and a sirong balance sheet we
are confident in our ability to achieve our
vision We will buld upon our legacy of
trusted expertise, leading-edge technology,
and rapd deployment by carefully executing
our stratlegy for growth —the success of
which wil be measured against cur three
core strategic corporate objectives

Grow long-term shareholder value

We drve business growth that 1s consistent
and sustainable We effectively deploy
capital to expand our fleet and our global

footprnint — drving revenue, profit expansion
and long-term shareholder value We strive
for operational efficiencies, using process
innovation and improvements to lower costs
and improve margins

Help our customers

and their communities grow

The power and capacity APR Energy
pravides do more than just keep the Iights
on Our fast-track power solutions enable
economic and social pregress in the parts of
the world that need it the most As a trusted,
responsitle partner with our communities
we are proud of cur reputation as a good
corporate ciizen We will continue to support
the communities in which we operate and,
as always sinve to provide the highest level
of customer satisfaction

Develop our people and our capabilities
Our growth plans coupled with the complex
challenges facing our customers, require

a well-trained, highly motivated werkforce
with the ability to execute efiectively at a

APR Energy's vision 1s to be the leading global provider
of large-scale, rapidly-deployed power solutions

Strategic Objectives

Grow long-term

Help our customers

Develop our people

shargholder value and communities and our capabilihes
grow
Strategy \
i
Drive Strive for Generate Develop
sustaned operational customer world-class
growth excellence value infrastructure,
organisation
& skills
0T B e
Underpinned by... Driven by... ; Supported by... |
Enablers Competencies Strong governance

& skills
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global level APR Energy operates upon

a foundation of strong core values that
helps cultivate a work environment that
encourages giowth in skills capabilities,
and satisfaction We implement and utiise
global systerns and processes that help our
employees be successiul and accountable

Our strategic focus areas:

Drive sustained growth

Grow our mobile gas turbine business
Mobile gas turbines are an integral part of
APR Energy's growth strategy, providing a
stronger play nto more lucrative larger-
scale longer-term projects Through

our acquisiion of the GE Power Rental
Business in Cctober 2013, APR Energy

18 now the world's largest provider of
fast-track mecbile turbine power We

have deliberately chasen to differentiate
ourselves in the market threugh our
decision 1o Invest n this technology, which
now represents 56% of our total fleet mix

In companson to gas reciprocating

engines mokbkile gas turbine technology
prowdes greater rehability requires much
less mantenance, needs significantly fewer
people to cperate occupies a smaller
nstalled footprnnt per MW, and produces

a fraction of the emissions They also
provide the added flexibility of being able to
seamlessly switch between natural gas and
diesel fuel as needed by the customer

These aero-derivative turbines can each
produce up to 30MW of power and their
integrated high-density design radically
improves the speed and logistics of
transport They can be transported
anywhere n the world for prajects and
require approximately one-thurd of the
space as the equivalent number of
reciprocating generators

As aresult of these advantages, the mobile
gas turbine share of the fast-track power
market has grown rapidly over the last three
years, representing approxmately 20% of
alt deals since 2012, excluding projects in
the BRIC countnes For deals of 100MW
and greater mobile gas turbines reached
over a third of the market, with 138% CAGR
over a three-year penod Some of this
growth 1s due to fast-track power customers
shifting preference on technaiogies

However in many cases turbines have
expanded the playing field in our market
opening up opportunities with customers
who would have othenwise not considered
large-scale, fast-track power previously,
either due to emissions requirements,
scalg, space constrants or requirements
for fuel flexibility

Leverage the GE Strategic Allhance

In October 2013 APR Energy completed
a transformational deal with GE acquiring
GE s Power Rental Business in exchange
APR Energy slock and cash and enternng
into a tong-term strategic alhance The
deal created the world s leading fast-
track maobile turtine business, further
strengthening APR Energy s leadership
position In large-scale fast-irack power
and provided the Group with the fleet and
technology to support our growth plans
Into the long term The sirategic alhance
and equity commitment reflects GE s
endorsement of APR Energy s prospects to
lead the fast-track power space

APR Energy’s strategy with regards to
the GE strategic albance includes the
following

# Leverage the acquired GE turbine fleet
worldwide support services, and long-
term supply agreement tc focus further on
turbine opporiunities in both developed
and developing markets

# Use the GE brand to build crecibity for
APR Energy as the Group enters new
markets and posions its technology and
fast-track turnkey solutions

¢ Collaborate on business development
opportunities with GE where APR Energy
can offer complementary bridging power
solutions while permanent GE plants are
built

o Convert the acquired GE power rental
cantracts to APR Energy s full turnkey
contracts with add-1n services

Since the closing of the GE deal APR
Energy has signed a new 40MW contract

n Angola featurng GE turbines and has

also renewed its US Virgin islands contract,
assumed through the acquisition at
improved pnang censistent with APR Energy
histone turbine pricing levels

Gas turbine share (MW)
Fast-track power market
100MW + sized deals*

35

251

20

2010 201

Source Company analysis
* exciudes BRIC countnes

2012

2013
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Cur strategy

- |

Strategic benefits of the GE Power Rental Business
acquisition

Advances APR Energy towards its strategic vision to be the leader in large-
scale, rapidly deployed power

The acqusiton has made APR Energy the world s leacing suppler of fast-track mobile
turbine power Mobiie turbines play a key part of our strategy to focus on larger-scale
longer-term projects and have been a growth driver in our mdustry With the backing of
the GE brand name, a long-term supply agreement collaboration on opportunities, and
expansion of our global footprint, APR Energy 1s well positioned toe grow its leadership
position in the industry

Provides the technology and fleet capacity for growth

The acqusition has expanded APR Energy s turbine capacily by 520MW to 1 2GW,
creating the world's largest fleet of fast-track mobile gas turbines This together with
a long-term supply agreement that provides favorable terms and broader access

to techrical service and support around the globe, will support APR Energy's ability
to address growing demand for large-scale, fasi-track power The deal also has
diversified the Group s fleet, with over 50% having dual-fuel capabihty

Establishes a fong-term strateqic athance with GE

As aresult of the Acquisiion GE has become a sirategic shareholder in the Group
with approximately 16 5% of the share capital demonstrating GE's intent to assist In
value creation APR Energy has already begun benefiting from its GE Panner brand
designation Additionally since the allance provides us access to GE's sales and
commercial network, APR Energy benefits from the opportunity 1o complement GE's
longer-term projects with a fast-track offening leveraging GE technology

Expands and diversifies APR Energy’s global footprint

The GE deal included contracts n Australia, Bangladesn Canada, Irag, and the US,
Virgn Islands  expanding APR Energy s footpnint in both developing and developed
countrnes, and providing immediate access to key targeted markets The acquisition
also diversifies APR Energy's customer base and significantly enhances our natural
gas footprnnt with the majoniy of the turbine contracis betng acquired running on
natural gas

Enhanced cash generation
It1s expected that the enlarged busmess will have an enhanced cash generation profile
helping to contribute to the future de-leveraging of the Group's balance sheet
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; Advantages of mobile
' gas turbines

Scalable in large power blocks
Mobile gas turbines such as the GE
TM2500+ can deliver up to 30MW of
power per unit This 1s the equivalent of
anywhere from 15 to 25 reciprocating
engines Using multiple turbines, plants
can be configured easily to deliver more
than 400MW of power

Require less space

Due to its huigh power density, a mobile
turbine plant requires less than a third

of the space of an equivalent megawatt
diesel reciprocating engine plant This can
be a cntical consideration when sites have
imited space such as found at exsting
utility plant sites or in urban lacations

Fuel flexibility

The dual-fuel nature of mobile gas

turbines offer customers greater flexibiity !
as fuel avalabiity quality, or pricing
changes over tme, without the need for
changing equipment Customers cften
choose to start operations with readily-
avalable diesel fuel and then tater switch
to cheaper natural gas as reserves and
nfrastructure are developed

Semi-permanent technology

Maobile gas lurbines are highly durable
and integrate well into existing plant
infrastructure Since many power

piants already use gas turbines, utiities
are famiiar and comfortable with the
advanced technology Therr lang life
span, In contrast to reciprocating engine
generators, allows them to be installed on
a semi-permanent basis for longer-term
contracts

High mobility

A mayor advantage of mobile gas turbines
18 the mobility they provide They can

be rapidly fransponted by air or ocean
through ther containensed configuration
and can be quickly installed by APR
Energy into a turnkey power plant

Better for the environment

Mobiie gas turbines only produce a

fraction of the NO, and other pollutants

that diesel reciprocating engines

generate and significantly less noise In

many markets with strict environmentat

regulabions, iIncluding mast developed '
markets, turbines offer the most viable

large-scale fast-irack solution




Penetration of priority markets and
segments

APR Energy s strategy s io serve both
developed and developing markets

with the largest segments being large
sovereign and private utiities together
with power-intensive industnes such as
mining Customers located in high-growth
emerging, frontier, and underserved
markets reman a major focus Those
customers face a structural imbalance

in therr supply and demand of electricity
due to high growth, ageing mfrastructure,
lack of infrastructure investment, and/

or dependence on unreliable foreign or
hydroelectnic sources of electricity

Benefiting from our power-dense and low-
emissions turbines, APR Energy provides
a strong offenng for developed markets
that require bndging or backup power

due to decommissioning and renovations
of plants caused by ageing tightening
environmental regulations, and/or public
opposiion In addition to our pnmary
markets, APR Energy 1s ready and capable
to respond to event-driven requirements
and emergencies anywhere in world

Market expansion and diversification within
our priority markets whether by gecgraphy,
the industnes we serve, or the fuel types
our power solutions support are crtical for
our long-term growth This multi-faceted
diversrhication will enable us to expand

our revenue base in rapidly growing
hugh-demand, and untapped markets and
segments It will allow us to buld operating
efficencies with a greater scale in terms

of talem pools supply bases, and fleet In
addiion, by reducing dependency on any
single market or customer, ARPR Energy
will be In a stronger position to minimise
business political and economic risk,
which nturn, should reduce volatility and
variabibty in revenue over ime

Africa

Africa remains a strategically important
region far APR Energy We have engaged
In a number of fast-track turnkey power
projects throughout the western, eastern,
and southern regions of the continent
since 2006, including tn Angela, Botswana,
Burkina Faso, Gabon Libya Mal
Mozambique, Senegal and Tanzania We
see strong opportunibes n Afnca due to the
rapidly growng demand for electncity and
an acute lack of investment and planning
for permanent power plants

Rapid expansicn of the commodities,
minng and construchon industries 1s also
expected o drive economic growth and the
need far mare permanent power generation

infrastructure Many indusinal firms and
countries dependent an hydroelectncity
are also switching to off-gnd dedicated
power generahon faciiies to reduce lost
production caused by power (nterruptions
In addition regional dependence on
hydroetectnc resources makes the power
generation capacity of many Afncan
countries vulnerable to prolonged droughts

Our Dubai hub has positioned us well

to pursue new opportunities acress the
continert We continue our focus to secure
new contracts within Afnca which has
sigrificant natural gas reserves that present
good opportunities for our mobile gas
turbines In December 2013 APR Energy
anncunced ns first-ever mabile turbine
project in sub-Saharan Afrnca, a 40MW
plant in Angola which follows the Group's
execution of a 40MW plant using diesel
reciprocatng engines earlier in the year

The Middle East

Thus region offers strong growth potential
and continues to be a focus for new
strategic investment by the Group The
‘Arab Spring has created a number of
opportuniies for APR Energy's fast-track
power solutions throughout the region
These opportunittes are drniven by the need
for seasonal power, ageing and damaged
infrastructure, and shifting political cimate
Our Dubar hub and commercial office has
already played a key role in expanding our
footpnnt in the region, playing a key rote In
the development, deployment and support
of projects in Oman and Yemen

Ongoing infrastructure development,
industnal expansion in the energy and
chemicals sectors, and event-driven needs
are expected to dnve significant demand
growth 1n the region over the next few
decades According tothe EIA, numerous
‘mega’ petrochemical projects are currently
underway In Saudi Arabia Qatar, Kuwatt,
and the UAE

In 2012, the Gulf Cooperation Councit
region experenced large iNncreaseas In peak
demand due to an influx of refugees in
some countries, growth of the middle class,
and prevalence of subsidies This trend

1s set to continue with an-going poliical
strife and uprising Accorcing to the MEED
Insight Mena Power 2013 report, the Middle
East and North African region i1s facing
annual demand growth rates in excess of
10% cue to nsing populations ol prices
and high economic growth This demand
coupled with lack of tantf reform 15 pushing
utiibes to ind mmediate solutions and
nvest in new generation capacity to restore
or maintain therr 15% reserve margin

African power rental market

by end-use, 2011-2017

{$ millien)
| !
I | Utlihes
|
[b} Ol & Gas
|
1
i} Industrrat & Construction
1
E1 Quarrying & Minmg
I
'—!] Cithers
| \
o (=1 o
2 g 2 g
— — o
201N 02012 m 207

Source MarketsandMarkets 2012

Annual Report 2013 | APR Energy | 25

MIIAJBAD

SlUBLIRIBIS (BrLeUI4 uoday 1010010 souBILIOa]

UDITBLLION] JeYIO



Our strategy

Energy consumption by fuel
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The projected demand for fast-track and
bndging power within the Middle East
market represents great potential and
the demand for electrical capacity in this
dynamic region 15 piojected to increase
dramatically in the medium to long-term

Latin America and the Canbbean

Similar to Afnca Latin America's reliance on
hydroelectrtc power presents opportuniiies
for the deployment of mobile power
generation faciites Many regions have
expenenced widespread blackouts due to
power deficits and focal utihties routinety
schedule power tnterruptions In addition,
peor Investment in infrastructure and
steady economic growth has resuited in
inacdequate power generating resources

Representing one of the world s largest
markets for fast-track power, there are
large disparities in eleciricity access across
the countries of Latin American and the
Canbbean APR Energy has delivered
successiul power projects in Argenting,
Costa Rica, Ecuador, Hati, Martinique,
Peru, and Uruguay and, through the
acquisition of the GE Power Rental
Business the US Virgin Islands At the
same tme we see strong opporlunities

to prowde fast-frack and dedicated power
solutions for industries such as mining and
other extractive operations — a growing and
important secter in countnes like Brazil,
Chite and Peru

Asia-Pacific

The Asia-Pacific region has been one of the
fastest-groming markets for APR Energy
and remains a strategic pronty for Group
growth and investment Our regional huls
in Malaysia iogether with our commercial
office in Singapore, positions us weall for
further regional expansion In the region
Qur investment has helped us penetrate
strategically important markets in the
region including indenesia and Myanmar
APR Energy has had success in both

the utity and ndustnal sectors i other
Asian countries, including Sn Lanka, and
Japan — where we have demonstrated our
operational flexibility by delivering solutions
based upon both reciprocating engine
power modules and mobile gas turbines

Our GE strategic allance will serve as
a platform from which we can generate
additonal business in the region The
ncreasing availabity of natural gas
thraughaout this gecgraphy will help us
further dnive mobile gas turbing power
opportunities

Notwithstanding ambitious power
expansion plans, rapid consumption and
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demand n this region will strain efforts

o ensure rellable electnicity supply on a
conbinuous basis Already countnes like
indenesia with the largest economy in
Southeast Asia are jacing difficulties i
ensunng the reliabibty of its power delivery
anag ahstribution networks Ancther example
18 Myanmar where appraximately 75% ot
the population does not have access to
reliable power

Developed markets

Developed markets such as South Korea
Japan, the UK, Poland, and even the US
have a nsing need for bridging and backup
power generation This 1s being driven by
the decommisstoning and renovations

of plants due to ageing, tightening
environmental regulations and public
opposition to certain types of power

Due to stnct environmental regulations,
imited space and need for sntegration with
existing plants, mobile gas turbines are the
most attractive option for these customers
Benetitting from cur power-dense and
low-emissions turbines APR Energy
provides a strong scalable offenng for the
high megawatt demands of large utilties,
and offers the technology with which these
customers are most comfortable and
farmihar

industnal applications

Industrial custormers remain an mportant
segment for APR Energy, and provide
diversificatien for the Group s customer
base APR Energy will continue to target
large industnes, particularly Engineenng
Procurement and Construction (EPC),

ol and gas and extractive industries

The extractive industty e g mining 18
particularly attractive as it consumes high
amounts of efecinicity and often operates
In remote locations distant from the power
gnd Such companies need dedicated
power solutions (n order to mantam
production and optimise therr cperations

APR Energy s success in this secter
Includes projects delivered in Botswana
Guatemala, and Mozambique

The industnal sector 1s expected to remain
the largest electricity consumer of all
end-use sectors, accounting for over 40%
of total electneity demand in 2035 Due

to increasing electrification of industrial
processes, especially in non-OECD
countries, Industry electricity demand (s
expected to grow over 2% per year through
2035




APR Energy s fast-track mohile systerns
can provide electncity for space-restncted
facibes located far beyond the reach of
utifity power gnids Qur state-of-the-art
equipment and expenenced support teams
offer private and state-owned comparkes a
cost-effective and relable source of power
for even the most remote operations and
harshest conditrens

Locking ahead we see good opportunities
to grow our base of industnal customers

to include apphcations such as ol and gas
exploration, minng chemical processing
plants and other remote operations without
gnd access but where a reliable supply

of power 1s essential to a customer’s
operations

Penetrating the natural gas market

As part of our strategic growth strategy
APR Energy remains committed to
INcreasing Its natural gas pawer generaton
footpnnt As worldwide procuction of
natural gas continues to grow and as

both developed and developing countries
increase their production capacity, APR
Energy 1s well positioned to take advantage
of this readily available fuel source Qur
mobile gas turbines and gas reciprocating
engines offer customers a cleaner more
cost-effective, and lower impact option
Fuel cost 1s often a majer drniver for our
customers, and natural gas presents a
significantly cheaper alternative to diesel
fuel in many markets

Natural gas will continue to ptay an
increasingly vital role in the world s supply
of energy It 1s one of the cleanest and

most useful of all non-renewable energy
sources Compared 1o large-scale diesel
generators natural gas powered generators
can produce significantly lower amounts of
harmful ermissions such as NOx, particulate
matter, and poliutants

In its Worid Energy Qutlook 2011 the

|IEA forecasts the demand for natural gas
growing by 2% per year between 2009
and 2035 Natural gas offers significant
competitive advantages over other fuels

It 18 seen as economically more efficient
because only about 10% of the natural gas
produced 15 wasted before it 1s consumed
In addition, technological advances

are constantly improving effsciencies in
extraction transportation, and storage, as
well as in equipment that uses natural gas
such as APR Energy's mobile gas twibines

Develop the APR Energy brand

Our brand strategy is designed 1o present
the Group’s values and propositions in
ways that will help us dnve business attract

and retain the best people and increase
shareholder value Our brand promise,
Powenng Your Progress® captures the
benefits APR Energy provides for the
businesses and communities that depend
on our abiiity to provide power under even
the most extreme circumstances As we
continue 1o build our giobal footpnint, our
ability to generate awareness around our
capabilities and capture new business
oppoertunities is enhanced by our
continued succass in fostenng meanmgful
connechons with the communities we
serve

QOur brand strategy focuses on reaching
targeted customers n the places where
they look for information, creating relevant
content that demonstrates our expertise
and thought-leadership, and generating
conversation arcund the value our fast-
track turnkey power solutions can provide
We will continue to evolve and elevate our
brand presence (n pnanty regions and wll
further leverage the brand credibiity our GE
strategic alhance brings

Africa Energy Forum 2013

Economies
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Largest mineral producing
economies
by production value
{(in current $ miliion)

Country Production vatue

Australia 71955
China 62,281
Brazil 47 027
Chile 31,275
Russian Federation 28 680
South Africa 27,116
India 26,042
United States 22,957
Peru 18,832
Canada 13984
indonesia 12,225
Ukraine 9,283
Mexico B 361

Source Intemational Council on Mirung & Minerals
2012

Reserve lifetime of natural gas

(years)
Afrca
Asia Pacific
:m Europe & Eurasia
_ﬂ Middle East
I. 12 North Amenca
[ a3 | S & Cent Amenca

Source BP Stanstcal Review of World Energy 2013
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Our strategy

Operational excellence

APR Energy strives for operational
excellence in everything it does ophmising
speed, quality, and cost to deliver value o
both our customers and shareholders The
cornersiones to this strategy are speed of
execution technology feadership, scalable
global processes and structure anc
eficient management of assets

Speed of execution

Speed 15 a key driver behind our business
model Whatever the cause aloss or
deficiency of power can have a devastating
impact on communities and businesses

— quickly leading to negative economic
consequences detenoraling government
funchons and potential social unrest When
customers have a critical need for pawer,
they need a fast respense APR Energy
remams commtted to getting plant and
power capacity in place when and where
our customers need It MOst a commitment
we have achieved for over ten years

Key elements of this strategy

& A global network of equipment and
perscnnel, with the ability to fully deploy
a large-scale turnkay power plant with
bestin-class speed to anywhere in the
warld

& Access to one of the largest mobile
fleets in the industry including mobile
gas turbines that can be cost-effectively
shupped by air and rapidly installed to
deliver up to 30MW per unit — versus
1-2MW for a tradihonal reciprocating
engine

« Partnerships with world-class logistics
companies that offer far-reaching
logistical capatilitres and which are able
to deploy our fleet via arr sea or land

e Proprietary medular bulding systems
optimised for rapid and cost-efficient
mobilisation and installation ot scalable
plants

o Highly skilled electncal and mechanical
engineering capabiities, Including
propnetary gesigns and testing
methodologres, which allow us to meet a
wide range of customer needs, such as
high veltage and customn transmission ar
menitering and metenng systems

A highly skilled flexible workforce
stationed across the Americas Afnica
the Middie East and Asia, which can
be rapidly mobilised to meet urgent
customer needs

Highly developed, cross-functional
processes working searnlessly together
across cur commercial engineenng,
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financial legal, supply chain and HR
departments

e Effective project management integrating
and tracking all aspects of execution
including scheduling and cost

Technology leadership

For APR Energy, differentiation through
technology leadership remains a key part
of our strategy Our customers depend on
our fleet as a relable and efficient source
of power and capacity APR Energy seeks
to offer customers the most reliable and
technologically advanced and diverse
fleet in the industry, including mobile

gas iurbines and reciprocating-engine
diesel and natural gas power medules

By offering utiities and industries the best
and broadest choice of technology in the
ndustry we are able to expand the playing
field of opportunity, and provide solutions
that best serve our customers’ needs

Benefitting from the newest fleet In the
ndustry and APR s internally designed
monitornng and control systems we offer
leading-edge, "smart ' technology with
the latest advancements in reliakility,

fuel effrciency, and enmissions control,
while providing remote automation and
monitenng capabiities, and avtomatic
reactive power contro! for voltage support
and gnd stability Cur plants offer some
of the best fuel efficiencies in the industry
enabling us 1¢ provide our customers with
an overali lower cost of generation

Asset Management

With a business model that requires large
nvestments in fleet and balance of plant
efiective asset management is a vital

part of our overall operational excellence
strategy AFR Energy differentiates itself
through technology that offers the latest
advancements in fuel efficiency emissions,
and operation As part of this approach,
we make ongoing Investments 1N new
next-generation fleet 1o support our growth,
while retiring older equipment that reaches
the end of its useful life as appropnate

To protect cur investment, and to ensure
we continue to provide reliable electrcity
to our customers, we keep our fleet well
masntained through sinngent mantenance
regmes We also ensure we have the
trainng toeling, and logistics capabilities
In place to service effectively the fleet mix
Through our ability to collect operating data
on our equipment in real tme, we are able
to conduct research and development on
ways 10 operate our assets more efficiently
and effectively




Strategic Partnerships

Sourced through strategic partnership
agreements with GE and Caterpillar Inc

our power generation technology enables
us to deploy and service new, efficient units
that provide our clients with peace of mind
that they will have reliable power

APR Erergy's global framework
agreements with Caterpiltar, Inc , one of
the world s best-known heavy equipment
brands, and CAT® dealer Ring Power
enables us to source Caterpillar's diesel
and gas reciprocating power modules

at heneficial pncing These reliable and
compact modules feature some of the
latest reciprocating engine technology in
the market and can support a wide range
of ubity and industnal power generation
applicatons The partnership enables us
to mantan a robust fleet infrastructure
to help fulfil power plant opportunities,
gives us access to Caterpillar s world-
class aftermarket sales and support and
provides APR energy clear wsibility 1o
Caterpillar s integrated supply chain

As part of APR Energy’s acquisition of
the GE Power Rental Business and GE
strategic allrance, the Group has a long-
term supply and services agreement

for mobile gas turbines, including GE's
TM2500+ one of the leading mohiie
turbine products on the market The GE
agreement includes the oppartunity for
supply of related parts and services, and
on-going techrical support and training
As such, this agreement gives APR Energy
areliable supply of available fleet and
capacoity needed to support cur growth
ambitions into the leng term

Generate customer value

Given the broad range of customer needs,
which vary in terms of application site
conditions, scale, and fuel avalability, APR
Energy 1s flexible in working with each
customer's unique requirements APR
Energy balances speed guality service
and cost In ways designed to generate
customer value by providing solutions that
address fully our customers’ needs and
ultimately dnive therr satisfaction

As part of this strategy, APR Energy takes
a customer-centnic approach by combining
leading-edge technology with fast-track
instaltation around-the-clock service and
maintenance, and flexible plant design, to
provide our customers with customised,
turnkey solutions to meet ther specific
requirements Customers are able 1o
beneit quickly from rehable power —worry

free — without waiting for the up-front capital

investment needed for permanent facilities

Customer centnicity helps APR Energy buitd
a strong reputation in the industry and
drives loyalty Renewals are a key part of
our business, with over 80% of our 1nitial
contracts renewing for adcitional term

Key elements of this strategy include

& 24/7 Service and support
Through the turnkey nature of our plants,
APR Energy handles all cperation
mantenance and service This together
with skilled operators knowledgeable on
our plants and technology relieves our
customers from the day-to-day concerns
of running and maintaining a power
plant Also with a network of regional
hubs and commercial offices located in
our key markets we are able to respond
quickly to urgent customer needs,
wherever they may be

» Customised approach
APR Energy works with our cusiomers
to accommodate specific requirements
respective to application scale
generation: technology preference, fuel
type, voltage range, and cenfiguration
needed to fit a given site Depending
on each project s unique set of needs,
our customer-centnic staff works closely
on the ground to design and deliver a
turnkey process that includes mstallation,
operation anc mantenance services for
the entire life of the power project

« Scalabiity
APR Energy s strategy Is to focus on
larger-scale, longes-term projects which
in turn equate to higher value contracts
We design our plants to be scalable to
serve customers with high megawatt
needs Through our power-dense
mobile turbine technology and modular
building processes, our projects can be
readily scaled to over 400MW and can
be conhgured to meet our customers'
unigue requirements

Flexible technelogy offering

APR Energy offers custorners the
broadest choice of power generation
technologies in the market, including
diesel and natural gas power modules as
well as mobile gas turbines This choice
allows us to match each customer s
speafic requirements related to fuel
type voltage range, power generation
technology, scale, and power density
With our gas lurbines, we provide the
added flexibility of being able to switch
seamlessty between natural gas and
diesel fuel as needed by the customer
The energy efficiency of our fechnology
can also dnve an overall lower cost of
electncity generation for our customers
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Our strategy

Develop world-class
infrastructure, organisation
and people

Devetoping our people

With any rapidly growing company,
mantaining and growing a highly
motivated trained workforce 1s a top
pronty and I1s essential In order to meet
APR Energy's sirategic goals Over the
long-term, we will grow our global sales
engineenng, finance legal HR, marketing,
and logistics teams in order to meet the
nsing demand for turnkey fast-track power
projects To operate i the fast-paced,
unpredictable chmate of our market, it

1s cntical to have the nght people on the
ground In the regions we serve — armed
with all the resources they need to take
care of our customers As our business
contnues 1o grow and diversify, we will
provicie our staff with the motivanon,
traming and positive career incentives they
need to perform at the highest level This
will help ensure skill development provide
stabiity and minimise staff turnover

Expanding our regional presence

In order to support our objectives of

rapid solutions delivery and best-in-class
customer responsiveness, APR Energy will
continue to develop and expand iis global
footprint of regional hubs and offices The
investments we have already made have
helped us win new contracts and provide
some of the industry's fastest response
times for large-scale power projects

By stationing teams cof logtstics
purchasing and engineering statf on the
ground in the regions 1N which we cperate,
APR Energy can provide customers the
kind of informed, responsive partner they
need and expect In addition to further
developing our distribution and senvice
hubs, we will continue to develop cur
regional cemmercial offices to help us to
better serve and respond to our customers
sidy atluned to the local markets buiid
strategic busmness relationships, and serve
as a base for developing new projects

Our global network of fleet and service
offices serve as vital hubs for quickly
responding to new business opporiunities
and the needs of customers around the
world To expand our market presence
In sirategic markets we operate facilities
in Panama, Dubal, and Malaysia These
full-service hubs house APR Energy's
expanding fleet of power generators
and transmission units — enabling rapid
deployment and technical support at a
moment’s notice
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Finance and administration

We continue to invest in our accounting and
finance function to strengthen the skills
expenence and depth of our team while
drving significant improvernent across our
process reporting and analytical systems
We have complemented this with key hires
n the areas of tax treasury, and investor
relatrons, as well as establishing regional
finance teams We have also enhanced the
support finance provides to our operations
teams thraughout the Iifecycle of our
projects including the early stages of bid
cempilation and approval ongoing project
cost contral and ongoing local support to
our project teams via our regional inance
teams

In December, the Group established

an internal audit function, including the
appainiment of a senior experienced
indimidual as the lead of our internal
audit function The primary responsibility
of internal audit 1s 10 provide objective
assurance and consutting services
designed to help the Group accomplish
its objectives by bringing a systematic,
disciplined approach to evaluate

anc improve the effectveness of risk
management control, and governance
processes




‘| was marvelled with
the response that this
company has given We
now begin a commercial
stage In which we are
strategic partners With
the avalability of these
machines, we will supply
the demand in Uruguay
and it will allow us to
optimise our system
Sincerely, with APR we
have had a very good
expenence "

Gonzalo Casaravilla
President of UTE

www.aprenergy com/uruguay bridging power

_Permanent
Ia.lTE plant -

Strategy in action

The electncity sector of Uruguay 1s largely
based on demestic hydropower Thus leaves
the country vulnerable to seasonat ranfall
patterns and often requires importation

of electricity from its neighbbours  Urgently
needing a strategic defence agamst hydro
dependency until & new power plant could
be constructed, Uruguay's national utility,
UTE, contracted with APR Energy in 2012
for an inial 100MW turnkey plant The
utility had a strong preference for dual-

fuel gas turbines given its familiarity with
the technology and the country's strict
envronmental regulations It also needed a
solution that would integrate into its current
site and infrastruciure

Pleased with APR Energy's solutions and
technology UTE contracted APR Energy for
an additional 200MW, installed in early 2013
across two sites Through the fast-track
depioyment, eight mobile turbines travelled
via a mix of ocean and arr freight to meet
aught operational schedute The full
lurmkey 100MW solution at Punta del Tigre
commenced operations N May, bringing
APR Energy's total capacity at the site to
200MW The 100MW plant at La Tablada,
which became operational in Apnil includes
150kV substaton equipment for pratection
and metering

The semi permanent plants mtegrate
seamlessly nto UTE's existing infrastructure
and utlise demineralised water solutions 1o
comply fully wath Uruguay s strict emissions
standards The plants are run as needed
for peaking power and backup generation
APR Energy now represents 30% of
Uruguay s backup thermal generation

and has helped the country become self-
sufficient w1 power production for the first
fime in 15 years
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Qur strategy

www.apranergy com/lbya large-scale-fast track power

The 450MW project in
Libya spans across six
sites, involves multiple
technologies, and was
delivered within a very
tight schedule to meet the
customer’'s requirements

Strategy in action

As Libya worked to buld and repair its
power infrastructure, APR Energy was there
to help the Libyan people keep the ights
on [nMarch 2013, APR signed with the
Libyan government what would become the
largest single contract ever in the fast-track
power industry Executed across six plant
sites In the western and southern parts of
the country, the 450MW solution included
250MW of dual-fuel mobile gas turbines
and 200MW of fuel-efiicient diesel power
modules

Using APR Energy’s regional hubs in
Malaysia, Dubal, and Panama, our logistics
team mobilised and routed the equipment
through three Libyan seaports and three
Libyan airports to ultimately make delivenes
o the six sites The enormous size of the
project required shipment of over 8,000 line
items and included 76 transformers and 21
tota! substations Cantrol reoms complete
with [T systems were delivered to each

site as were fuel distnbution systems and
fuel storage facilittes Two of the remote
desert sites included man-camps with iving
facilities

Oespite a challenging socio-political
envirenment extreme climatic conditons and
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installation over the holy month of Ramadan,
APR Energy successfully commissicned
450MW of generation capacity across the

six plant sites within 75 days from the time
equipment amved at the various sea and ar
ports in Libya The electnaity that 1s generated
powers approximately one million Libyan
homes helping the country develop its new
economy and stay connecied with the world




Key Performance Indicators

The Directors regularly review these key performance indicators in managing the
business and measuring the Group's performance

Capacity (MW)

2015 I 2,074
2012 1,311
201 900

‘Capacity’ represents the aggregate
megawatt capacity that APR Energy s power
generating equipment Including both owned
and leased equipment, would be capable of
delivenng when operating at 100% of ther
power output

The Directors consider commitied capacity

ta be an mportant indicator of APR Energy’s
revenue generating capability

Adjusted EBITDA margin (%)

2013 I 59°-
2012 . T ' se%
o1 LT ERET T N7 g

Adjusted EBITDA margin represents adjusted
EBITDA, as defined, dwvided by revenue

The Directors consider Adjusted EBITDA
margm to be an ymportant indicator because
it demonstrates the Groups underlying
operating profitability

Order book (MW-Months)

2013 I 15730
2012 ) i 11,592

oL 6429

Order book represents contracted future
orders expressed as megawatt menths

The Directors consider order book to be an
important ndicator of APR Energy's secured
fulure revenue

Adjusted ROCE (%)
2013 8%

2012 _ o 11%
2011[-5.3 T e ¥ @ 5 or) 17%

Adjusted retum on capital empioyed
represents cperating profit for the previous
twelve months adjusted to add back
amortisation of intangible assets and
exceptonal items dividend by the average of
the net operating assets at the three balance
sheet dates (for example, for 31 Decemiber
2013 this compnsed 31 December 2013

30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012) 'Net
operating assets’ 1s defined as total eguity
adjusted 1o exclude goodwill, intangible
assets, borrowings, Founders shares and
secunties, deferred tax assets and liabilites
and current tax assets and habilities

In a capital Intensive business such as APR
Energy, ROCE provides a measure that
reflects both margin performance and capital
productmty

Adjusted EBITDA ($m)

Adjusted EBITDA represents operating

profit adjusted to add back depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, equity settled
share-based payment expense amortisation
of intangbie assets and excepunonal items
Excepbonal tems are those iters believed to
be exceptional in nature by virtue of size and/
of incidence

The Directors consider Adjusted EBITDA to

be an important indicator because it provides
a proxy for free cash generation

Adjusted Earnings per share ($)

2013 A 050
2 T T
201+ BEREE

“Zoes

0.52

Adjusted earmings per share represents
adjusted net income dvded by the weighted
average number of orchinary shares The
weighted average number of ordinary shares
used to calculate the 2043 Adjusied EPS was
80 1m (2012 78 2m, 2011 78 2m)

The Directors consicder earnings per share
to be an important indicator as it provides a
comparable means to measure the returns
the Group generates for its shareholders

The Directors have included these measures because they are used by the Group in managing the business and measuring the Group's core
performance These measures will also be beneficial io potential Investors in understanding the Group’s business However, the figures disclosed
herein may not be comparable to similarly btled measures disclosed by other companies as non-IFRS measures are not uniformiy defined
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Financial Review

Reported Reported Adjusted Adjusted
2013 2012 2013 2012
$ million {Audted) (Audited) {Unaudied) {Unaudited)
Revenue 3083 2657 308 3 2657
Cost of sales (197 3) (165 0) (187 3) (165 0)
Amortsation of intangible assets (8 8) (58 0) - -
Gross profit 102 2 427 1110 1007
Selling, general and administrative expenses (332) {33 5) (33 2) (33 5)
Operating profit 690 92 778 67 2
Acqusition related costs (14 4) - - -
Founder secunties revaluation (33) {102) - -
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain 04 04 (0 4) 04
Finance income 02 03 02 03
Finance costs {23 6) 46) (21 6) (4 6)
Profit/(loss) belore taxation 275 (4 9) 560 633
Taxation 77 {100) 77 {100
Profit/(loss) for the year 198 (14 9) 48 3 533
Total comprehensive profit/{loss) for the year 198 (14 9) 48 3 533
Earnings per share
Basic earmngs per share $024 (80 19) $0 60 $0 68
Diiuted earmings per share $0 24 {30 19) $0 59 $0 68

On 28 October 2013 APR Energy completed the acquisition of the GE Power Rental Business in accordance with IFRS 13 Farr Value
Measurement the value of the transachon reflected the closing share price at completion of 1,155p per share As a result, for accounting
purposes, tolal censideration was $362 million reflecting the 1ssuance of 15,453,129 million new Ordinary Shares and $73 million in cash
as recognised ik the financial statements

The Group recognised the provisional far value of identifiable assets and habilities relating to thrs transaction in accordance with IFRS 3
Business Combinations Further details can be found in Note 29 Acquisition of Subsidianes’

Adjusted financial results and performance review

To provide Investors with greater clanty on the performance of the Group adjusted unaudited financial information has been prepared to show
the results for the Group excluding certain items amoertisation of intangibles, Founder securties revaluation movements, and GE related
transaction and integration costs The adjusted unaudited financral information has been prepared as follows

Revenue Operating Profit for

& mithon profit the year
12 month statutory results to 31 December 2013 3083 69.0 198
Amortisation of intangible assets - 88 88
Founder secunties revaluation - - a3
Acquisition related costs - - 144
Acquisition related finance costs - - 20
12 month adjusted results to 31 December 2013 3083 778 483 3
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Revenue Operating Profit for

$ milron profit the year
12 month statutory results to 31 December 2012 2657 82 (14 9)
Amortisation of intangible assets - 580 580
Founder secunties revaluation - - 102
12 month adjusted results to 31 December 2012 265 7 672 533

Revenues for the year increased 16% to $308 3 milkon (2012 $265 7 million) dnven pnmanly by new contract wins contract extensions and
high utiisation leveis on an enlarged fleet, folowing the commussioning of a number of signiicant coniracts dunng the year The timing of these
projects becoming operational resulted N revenue being heawily skewed to the second half of the year, as expected

Revenue included $ milion {2012 $nl) from the GE business post acquisitton and $14 millilon ansing from the finance lease accourting In
cannection with the planned disposal of assels n Botswana Excluding these items, revenue increased 7% year on year

Adjusted operating profit increased 16% ta $77 8 milhion (2012 $67 2 milkon) reflecting the higher revenue and gross profit offset by
proportionally lower selling general and administrative expenses The depreciation charge as a perceniage of revenue remans in line with the
previous year and reflects capital expenditure on the fleet dunng the year

Adjusted net interest expense for the year was $21 4 milion (2012 $4 3 millon) reflecting drawings made on the enlarged credit facility as part
of the purchase of fleet capitat expenditure, the tming of recelpt of recevables and the $150 million term-loan drawn down in May 2013 This
excludes the cash consideraton of $73 million (2012 $nil) for the GE acquisition and fees associated with the addibonal $100 million term-toan

The 2013 tax charge on &n adjusted basis was $7 7 muficn {2012 $10 0 million), reflecting an effective tax rate on adjusted profit before tax of
14% {2012 16%) The reduction in the effective tax rate reflects the Group booking previously unrecogrised tax losses in the UK as a result of
contract wins during the year

Adjusted profit for the year was $48 3 million (2012 $53 3 millon) reflecting the increased adjusted operating proft, offset by the higher
adjusted net interest expense

Adjusted basic earnings per share were $0 60 {2012 $0 68) based on a weighted average number of shares of 81 0 milion {2012 78 2 million
shares) Adjusted diuted earmings per share were $0 59 (2012 $0 68) based on a weighted average number of shares of 81 8 milion (2012
78 2 milhon shares)

Adjusted EBITDA increased 15% to $181 2 mithon (2012 $157 0 mullion), resulting i an adusted EBITDA margin of 59% (2012 59%)

As at 31 Decemnber 2013 total fleet capacity was 2 074MW, an increase of over 58% compared to 31 December 2012 {1 311MW) reflecting the
520MW of addibonaf capacity acquired through the GE power rental acguisition and 335MW of gross organic capacity expansion, funded by
fleet capital expenditure of $294 million (2012 $317 million)

Fleet capital expenditure of $294 million (2012 $317 milltlon) excluding assets acquired through the GE acquisition reflects fleet investment
prmanly 1N mobile gas turbines resuiting 10 gross organic fleet capacity expansion of 335MW to support new projects wins

As part of the renewal of the 70MW contract in Botswana in late December, APR Energy has agreed (o sell its 70MW installed fleet to the
customer The transachon has been treated as a finance lease, with the sale recogmsed n December 2013, and with the legal transfer

of assets expected 1o occur post the end of the existing contract n Q4 2014 The sale represents a mutually atiractive opportunity for the
customer to supplement thewr owned diesel reciprocating pawer in country while enabling APR Energy to dispose of legacy equipment In the
ntenm we continue our strong refationship with the Boilswana Power Corporation
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Financial Review

Financing and bank facilities
The Group has commenced discussions with its existing group of relationship banks regarding its refinancing strategy and expects to execute
this strategy over the coming nine months, in hght of the term-loan which matures on 1 January 2015

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had gross debt of $590 milian (excluding capitalised finance costs) (31 December 2012 $205 million}
and cash of $34 million (31 December 2012 $21 million), resulting 1n a net debt of $556 millon {31 December 2012 $184 mition) This net
debt posiion partially reflects the ttming of the receipt of recervables (n respect of the Libyan contracts Recevables of $100 million have been
received in respect of the Libyan contract since coniract commencement As previously communicated, Management continues to focus on
cash management and balance sheet efficiency The Group s bad debt posiion s unchanged and in ine with historical low tevels representing
less than 1% of total receivables

Adjusted Return on Capital Employed

Adjusted Return on Capital Employed (ROGCE) 1s a key performance metric for the business Given the significant iIncrease in net operating
assets associated with the growth of the busmess adjusted ROCE decreased to 8% (2012 11%), pnmanty reflecting the tming of the
significant asset increase including the 520MW acquired through the GE acquisition in the fourth quarter

Currencies
Nearly all operating costs are matched with corresponding revenues of the same currency and as such there 1s minimal transactional currency
nsk in the Group

Reconciliation of adjusted operating profit to adjusted EBITDA: ,

Adjusted Adjusted \
& muhon 2013 2012
Adjusted operating profit 77.8 67 2
Depreciation 990 863
Equity-settled share-based payment expense 44 35
Adjusted EBITDA 181 2 157 0

Statutory financial results and performance review
The statutory results for APR Energy covers the year ended 31 December 2013

Revenue
Revenue for the year was $308 3 milion (2012 $265 7 milion) as descnbed abave

Operating profit
Reported operating profit was $63 0 million (2012 $8 2m) reflecting increased revenues and the lower charge ansing from the impact of the
amortisation of intangible assets

Acquisition related costs
Expenses of $14 4 million (2012 $nil} were recognised in respect of the transaction and integration fees associated with the GE acquisition,
which completed durning the year

Amortisation of intangible assets

As aresult of the GE acquisition the Group completed a provisional fair value analysis of tangible and intangible assets and habilites acquired
Combined wih historic intangibles, this resulted in the recognition of a charge of $8 8 million (2012 $58 0 million) Included within this amount
for 2013 1s atotat of $3 2 milkon 2012 $nil) of amortisation expense related 1o ntangible assets asscciated with the GE acquisition

Bad debt expense

In determining the recoverability of a irade recevable, the Group considers any change in the credit guality of the trade recevable from the date
credit was iniially granted up to the end of the reporting pencd  There is a concentrangan of credit sk because there are a hmited number of
customers and as at 31 December 2013 the twoe indmidually significant aggregate amounts owed by individual customers were $65 million and
$15 mulkon (2012 $16 millon and $10 milion) The nisk associated with Individual customers 18 rmiigated by the letters of credit we obtain from
customers on commencement of a contract Management reviews concentration credit nsk on a regular basis and ensures that where the net
exposure exceeds certain thresholds appropriate actions are taken This 1s done on a customer by customer basis and takes account of the
billng terms letters of credt and local custorns and practices Bad debt expense was $nil milhon in the perod (2012 net credit of $1 5 millon)
reflecting the Group's use of letters of credit contract insurance poiicies and up front deposits to support receipt of contract revenues
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Share-based payments
In accordance with IFRS 2, a non-cash charge of $4 4 millon (2012 $3 4 milion} was recognised related 1o equity-settled share-based
payment transactions This expense relates to equity grants made under the Company s Performance Share Plans

Interest and finance cost

Net interest expense for the year was $23 4 million (2012 $4 3 million) reflecting drawings made on the enlargec credit facility as part of
the purchase of fleet capital expenditure the hming of receipt of recevables, the cash consideration of $73 millon (2012 $nil) for the GE
acquisition and fees associated with the enlarged facility

Taxation
The Group s reported tax charge for the year was $7 7 million (2012 $10 0 millon) The charge pnmanty caompnses withholding taxes of $3 2
million (2012 $4 8 million) and foreign ncome taxes in overseas junisdichons of $4 5 millien (2012 $6 7 mullion)

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share was $0 24 (2012 loss per share of $0 19) based on a werghted average number of shares of 81 ¢ milion (2012 78 2
milion shares) Diluted earmings per share was 30 24 (2012 loss per share of 30 18) based on a weighted average number of shares of 81 9
milion (2012 78 2 mullion shares)

Liquidity and capital resources

Net debt (excluding capitalised finance fees ¢t $10 7 million) as at 31 December 2013 was $556 1 millon (2012 $184 0 mithon) This reflects
the Group's continued investment i its fleet and 1s consistent with the Group strategy A summary analysis of cash flows 1s set out In the table
pelow

$ mifhon 2013 2012
Net cash from operating activities 578 117 3
Net cash used in mnvesting activities (410 8) (347 1)
Net cash from financing activities 365 9 187 8
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 129 (42 0)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginring of the year 210 630
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 339 210

Dunng the penod net cash fiow from operating actviies 1otalied $67 8 mifion (2092 $117 3 mithon} The reducton refiected imvestments 1n
working capital as a result of the signficantly higher activity dunng the second half and the acquisition of the GE business in October 2013

Cash flow used In Investing actmties pnmarnly compnsed the increased purchases of property plant and equipment due to higher levels of
organic investment in the fieet and increased mobilisation costs ansing from projects commencing operations dunng the year and the $73 1
mmilion due to the acquisihion of the GE Power Rental Business

Cash from financing activities included a net $385 0 million of debt draw-downs The cash balance at year end was maintained at a level
commensurate with the month ahead forecasted cash flows plus leaving a sufficient amount of cash on hand 1o cover any eventuahtes and
to minimise borrowing costs

Acquisition of the GE Power Rental Business

On 28 Qctober 2013, the Group acquired the GE Power Rental Business The total consideration for the acquisition was $361 5 million payabie
in cash ($73 1 millon) on completion and 15,453,129 ordinary shares allotted and issued credited as fully paid up to the sellers The farr value
of this share 1ssue was $288 4 milicn which was eqgual to the share pnce on the closing date of the transaction muttipked by the number of
shares issued The GE Power Rental Business contnbuted $2 2 million revenue and $2 4 million to the Group's profit for the penod between the
date of acquisition and the 31 December 2013 Further details can be found N Note 29 ‘Acquisition of Subsidianes’

Statement of financial position

As at 31 December 2013 the Group had goodwill of $622 6 millen (2012 $547 1 million}, the increase reflecting goodwill of $75 5 million
acquired through the acquisition of the GE Power Rentat Business in Cctober 2013 Furlher details can be found in Note 29 *Acquisition of
Subsidianes’
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Financial Review

Property, plant and equipment

As at 31 Decemnber 2013, the Group held property plant and equiprnent of $1,194 3 million (2012 $671 5 million), reflecting significant
additicns of $536 2 mulion including $242 3 million ansing from the acquisition of the GE Power Rental Business and $293 9 million from fleet
capital expenditure Disposais of $14 4 milion (2012 $0 4 mition) prmarily relate to the expected sale via a finance lease of 7OMW of legacy
dresel reciprocating power modules in Botswana as part of the December 2013 renewal

Equity
As at 31 Decemnber 2013, the Group's total equity ncreased 28% to $1,396 6 milion (31 December 2012 $1 031 8 millon) pancipally as a
result of the share capital Issuance in respect of the GE acquisition of $286 6 million, and the profit for the year

Treasury policies and nsk management

The Group's activities give nse to a number of financial nsks, particularly market nsk compnsing foreign exchange and interast rate nisk, credit
nsk, hquidity nisk and capital nsk management

Market nsk

Market nisk includes foreign exchange nsk and interest rate nsk The Group seeks to manage these nsks 1o acceptable levels by mantaning
appropniate policies and procedures In its determination to enter into a contract, the Group will carry out a nsk assessment and determine the
approprate nsk miigation strategies Market risk also includes the nisk that cash denved from income for services fulfilled under contract terms
will become restricted and not available for use in the on-going actvities of the business

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has an expesure to transachicnal foreign exchange from purchases or sales in currencies other than US dollars In order to minmmise
exposure 1o forergn exchange nsk, the Group primanly contracts in US doflars or in contracts with a price based on US dollars at the date of
transachion or payment if possible Insome cases the Group fransacts in local currencres when purchasing matenals and supplies for project
aperations

In imited circumstances, the Group may use denvative instruments to economically hedge against forsign exchange nsk Any hedges are
imited In duration and correspond to the applicable contract payments or receipts to which the denvalives are associated

Interest rate risk

The Group 1s pnmarnly exposed to Interest rate nsk on i1s borrowings  Borrowings 1ssued at vanable rates expose the Group to cash flow
Interest rate nsk Borrowings ssued at fixed rates expose the Group to farr vatue interest rate nsk When applicable, the Group may elect to
hedge interest rate nsk associated with debt or borrowings under the creds facility by purchasing dernvative instruments  As at 21 December
2013 and 2012 there were no interest rate hedges in place

Credit risk

Credit nsk anses from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and tinancial insiitutions  as well as exposures to outstanding
recevables from customers Due tc the nature of the Group s business in emerging markets, management believes the most signihicant of
these to be exposures to outstanding recewvables from customers

To minimise: the nsk of a significant iImpact on the business due to a customer defauling on its commitments the Group ciosely monitors frade
recevables Inadditon the Group utihses letters of credit, contract insurance policies and up front deposits (o mitigate this nsk

Liquidity nsk

Liquidity nsk results from insutficient funcing beng available to meet the Group’s funding reguirements as they anse The Group manages
liquidity risk by mantaimng adequate reserves of cash and available committed facilities to meet the Group's short and long-term funding
requrements The Group menitors the short-term forecast ana actual cash flows on a daily basis and medium- and long-term requirements in
line with the Group's long-term planning processes

Financing and bank facilities

In 2013, the Group extended its commitied, secured credit faciity by $250 mullion to $650 milion compnising a $400 million revolving credit
facility and a $250 million term-loan The facility with an expanded group of international banks, provides significant hguidhty to allaw the Group
to continue to grow its fleet, expand its global network and respond quickly to opportunities in the market The $250 mifion term-loan 1s due for
repayment on 1 January 2015

The Group has commenced discussions with its group of existing relationship banks regarding its refinancing strategy and expects to execute
this strategy over the coming nine months
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Going concern

The Group has commitled, secured credit faciies of $650 millon comprising a $400 milien revolving credi facility and a $250 million term-
loan The $250 million term-loan 1s due on 1 January 205 within the timeframe of the going concern rewiew The Group 1 currently forecasting
to meet the repayment of the term-loan and while the Group expects to refinance the $250 milhion term-loan, the Group's forecast cash flow
headroom is sufficient o allow repayment of the loan on the matunty date

in order to ensure it remains within the terms of this facility (including covenant requirements), the Group regularly produces cash flow
statements and forecasts and sensitvties are run for diterent scenanos (ncluding, but not mited to changes to contract start dates pnaing
and expected contract duration (n the event of unexpected adverse changes to the Group s cash flows the Directors are confident that

the Group could manage its financiat affarrs, portfolic management and deferning of non-essential capital expenditure so as to ensure that
suficient funang remains available for the next twelve months

Accordingly, the Directors believe that the Group s forecasts and projections taking account of reasonably possibie changes in assumptions,
show that the Group will be able to operate within the terms of its financing and bank faciiies for the foreseeable future, being twelve months
from the date of this report

After making enquines the Directars have a reascnable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue ta adopt the going concern basis In prepanng the Annual Report
and consolidated financial statements

Dividends proposed

At the upcoming Annual General Meeting on 20 May 2014 the Board will recommend to shareholders that a resolution is passed to approve
payment of a final dvdend for the year ended 31 Dacember 2013 of 6 7 pence per share {2012 6 7 pence per share) With the intenm dividend
of 33p (2012 3 3p) this results in a full year dwrdend of 10 0p (2012 10 Op) Subject to shareholders approval at the Annual General Meeting
on 20 May 2014 the final dividend will be payable on 3 June 2014 to shareholders on the register as at 4 Apnl 2014

The Beard will continue to maintain a regular review of its dvdend policy and reiterates its intention to pay an annuat dividend

Andrew Martinez
Chuef Financial Officer
25 March 2014
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Corporate responsibility

Transforming the future
for our people, our
customers and our
communities

At APR Energy we firmly believe that acting
responsibly makes good business sense It
helps drive our interachons with employees,
customers, suppliers, and our communities
It 1s a fundamental part of who we are and
how we cperate Demenstrating our core
values, each and every day we build lasting
relationships with our custorners and ceiver
sate anc cansistent operations This will
support our wision to be the leader in our
chosen market

Hawving a strong set of corporate
responsibility (CR) policies and practices

1s critical We have a growing and
geagraphically diverse employee base We
do business in many cauntries around the
world each wih diffenng cultures practices,
and regulations

Given the nature of our fast-track power
projects, we may depley our powar solutions
to remote, inhospitable environments
sometimes following the wake of a naturel
disaster We use equipment which 1if
improperly handled, could be potentially
harmful to people and to the surrounding
communities and environment

To ensure that APR Energy operates in a
safe ethical and responsible manner, we
have adoptec a number of policies designed
1o ensure the health safety and well-being
of cur employees, our customers and

the communities in which we operate We
have developed a comprehensive range of
operating procedures and processes to help
minimise the nsks inherent i our Industry
We work collaboratively with our vendors
and suppliers 10 help ensure alignment

with, and adherence to, our CR goals and
checiives

People

Cur people are our moest valuable resource
With a workforce that spans the globe, our
cbjective is to create a positive workplace
and cuiture where pecple feel valued, enjoy
the challenge of exciing and rewarding
work, and can grow in thew careers

APR Energy 1s proud of its skilled and
experenced workiforce We aim to be
an employer that attracts and retans
hugh-performing people whose diversity
18 representative of all the regions in
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which we operate With our global reach
recruiting and developing the best people
are essential components to our growth
aspirations and we continue to invest in
ensuring that our employees are able to
work ta the best of ther abilities

We prowide our people the traning and
development they need to be successful
Training programimes are talored to

the employee s role emvironment and/

or functional area, and cover a broad
number of subject areas including skils
development, processes and tools
environment, ethics and compliance health
and safety - to name just a few APR Energy
also supports employee growth as part of
development planning

APR Energy strives to ensure that our
employee policies and procedures refiect
best practices and are implemented and
followed by all our employees across the
regons in which we operate Our policies
and procedures cover a broad range of
areas including health and safety travel
gifts ana enfertainment, and anti-corruption
APR Energy has adopted a zero tolerance
policy with regard to any compliance poficy
violations

We expect our employees to act
approprately ang ethically in everything they
do Guidelines are set out n APR Energy s
Code of Conduct which all employees are
required to read ang sign as a pre-conditron
of employment

We have a growing and geographically
diverse employee base We do business in
many countnes around the world each with
differing cullures, practices, and regulations
We believe our diversity 1s an essential

part of how we do business and meet the
needs of our equally diverse customer

base We do not tolerate any form of
discrimination ana aim to reflect the civersity
of the communities in which we operate

We are committed to treating peopie

farly and ensunng that our empfoyment
policies are free from any form of unlawful
discnhmination aganst any employee on

the grounds of sex, gender reassignment,
sexuat onentalion pregnancy, race, colour
natonality ethric or national ongin religion
or belef, age, or disability
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We proactively encourage commuricabions
between our employees across the

globe and work to ensure all employees
understand the values, goals and stralegies .

that are important to our business A

APR Energy Core Values

Entreprencurial Spirit

Through our internal company newsletter

wa regularly share successes and best
practices across our global operations
giving employees In each region vistbility into
what others are doing Additionally, we strive
to ensure infermaton 15 shared between field
operations and headquarters

Abaeng

Our Promises ta our Employees

& We prowvide a positive workplace that
fosters teamwork, supports career
growth, and celebrates achievements and
success APR Energy core values

o We provide ongong traming and
development that creates a bench of
talent to meet our growth strategies

e We atlract top tier talent and we reward
and recognise high performance 1o

our plans and recogrise achievements
of Indmduals who have made significant

At APR Energy, we take our values senously For us they are more than a belief system —
they are the heart of our Company They serve as the foundation upon which we work and
interact with our co-workers, partners, customers and communities

Integnity
Our relabonshups are built on a foundation of trust, honesty, dependability and transparency

while minimising waste and actively partner in the progress of our communities through
community development
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improve our competitive position We stay true to our word, and detiver what we commit We follow the highest ethical and 9.
morat standards and take responsibility for our actions ﬁ
& We embrace diversty across all the 5]
regions (n which we operate, and prohibit Speed ;_'
discrimination on the grounds of race Speed 15 the essence of our business We deliver with pace, ensuring & level of ]
relgion, gender, sexual onentaticn, age, responsiveness to our customers, stakeholders and teammates that meets or exceeds =]
natonality or ethric cngin axpectatons We break through barners and bureaucracy to meet our goal of delivenng on
time, every time
@ We provide our employees with clear ;
direction tools systems, and the Entrepreneurial spirit
processes they need to provide supenor We foster a kindred entrepreneunal spint that values passion, innovation and calcutated %"
products and services 1o our custamers nsk-taking We embrace change as a necessary part of dnving growth, and approach each B
challenge wath creativity, courage, callaboration and a ‘can-do' attitude ]
As stated our people are our most valtable 2
resource As such, we openly encourage Mutual respect 2
and weicome employee feedback and We care for our people, communities and customers, and conduct all dealings in a g
da so through a number of Intiatives  This manner that reflects farness and diversity We behave in a professional, courteous manner o
feedback 1s solicited regularly and we take and show respect for the ndwidual at all times %
every measure to capture and follow-up
on any INputs anag concerns received The Teamwork
following are examples of ways we engage We enjoy a collaborative and coflegiate work environment that fosters open
with employees to recerve and address communication legrning, and the shanng of information andideas We promote close
feedback cooperation across busness functons and strive to be a flexble and customer-centrnic g
business partner [}
& We conduct quarterly Town Hall meetings 3,
with all employees to discuss Company Stewardship g
strategy and plans and new nitiatives to We value the health, safety, and well-being of cur people and the communibies in which é
prowide focus across the organisation to we work and act as a steward to the environment We carefully manage our resources §



Corporate responsibility

contributions to the Company

@ The APR Energy Open Door Policy
helps ensure that employees can feel
comfortable in sharing concerns and
1ssues openly with therr managemeni
Employees can take comfort in knowing
that no one at APR Energy may, in any
mannes, retaltate agamst any employee for
uthsing APR Energy s Open Door Policy
to raise 1ssues or coneerns

o Addmonaly APR Energy has a HR/
Compliance hotline that can be called
anorymously and, in any event would
not allow for retaliation by one who was
referenced on that hotline

e Through the President’s Council, APR
Energy employees representing a
cross-section of our business mcluding
Operatons, Business Development,
Finance 1T Marketing HR and
Administration, are able to have open
and candid dialegue directly with senior
management on 1ssues most important to
them and the business

& The President’'s Council provides an
opportunity for any of our employees
to bring rdeas, voice concerns and
discuss how we can continue to grow a
successfut business |deas are captured
and shared within the crganisation, with
action tems noted and tracked by senmor
management

Corporate Ethics

We operate in a wide range of countries
around the world and it 1s APR Energy
policy to always conduct our activities

In accordance with apphicable laws and
regulatons We always work in a sate,
ethical and professional manner across all
our gperations and to the highest standards
of corporate governance In many cases
setting standards well above that required
by local law

Business ethics and comphance, particularly
in the areas of ant-bribery and corruption
are increasingly impaortant to regulators,
customers and stakeholders who need the
assurance of knowing they can trust us to do
the nght thing Complying with the law in this
important area as well as mantaning our
good reputation 1s therefore, essential for
our conlinued success

APR Energy has a reputation for integnty and
honesty in all our business dealings, a factor
that contnbutes positively to our long-term
relatronships with customers and supplhers
All APR employees, as well as consultants
suppliers and agents with whom we work,
are required to behave ethically, and our
expectations of them are sat forth in our

Corporate Ethics Policy which apphies (o all
Group employees

The principal objectives of our ethics policy

are

@ Make APR Energy a good company for
which to work

e Maintain our reputation for exceptional
customer service and ethical business
dealings

e Enable APR Energy to compete 1o the
highest standards i an ethical manner

e Ensure the business is managed with the
highest standards

The Board, its Committees the Chiet
Executive Officer and its Chief Compliance
Officer play key roles together wih
management in promoting and monitornng
ethical behaviour and safeguarding our
reputation Comphance traning i1s provided
to all employees in order to support their
understanding of, and commitment to
comply with the law and to protect and
enhance the Company's reputation

The traning educates managers in their
responsibilities for employees, commercial
contracts and company assets and 18
delvered globally

APR Energy has an Anti-Bribery Policy which
applies to all Group entities worldwide and
to all directers, employees, workers, agents
of any other persons acting for or on behalf
of the Group and which includes a clear
statement of comrmitment to ant-bribery and
anti-corruphon practices We have has also
raised awareness and extencad ant-bribery
traning including the need for due diigence
when entenng into third party arrangements
and monitonng at a serior level

APR Energy’s Ethics Commuttee 1s
respeonsible for, among other things, making
recommendations ta the Board 1o establish
a culture of integnity and honesty in alt of the
Group’s business dealings

Addiionally, APR Energy operates a
published Share Dealing Code which
explains to directors, employees, and
certain contractors their obligatons with
respect to buying and selling the Company s
secunties In order to ensure compliance with
relevant laws and to protect the interests

of the Company and includes the dates of
the Company's close periods on irading

In its shares The Ethics Committee 1n
conjunction with our General Counsel &
Chief Comphance Officer has developed
vendor, agent and customer certifications
sign-offs, agreements, checklists, and other
forms of due diigence in connection with
engaging our third party providers
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Those matenals are located In one central
electronic repository avalable to all APR
Energy employees wha require access to
them anywhere in the world

Human Rights

The Group operates in accordance with

the Universal Declaration of Human Rights
and take account of cther internationally
accepted human nghts standards We

also promote human fights through our
employment policies and practices,
through our supply chain and through

the responsible use of our products ang
services APR Energy i1s confident of the
human nghts performance of its own
operations but recognises that business
practices in the supply chain are not always
ransparent and represent a nsk that we am
to manage Every eftort 1s made to ensure
that the 1ssues are managed effectively

Environment

APR Energy 1s dedicated to minirmising our
environmental iImpact throughout all business
actvities it undertakes around the globe We
seek to incorporate the latest technologies

In order to lower emissions and noise lavels,
while ncreasing fuel efficiencies APR Energy
offers generating equipment capable of
producing one of the highest fuel efficiency
levels within our industry, significantly cuting
total cost for our custormers while providing
reduced carbon emissions

Emissions

APR Energy’s equipment I1s designed

to function m alt types of terrain, and

by careful design and use of the maost
suitable technology, we am to minimise the
environmental impact of that equipment Al
our equipment 1s designed to comply with
applicable laws regulations, and industry
standards wherever we operate in the world

Our generating equipment 1s controlled by
state-of-the-art Programmable Logic Control
(PLC) Systems, which are automated to
ncrease flexibity and decrease emission
levels APR uses the international recogrised
air emissions modelling software 'AERMCD
to identify ar emissions patterns for the
project site This modelling aliows APR to
choose equipment that best matches the
use and environment

When 1t comes to power generation fuel
represents one of the highest operating
costs which 1s why APR Energy has placed
a heavy focus on fuel eficiency With 1s
technologically advanced fleet APR Energy
15 urnguely pesiboned to utlise the most fuel-
efficient equipment available in the fast-track
power market today, thereby helping our
customers to reduce the overall total cost of




therir power project As the price and volatility
of fuel continues to nse so will the need for
maore fuel-efficient solutions To meet this
demand we continue to invest in teading-
edge technology and Innovatve engineenng
that help customers operate more profitably
and eficiently, without sacrificing on
emissions contral

Qur fleet of diesel and gas power modules
and gas turbines combine advanced
engine technology with our own proprietary
processes and modifications ta provide
customers with cleaper and more fuel-
efficent solutons

As fuel eficiency rates can vary dependng
on factors like temperature alitude, and
fuel qualty APR Energy's engineenng and
plant operations teams conduct ongoing
reviews of our cperations and perform fue!
efficiency calculations By taking readings
of fuel burned threughout a 24-hour perod
and then comparng those numbers to the
amount of energy produced we are able to
provide an accurate forecast of fuel savings
throughout the life of a project and make
necessary adjustments to further boost the
efficiency of our equipment

At APR Energy we continuously strnve

to find new ways to lower our emissions
footprint Given the young age of our fleet
and its lexibility in terms of technology and
fuel-type, we are able to provide some of the
cleanest solutions avallable :n the fasi-track
power market today Alt of our equipment
1S designed to perform in accordance

with various internationally recognised
standards including The World Bank We
apply advanced mitigation techniques

and can meet more stringent emissIonNs
levels where required for local markets

QOur generating eguipment 1s controlled

by state-of-the-art electronic engine and
generator management systems, which
greatly contnbuted to the mitigation of
emissions levels This means no matter
where aur clients need us, we can deliver
optimised emissions solutions tallored for
each apphcation

Qur turkxine technology provides a number
of ways in which 1t can lower emissions
including water injection, which can increase
power output, improve fuel efficiency and
decrease nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions
Gas turbines also use fewer consumables
than other technclogies

A key part of our strategy towards
emissions control 1S our focus on natural
gas APR Energy enables customers to
take advantage of this cleaner readily
avallable fuel source through our mobile

gas turbines, as well as through our
nexi-generation natural gas reciprocatng
power modules These technologies offer
customers a cleaner, more cost-effective,
and lower impact alternative to diesel-fuelled
generators

Natural gas 1s one of the cleanest of all
non-renewable energy sources Its use

In place of the other fossil fuel types will
emit fewer harmful pollutants Natural gas
15 consideredt an environmenially-fnendly
clean fuel offenng important environmental
benefits when compared with other fossil
fuels, Including significantly lower levels of
NOx, carbon dioxide (CC%), and virtually no
sulphur oxdes (SOx) The near non-existent
SOx emission rates means 1t 1s not a major
contnbutor towards the cause of acid rain

For those customers requinng a diesel
solution, our dual-fuel mobrle turbines and
diesel power modules provide market
leading low emissians  For example

the average diesel truck produces more
emissions {in the form of NOx and
parhiculate matter) than one of our diesel
power modules

Our focus 1s to deliver power solutions We
achieve this by provicing our customers with
the applications and technologies that best
meet therr reguirements and preferences
with regards to fuel type, fuel eficiency, and
emissions We work with our partners (GE
and Caterpillar) to improve fuel ethciency
technology and equipment for application
Also, by iInvesting in alternative fuels such as
gas and fust-eficient engines, we can seek
to mitigate the iImpact of emissions ansing
from our growing business

Almost all of the Group s retated’ emissions
anse from those produced by the fleet There
are three man factors driving APR Energy's
total annual greenhouse gas (“GHG")
emissions, which include the fuel type our
customers choose to use, the fleet mix and
usage pattern, and the fuel efficiency of the
equipment we use As the decision of fugl
choice and fleet usage remamns with the
client 1t1s only the last of these factors that
1s within APR Energy's control

As a gromng business we expect the
absolute amount of GHG ermissions will
increase as fleet capacity and utihsation
increases [n addition there 1s another trade-
off to be considered - lower NOx emissions
come at the cost of higher fuel consumption
Therefore, our customers' focus on fuel
efficiency coutd result in higher emissions

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006
(Strategic Report and Directors' Report)
Regutabions 2013, our Greenhouse Gas
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Corporate responsibiiity

emissions for the penod 1 January to 31
December 2013 are reported in the Directars
Report on page 73

Noise

Through the use of customn-built acoushc
enclosures as well as high-performance
1Isolation and attenuation systems APR
Energy actively seeks to minimise the noise
levels associated with our power plants
When our equipment is located in or near
alocal population we have a system of
regular noise monitenng and community
coerdination to help ensure that we are in
compliance with all noise regulations and
are not negatively affecting the surrounding
quality of hle

Qur reciprocating power modules typicaliy
operate at decibel levels between 72 and
76 dB(A) at a standard distance of 15
metres under normal operation and ambient
conditions APR Energy provides a standard
noise solution package which mnimises
external noise by the installation of sound
attenuating louvers and insulation as well

as providing top-quahty internal mufilers «f
necessary APR's engineenng staff 1s trained
in neise mitigaton and has the capability

1c decrease standard noise levels to meet
crnical noise specifications

Wastle

The APR Energy engineenng team has
placed a major focus on designing our
power plants to mimmise waste dunng

the installation phase We accomplish this
threugh the use of more reusable and
durable materials as well as by pre-cutting
and fabncating as many items in advance as
possible These efforts decrease the amount
of maternals that we have to dispose of at the
end of the project

APR Energy actively promotes recycling
within its processes facilities and
operations, and Implements a Waste
Management Policy te focus on the recycling
of all wastes As an example, each APR
plant recycles the ail that it produces every
month

Health and Safety

APR Energy s commuited ta high standards
of occupational health and safety to protect
iis employees, contractors customers,
suppliers and visitors The health and
well-being of those who work In and around
each power project site 1s of the utmost
importance to us We not only ensure that
basic requrrements are met, but am to go
above and beyend those requirements to
provide emnployees with the most cptmal
work environment possible As a result
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of these efforts we are pleased to agan
report that we had no employee on-the-job
fatalities in 2013

Awell-structured Health and Safety
programme 1S key to our business success,
and serves as a prescribed requirement of
the APR Energy EHS polrcy The programme
15 led by a decicated team of EHS leaders
and speciahsts located throughout our
on-site operations worldwice Cur EHS
programme 1s in accordance with leading
international standards, including the US
Occupational (OSHA) guidetines and the UK
Health and Safety at Work Act 1974

We implement and enforce this

programme threughout aur global
operations The standards we follow serve to
ensure that our facilittes provide the highest
level of protection for our employees and
sub-contraciors Also, we use the latest
technologies in equipment and tools that

are control checked to the highest safety
standards

The APR Energy EHS director together
with engineering and other area sub)ject
matter experts maintans APR Energy s
EHS policy and reviews procedures and
nsk management standards on a yearly
basis to dentify opportunities for further
improvemant

We keep our health and safety inthative
up-to-date by requinng regular safety
training and centficaticn for the day-toe-day
operations of each of our power plants
worldwide Moreover each APR Energy
power plant s Inspected regularly by both
internal and independent safety commiitees
to ensure that every facrity 1s cperating

in compfhiance with the Jatest industry
standards

Dunng 2013 APR Erergy updated its crisis
management plan and procedures together
with the support of one of the world's leading
crisis management consultants The process
included traning across the Company as
well as plant emergency response practical
exercises with the APR cnsis managemeént
team and key areas of the business

Security

Cemand for pewer can often be the result of
event-driven torCes or emergencies, whether
caused by human events or forces of nature
Consequently, the environment in which APR
Energy operates can often contain a number
of social, paltical, and environmental nsks
which present operatonal challenges

APR Energy 1s committed to crealing
a secure working envircnment for all




personnel while also ensunng the secunty
of our physical assets Dunng 2013 we
strengthened our secunty posture with the
ntroduction of a Group Securnity Director
as well as a Regronal Security Manager in
our highest nsk region We also ntroduced
secunty standards setting out mandatary
principles and procedures for all our
locations

We maintain praciices, policies, and
procedures to mitgate risk of potential
incigents This Includes contracting
protection services from global secunty
providers where warranted, as well

as providing traveller assistance and
estabhshing traveller protocols We momitor
security inteligence on a real ime basis
anc ensure that appropriate nsk mitigation
measures are 1N place pursuant ta the
correspending nsk climate

We have rcbust systems for assessing and
monitoring secunty in all countnas of interest
to APR Energy with systematic secunty
analysis now an integral component of sisk
management for both existing operations
and new markets

Community Development

APR Energy 1s dedicated to the development
and well-being of the local communities in
which we operate and we strive to buld
close relationships with the people whom we
serve and work amongst APR Energy not
only helps our commurties by hiring from
the iocal workforce and providing valuable
skills traiving  but also looks to contnbute In
ways that help local communities improve
theirr cverall qualty of i

Through our Community Development
Programme we regularly dentify service
projects with the needs of our neighbounng
communities in mind and actively
encourage staff anc customer involvement
The projects are pnmarily focused on
improving infrastructure, health, and
education and usually take place in the
neighbournoods near our power plant sites

In 2013, we completed a numkber of
community and charitable inttiatives We
are honoured to have the opportunity to
create these partnerships and implemert
projects that benefit local members of the
community, our customers, and global APR
Energy personnel We expect to underiake
further projects in 2014 across many of the
communities in which we operate

Yemen girls’ schools

APR Energy 1s proud to have sponsored a community project In Yermen 1o provide resources
and assistance to two local schools within the Aden cormmunity Dane m cooperation with
our tocal partner Gnffin Group, the project provided the schools with educational resources
that inciuded computers, sewing machines copters, and school supplies as well as ar
condiioning units kitchen matenals lockers, tables and chars These contributions will hefp
to support the development of valuable iife skills through the incorporabion of technclogy
Intc the daily curnculum and will contnbute towards a higher quality of life for the students
teachers and famiies

'M....—__ g
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Youth athletics

Duning the year, APR Energy contributed to a number of iniiialives supporting young people
In our communities Including renovating a playground at alecal school near our site at Punta
del Tigre, Uruguay, supporting youth football in Morro Bento, Angola, and providing new
urwforms for youth football in Nias Indenesia

Philippines rehef

APR Energy and its employees made a sigruficant donation to a disaster relief fund in support
of victms of Typhoon Haiyan, which caused significant destructon in the Phihppines Over a
two-week penod, APR Energy and its employees combinted to donate over $124 000 ta reliet
efforts APR Energy s donation helped ¢ provide consistent treatment to more than 4¢ 000
people who were impacted

United States local intiatives

in 2013 APR Erergy employees at the Jacksorwille corporate office contnibuted significant
time and money to local community causes This Includes volunteering, danations, and
callecting non-penshable food for the Second Harvest Food Bank, providing meals for local
underpriviteged families

Employees, frends and refatives of APR Energy joined together as  Team APR Energy” for
the 2013 Juvenile Diabetes Research Foundation (JORF) Walk to Cure Diabetes raising
over $7,800 APR Energy employees also volunteered significant time in support of the local
Leukemia & Lymphoma Society including participation in the annual Light the Night Walk,
which helps bring awareness to the cause
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Risk management

Risk management

Is an integral part of
our business and 1s
fundamental to how we
create value and deliver
sustainable returns to
shareholders

A key responsibility of the Board and

the Management Team is the effective
identsfication and management of risks
facing the business now and in the future
Managing risk effectively 1s a key element of
achieving the Group's strategic objectives
and maintaining high-qualty sences to
customers

The Group s nsk management approach is
designed to support the successful rurning
of the business and provide assurance

ta the Board by identifying and managing
nsks to an accepiabie level Proactve
assessment of nsks across strateges,
markets operations, and finance — and the
establshment of mingating actons - are
recognised as critical to the successful
delivery of APR Energy’s cbjectives

The Board has overall responsibility for
establishing the nsk appetite of the Group,
for identrfying risks, and for ensuring that
fnisk mitigation processes are 0 place and
that they are being managed effectively
The Board has delegated this responsibility
for monitenng the nsk management system
10 the Audit Committee, including the
review of annual nsk assessments and the
effectiveness of systems and processes of
internal contro!

Management 1s responsible for the

dihgent execution of sk management
processes Inclucing the maintenance

of active nsk registers and the system

of internal contrals In order to help fulhll
this responsibility, management operates

a Risk Management Committee (“RMC™)
comprising the Group’s Management
Team The RMC assists the Chief Execulive
Officer Audit Committee and the Board

In providing informantcn on the key
elements of the Group’s risks and provides
guidance to Group leadership on the nsk
management framework

The Board 1s responsible for ensunng that
the Group's nisks are properly identified
monitored ard managed The RMC
provides oversight and guidance The
duties of the RMC include the {ollowing

e Reviewing the major nsks to the Group,
such as strategic operational financial,
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market and reputational r1sk, as well as
the guidelnes, policies and processes
for monitoning and mitigating such nsks

Martaining and reviewing regularly the
Group’s nsk register

Discussing with Management the
Group s nsk assessment process,
management’s plan to mitigate or
control the identdied nsks, and proper
disclosure of the ngks to the Board and
its committees

Monitonng the identified nisks and
reviewing with Management the amount
of overall nsk that the Group 1s wiling to
accept or retain

» Reviewing the scecpe and adequacy of
the Group 8 insurance and providing a
raule to escalate the financial impact
of any nsks identified that exceed
estabiished acceptable thresholds

A key element of the Group's nsk
management framework is the Group's
nsk register This 1s compiled by the

RMC based on input from all parts of

the business, together with & top-down
review undertaken by the RMC, prior to the
Board s regular review It forms the basis
of the mitigation strategies identified for
allkey nsks The rnisk register supports the
dentification and mitigation of the principal
rsks ard uncertainties outhned on pages
4810 51

Through the RMC  the Group continues

to enhance s focus on the identfication

of nsk and its mitigatian, including
strengthening internal controls and
impraving the reporting of nsk related
management information tc ensure that the
management of nsk 1s fully embedded in
the strategic and operational processes of
the Group

The Group recognises that it operales

In some challenging parts of the world

and takes the secunty and welfare of its
pecple and assets very senously The
Group conbinues to review 1S security
arrangements, Including assessing securnty
nsk i alt high-nsk terntones before entenng
into specific contracts Dunnig the year, the




Group recruited experenced senior security
experts including a Globat Director of
Secunty, to oversee all aspects of securing
our people, property and secunty vendars
throughout the world

Internal Controls

The Board of Directors acknowledges

I responsibility for the oversight of the
Group s system of internal controls and for
reviewing its effectiveness The Group's
system of internal controls 18 designed

to manage rather than eliminate ask It
provides reasonable, but not absolute
assurance against matenal misstatement
or loss

To assist in ks execution of these
responsibiities, the Group has recently
established an Internal Aucit function
responsible for the iIndependent review of
the Giroup's nsk management and contral
environment Its ocbjective s to provide
reliable valued and timely assurance to the
Beard of Directors, the Audit Committee
the Chief Executive Officer and the Serior
Management Team as to the effectiveness
of controls N migating current and
evolving nsks and in so doing enhancing
the controls environment within the Group

In particular, Internal Audit wll assist the
Senior Management Team by performing
independent appraisals of the effectiveness
of the internal control environment and
making recommendations {or improvement,
and support the Group s business
management system The Audit Committee
will review and approve tnternal Audit's
programme and resources, review and
discuss major indings of audit reviews,
together with management responses and
evaluate the effectiveness cf the internal
audit function

Further details on the Board and ns
Committees can be tound in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 58 to 67

Risk Factors

APR Energy s performance and prospects
may be affected by a number of nsks and
uncertamties that relate to the industry and
the environments in which 1t undertakes its
operalions around the world The Group 1s
aware of and sensitive to the 1ssue of nsk,
and has systems and procedures (n place
across the Group to identify assess and
mitigate major business nsk

The Group undertakes a formal review of
nsks, at least annually, which could impact
its area of busmness |dentfied nsks are
formally reviewed on a regular basis and
recorded In an active nsks register with
mitigating actions The Group conhinues

to develop its sk management systems
and processes to help to ensure that its
responses remain appropriate to the range
of nsks that the Group faces

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The following factors and other information
contained in this Annual Report should

be considered carefully The following 15

a description of the nsks that may affect
some or ali of the Group s activiies and
which may affect the value of an investment
in the Company's securities  any of

the events described below occurs, the
business, financial condition or results of
operations of the Group could be affected
adversely in a matenal way

Addiional nsks and uncertainties that the
Group 1s unaware of, or that it currently
deems immatenal may aiso in the future
have a material adverse effect on the
Group s business, resulls of operations and
fnancial condition
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Effective nsk management

The effective dentfication and
management of nsk ts critical to APR
Energy s success and the followng
systematic approach 1s applied across
the Group

® |dentfying key nsks The Group
apphes the same methodology 1o
identifysng sk at all levels across the
Group Key and emerging risks are
reviewed on a regular and ongoing
basis

® Analysing nsks and controls  Risks
are evaluated to assess financial and
non-financial impacts, the lkelihood of
occurience and the potential impact
This results in a priontised register
of nsks aganst which management
will review the nature, adequacy and
appropnateness of current controls to
mingate these risks

® Delermining management actions
If new different or additional actions
are Jdentified, these are anatysed and
appropnate responsibiities to execute
them &re assigned

@ Reporting and monitonng
Management s responsible for
monitenng the effectiveness of
controls and progress of actions
taken to mitigate key nsks this will
be assessed through the Group's
racently established internal audit
programme
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Risk management

Principal risks and uncertainties

KEY RISK

DESCRIPTION

IMPACT

Strategic

Failure to deliver the
growth plan envisaged as
part of the recent capital
injections

The Group's strategy 1s primarily based on
organic growth via the deployment of capital
nto new temporary power projects that are value
accretive This organic growth 1s dependent
on the Group’s abilny 1o effectively secure new
projects and to scale the infrastructure of the
business to support execution

The inabilty 10 deploy successfully capital into
new projects and maintan its growing fleet could
have a malenal adverse eifect on the financial
results of the Group

Contracts are temporary
in nature

The Group operates in an industry where the
majonty of contracts are short-term (typically
12 -18 months) and there are no assurances
that any particular customer will renew or extend
a contract

Assets may be idle for a penod of time belore they
are redeployed in a revenue generating capacity

Asset concentration

Given the scale of the Group s albeit growing,
customer base, the loss of any single major
customer, andfor high concentration of assets
could have an adverse rmpact on the resuits of
Its operatens

Any such loss of a major customer contract
could matenally impact revenues and associ-
aled prafitability

Market

Global political
and economic conditions

The global footprint of the Group's business
exposes It to nsks of change in economic condi-
tions and political regimes

Declines inecancmic activity, slowing of growth
rates and customer access to funding could
impact the growth strategies of the business
Addittonally, changes in political regimes pose
polential nsk to existing contracts and/or the
trmung of potential new contract opportunities

Volatility in customer
demand, including event
driven demand

Customer demand inherently fluctuates and, in
many cases 1t 1s driven by external events that
are difficult to predict

Fluctuating demand can create volatility intrading
results Higher margin event (emergency) dnven
contracts may not be sustainable on a consistent
basis

Increase in competitive
environment

While barners to entry in the temporary power
space remain high, there is the potential for new
or expanding entrants to compete with the Group

New entrants may create pricing pressure in the
market and lead to reduced margins
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The following factors and other information contained in this Annual Report should be carefully considered The
following1s a description ¢f the nsks that may affect some or ajl of the Group s activiies anc which may atfect the
value of an investment in the Company s secunties If any of the events described below occurs the business financial
condition or results of operations of the Group could be adversely affected in a matenal way

Additional nsks and uncertainbies that the Group 1s unaware of, or that it currently deems immaterial, may also in the
uture have a matenial adverse effect on the Group's business, results of operations and financial condiion

MITIGATION

- Adetaled annual cperating plan has been established, approved by the Board and 1s monitored monthly
- Alonger range {3-5 year) plan has been put in place and I1s updated annually to incorperate market changes

- Regonal business development organisation fully deployed and cperational Pace of capital expenditures is
aligned with the commercial pipeline

- The Group s commercial team takes a dual approach, which involves pursuing coniract extensions with existing
customers whilst alsc pre-marketing assets that may soon become available

- Acommercial pipeline process tracks new contract opportunities from opportunity identification through to final
contract signature

- Asset utilisation models are used to manage fleet assets

- The Group 1s pursuing a strategy of geographic and market diversification as demonstrated via our hub strategy,
wiih & focus on continued expansion of its customer base in order to lessen the impact of any single customer
loss The placing of assets across multiple sites helps to mitgate the impact pertaining to any given location

- Commercial cpportunities are segmented across regions customer segments and technology to align with
strategic growth objectives

- The Group maniains a regular dialogue with major customers at a senior level (o help understand and anhcipate
their future plans

The acquisition of the GE Power Rental Business increased the scale and diversification of APR Energy's business

- The Group Is pursuing a strategy of geographic and market diversification with a facus on continuing to expand
1ts custormer base in order to lessen the impact of economic cycles and/or political changes

- A commercial pipeline process has been established to track new contract opporturuites and includes rnisk
management elements

APR recognises that some of the counines in which it operates have expenenced political sccial economic and
secunty instabiity The Group s proactive about miigaing all or a portion of its international currency and asset expo-
sures through vanous nsk miigation teols, ncluding the use or purchasing of insurance bonds guarantees, and cash
advances to protect its assets, both financial and operational

By developing a global expanded customer base, the impact of any single event can be mingated

- Aregional hub strategy has been implemented to help ensure that equipment 1$ available nearby {0 custemers
and that it 1s able to be utiised i the event that a short-term market opportunity arises

The Group s commercial team regularly monitors compehiive activity and publicly avaitable pricing dynamics to
help understanc changes in the market

The Group focuses on maintaining a world-class competiive offenng using best-in-class technology to provide
a responsive customer service and pncing which is aligned with our averall value proposition
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Risk management

KEY RISK DESCRIPTION IMPACT
Operations

The Group s operations are hughly capital inten- The potential exists for nationalisation, expropri-
Asset security swe and i many cases, projects requie the aton andfor thett of tugh-value assets

placement of high-value equipment intc volatle
environments

Focus on developing
markets — operations in
difficult regions of the world

The Group s operations are highly decentralised
and in many cases the Group cperates i regions
of the world where corruption ang bribery are
commonplace

This may expose the Group 1o unethical behav-
rour and potenhal legal/regulatory violations that
could have a significant financial and reputaticnal
impact

Recruitment and retention of
key staff

The Group depends cn the recrutiment and
retention of key sentor management in order to
effectively manage the business

The loss of key senior indwiduals in the organ-
1sation or the inability to recruit sufficient talent
could jeopardise APR Energy's ability 1o execute
its growth plans

Environment, health and
safety

The Graup's operations nvalve the mavemeant,
installation, and operation of large electncal
equipment which often operates at high voltage

In addition, the hancling of fuel oIl and other
hazardous matenats 1s a common part of the
day to-day activity

Plant personnel could be subiect to safety
hazards that lead to mnjury or loss of life

Operations could be subject 1o an acaidental spill
of fuel or other hazardous matenals

Financial
Movements in cost inputs

The business modet 1s dependent on the procure-
ment of capital equipment, services, labour and
other cost inputs to operate temporary power
plants around the world

Changes in the cost of key Inputs could have a
matenal adverse effect on the operating margins
of the business

Payment default

The Group has a number of contracts with
customers in developing countries where
payment practices can be lengthy and unpre-
dictable

Delay in payments or default could adversely
affect the financial performance of the business

Funding risk

The business maodel 15 dependent on extemnal
funding for the procurement of capital equipment,
services labour, and other costs to operate the
business

Adverse changes affecting access ¢ funding
or the higher costs associated with replacing
maturng dedt could have a material adverse
effect on the business
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MITIGATION

The Group maintains a comprehensive global property insurance programme

In additian, there 1s a giobal political nsk snsurance programme that can be implemented on a country-by-country
basis to protect aganst government actions refatrve to assets such as expropriation or nationaiisation

In many cases, standby letters of credit from customers are required for asset secunty

The Group has instituted a comprehensive comphiance programme that includes a broad anti-corruption palicy,
extensive training and monitoring on a regular basis, with all new employees required to undertake training upan
joining

Third-party agents/ cantractars are tharaughly vetted pror to any engagemant and are required ta pravide compl-
ance certifications

Competitive remuneration policies, including a performance share plan, have been put n place to attract and
retain kay personnel

A talent review and development process 1s in place across the orgamisation with a focus on providing growth
opportunities across the organisation

The Group has implemented comprehensive health and safety pohcies and procedures at ali sites An extensive
fraining programme has been roiled out to all perscennel

The Group has strengthened its secunty arrangements, including the introduction of a Group Secunty Director,
Country secunty managers in higher-nsk countries and the introduction of a Group securty standard setting out
mandatory principles and procedures tor all our locations

The development of environment health and safety perfermance indicators 18 ongoing and will be reviewed
regularly with the Board

The Group has two key supphier framework agreements with GE and Caterpillar that have fixed pricing and are
indexed to an annual inflation indicator thereafter

Significant cost efficiency projects are underway to post standby, and in some ¢ases, documentary letters of
credit as payment secunty

Prior to contracting with a customer, a thorough rnsk assessment 1s completed including a credit nsk review

in rnany cases, the Group requires the cusiomer 1o post standby and in some cases documentary letters of
credit as payment secunty, decreasing the impact of any individual contract default

The Group's sirategy 1s focused on increasing the scale and diversification of the business

The Group increased its credit facility to $650 milhon during 2013 with its group of lending banks The credit facility
includes provisions allowang for amendments (¢ be requested, If necessary

The Group enjoys good ongoing relationships with its lenders and has commenced discussions regarding its
refinancing strategy 1n light of the term-loan which matures on 1 January 2015

Alternative financing cpportunites which are available to APR Energy are continuously evaluated by the Group

vodey sioppalg : ABeeasg MBINBAD
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The Strategic report on pages 2 to 51 was approved by the Board and signed
on its behalf by Andrew Bradshaw, Company Secretary on 25 March 2014
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Corporate Governance Report

Chairman’s letter

The Company IS
committed to high
standards of corporate
governance and seeks to
apply voluntanly the UK
Corporate Governance
Code

The UK Corporate Govemance Code

(the Code") states that a board srole 1s

to prowvide entrepreneunal leadership for

a company in sething its strategic ams

APR Energy has a well-developed strategy
and planmng process that involves the
Board throughout the year The Campany s
strategy 1s the supject of regular review that
involves both the Management Team and
Board members in analysis and discussion
With a robust strategy and business plan
the Board recognised that the acquisition of
the GE pawer rental business provided an
opportunity to accelerate the achievement of
this strategy That was a decision reviewed
in detal by the Board and executed
successfully We are pleased to welcome
the GE-appointed cbserver to our Board
meetings

The Code also ams 1o promote effectve
board decision-making The Company 1s
committed to high standards of corporate
governance and seeks to apply voluntarily
the Code, as it demonstrales commitment
to the continuing maturing of the Company s
corporate governance structures and
mantans the Company s ablity to seek
Premium Listing at the approprate ime

During the year, the Charman, alongside
the Chief Executive Cfficer, enhanced the
Cormpany's processes to maxmise the
Board s performance, including ensuring
that meetings are scheduled to allow
adequate tme for discussion of each
agenda item at the relevant meeting, that
reporting packs are disinbuted in advance of
each meeting, and that board discussions
are held in a collaborative atrmosphere, with
open discussicn allowing for questions
scrutiny and constructive challenge

Together with well-conshtuted board

with a ctear dwision of responsibities
between Chairman and Chiet Executive
Cfficer, these enhancements enabled
well-informed decisions to be made on the
hasis of collectve debate and deliberation,
and once a decision has been made
effective and ongomg board oversight and
supervision
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UK Corporate Governance Code

The Board, has alse sought to improve
the Group s governance framework and
reqularly reviews i1s nsk management and
internal control processes Further details
can be found cn page 47

Ounng the year, the Company's governance
framework has been enhanced to take

into acecount the changes introduced by

the September 2012 ediion of the Code
and the commencement of The Large and
Medium-sized Companies and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) (Amendment}
Regulations 2013 (the "Regulations’) The
most sigrificant reporting changes have
been to the Drrectors Remuneration Report,
together with the introduction of a tinding
vote on the Directors remuneration policy at
the Company's 2014 AGM

This addiional reporting also iIncludes the
statement made by the Directors on page
74 that they consider the Annual Report
and Accounts taken as a whole, to be fair,
balanced and understandatle and that

it provicdes the information necessary for
sharehoiders to assess the Company's
performance, business model and strategy

Additional disclosures in respect of how
our Audit Committee addresses significant
1ssues within the Arnnual Report anc
Accounts can be found on pages 62 to 65

Ensuring we do the nght things in the nght
way requires the nght ieadership We believe
that the Beard and ts committees have the
required balance of imparbality skills and
expenence (0 discharge ther respensibiliies
effectively

Mike Fairey
Chairman
25 March 2014




Governance

One of the Board's primary responsibilibes
15 to ensure that the Company 1s run in the
best long-term interests of the Company s
shareholders with appropriate regard also
to its wider stakeholders This can only

be achieved if the actvities of the Group
are supported by appropriate governance
processes apphed across the Group These
processes are illustrated betow and in the
indvidual Committee repors

The Company 1s committed to high
standards of corporate governance and
therefore seeks to comply with the Code on
a voluntary basis, as 1t reflects the continuing
matunng of the Company s corporate
governance structures

During the year the Company took a
number of steps to address these areas

In respect of the nternal centrol and nsk
management framework required to achieve
full compliance wih the Code, including the
establishment of an Internal Audit function in
late 2013

The Board 1s actively investigating its current
status as a standard listed company it has
taken the steps, including establishing a
taskforce headed by the Serior Indegendent
Director to understand the requirements
necessary to achieve premium listing status

Application of the UK Corporate
Governance Code

In September 2012 the Financial Reporting
Council published the 2012 edition of the
Code, which contains broad principles and
specific provisions to help boards operate In
the best interests of therr companies Given
its standard histing, the Company s not
required to comply fully with the Code With
a view to the future, the Company continues
to voluntanly apply the Code Through the
financial year enced 31 Becember 2013

the Company complied with a majonty of
provisions of the Code

Al the year end the areas where the
Company did not comply include

& Provision B 1 2 —the Board does not
compnse at least one-half in number
{exclucing the Charman) of ndependent
Non-Executive Directors

e Provision B 1 —the Board, gven its
primarily supemisary role has only one
Executive Director

» Provision B 2 1 - the Board acts as the
Normination Commuttee, and as such does
not comprise a majonty of ndependent
Non-Executive Directars, ang

® Provision B 3 1 —the Chairman of the
Company 1s a member of the Audit
Committee

Matters reserved for the Board

There 1s a schedule of matters which are
dealt with exclusively by the Board and on
which it must make the final decision These
include approval of the Group and Parent
Company financial statements the Group's
business strategy the annual capital
expenditure plan major capital projects
major changes to the Group s management
and controf structure matenal investments
or disposals risk management strategy
sustainability and environmental policies, the
appointment or removal of Directors and the
Company Secretary and treasury policies

Day-to-day management 1s the responsibility
of the Executive Director and of the
Management Team

The Board of Directors

The role of the Board

The Board and the Operating Board have
clearly defined roles and responsibility levels
for the governance of the Group The Beard
15 responstble for the Greup's objectives
and business strategy, including matters
such as approval of business plans and
budgets capital structure, acquisitions and
disposals, capital expencitures per defined
limis, and significant compensation matters
In addtion, the Board has respensibity

for overseeing the establishment of a
comprehensive nsk management and
nternal contral framework The Nen-
Executive Directors are encouraged and
expected 1o challenge the Management
Team and each other constructively in the
development of the Group's stralegy

The Cperatng Board has responsibility for
reviewing and recommending to the Board
business plans and budgets, monitonng
the Group's performance aganst plans,
approving investment programmes per
defined imits and reviewing significant

contracts and commitments The Operating
Boarc (the Board of APR Energy Holdings
bimited the :mmediate subsidiary of the
Company) comprised the Chief Executive
Officer Chief Operating Officer and Chigf
Financial Officer, as well as nominees from
the Company s key shareholders

Responsibilities are clearly separated
between the Non-Executive Chairman

and the Chief Executive Officer The
Chairman’s pnmary role 1s 1o manage Board
effectiveness and ensure that each Director
fulfills his or her role effectively The Chief
Executive Officer 1s responsible for executing
the strategy as set by the Board and for
leading the day-to-day activities of the
Management Team

The Board 1s specifically responsible for

e guiding the Group s strategic aims,

leading to its approval of the Group s

strategy and Its budgetary and business

plans

approval of significant mvestments and

capuital expenditure

# approval of annual and half-year results
and intenm management statements,
accounting pohcies and, subject to
shareholder approval, the apponiment
and remuneration of the external auditors

» approval of the Group's dvidend policy
and the payment of interim and the
recommendation of final dividends

« changes to the Group s capital structure
and the 1ssue of any securities,

e establishing ang maintaning the Group's
nsk appette, system of internal control
governance and approval authortes, and

s monitanng executive performance and
succession planning

The role of the Management Team

The Management Team, led by the

Chief Executwe Officer, has day-to-day
responsibility and oversight of the primary
operating and support funchons of the
Group, including operations commercial,
business devefopment marketing, finance,
legal complance, human resources and IT
Biographies are prowided on pages 56 to 57
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors

Mike Fairey *% 1

Indspendent Non-Executive Charrman
{aged 65)

Mr Farey was formerly Deputy Group Chief
Executive of Lioyds TSB Group plc before
retinng from the positicn 1n June 2008

Mr Farey had joined TSB Group in 1991
and held a number of senior and general
rmanagement appointments before being
appainted to the board in 1993 Following
the merger with Lioyds Banking Group 0
1895 he joined the board of Lioyds TSB
Group plc in 1897 and became deputy
group chief executive In 1998

Previously Mr Farey was at Barclays Bank
plc where, having joined them in 1967

ne went on to hald a number of senior

and general management appomtments
including managing director of Barclays
Direct Lending Services from 1990 to 1991

The Chairman s current commitments are
non-executive directorships at The Energy
Saving Trust Legal & General Group

plc, MGM Advantage Ple and the role of
Chairman of the LTSB Pension Scheme

John Campion & 2

Chief Executive Officer (aged 51)

From 1987 to 1999, Mr Campion served as
the Chief Executive Cfficer of Showpower
Inc , a portable generator company

based in Cahformia that pnmarily served
the entertainment industry In December
1999 Showpower was acquired by GE
Energy Rentals After GE Energy Rentals’
acquisition of Showpower, Mr Campion
stayed on until towards the end of 2001

as GE Energy Rentals’ Executive Vice
President of Sales and Marketing [n early
2002, Mr Campion was hired to serve as
the President of Alstom Power Rentals
Alstorn Power Rentals was a substdiary of
Alstom Pawer Inc , a Pans-based company
focused on energy and transportation
nfrastructure In March 2004 Aistom Pawer

Rentals’ ownership was transferred to APR
LLC, a company owned and operated by
John Campion and Laurence Anderson Mr
Campion has served as the Chief Executive
Officer of the APR Group since 2004

Matthew Allen 3

Non-Executive Director (aged 57)

Mr Allen s a qualihed chartered
accountant and has been the director of
arange of public cempanies including
Gold Greenlees Treit plc, the aaverhising
agency PizzaExpress plc, a leading UK
based restaurant business and Preccat
Internaiional plc, a quoted holding
company for a group of businesses in UK
and Canada that processed and distnbuted
pre-painted steel to industral consumers

He has extensive international experience
in the USA Europe and Asia Matthew s
a director of Sun Capntal Partners and was
a founder of Pearl Group, Punch Group
and Integrated Dental Holdings plc where
he was chairman Mosi recently, Matthew
co-founded Hornizon Acquisiticn Company
plc which subsequently completed

the acquisitron of APR Energy in June
2011 Matthew holds a BA 1n law from 5t
Cathanne s College Cambridge

Gregory Bowes 4

Non-Executive Director (aged 53)

Mr Bowes serves as the Managing
Principal and Chairman of the Management
Committee of Albrnght Capital Management
He has over 26 years of expenence in

the financial services industry beginning
with Bankers Trust in 1983 and continuing
with senior roles m institutional capital
markets/alternative asset management
firms In 1988, he joined Greenwich Capital
Markets (now RBS Greenwich}, where he
served 1n multipie roles, including acting
as Senior Executwve Officer of Gregnwich
International and after acquisition of

the firm by Natonal Westminster Bank
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Co-Head of NatWest Capital Markets In

2003, after serving in other capacites in the

aternative investment industry Mr Bowes

co-founded and has since headed Albnght !
Capital Management LLC, a US-registered |
mvestrment adviser and alternative asset

manager focused exclusively on the

emerging markets Mr Bawes currently

serves on the Board of Trustees of Bowdoin

College in Brunswick Maine

Edward Hawkes 5

Non-Executive Directer (aged 37)

Mr Hawkes 1s & founder and Director

of the Company Together with fus

co-founders, Mr Hawkes played an

important rele in identifying vanous

acquisition opporturities and i acquiring

the APR Group Mr Hawkes 1s currently

a director of Sun Capital Partners and

was a co-founder of Phoenix Group,

a UK tife insurance business with

approximately & milion policyholders !
and approximately £67 5 billon under |
maragement Mr Hawkes started his
career at PncewaterhouseCoopers
working on financial and commercial
due dilgence assignments He left
PricewaterhouseCoopers 1n 2001 tc join
Sun Capital Partiners where he has been
involved 1n various companies and has
raised over £7 bilion for acquisitions

Vipul Tandon £6

Non-Executive Director (aged 40)

Mr Tandon)s a Managing Director in

the Private Equity Group of Soros Fund
Management Previously, he served as
awvice president in the speciat situations
group of Amencan Capital Strategies, a
vice-president of Foamex International
and an assocclate at both Fronthine Capital
Group and Trace [nternational and an
analyst at OLJ Merchant Banking Partners
Mr Tandon s currently a director of
Waypaint Leasing (Ireland) Ltd , Essent
Group Ltd and Civic Builders




Mr Tandon holds an MBA from INSEAD
and a BA in International Relations from
University of Pennsylvania and a BS in
Economics from University of Pennsylvama
Wharton Schog of Business

Baroness Denise Kingsmull
CBERET

Senior Indepandent Non-Executive
Director {aged 66)

Baroness Kingsmill 1s a non-executive
director of International Consolidated
Airhnes Group, SA  She also sits on the
supervisory board of E ON AG and 1s
Deputy Chairman of the PwC Adwvisory
Board From 1997 to 2004, she was Deputy
Chairman of the Competiion Commission
{formerly the Moncpoiies and Mergers
Comrmussion) Baroness Kingsmill chared
the UK Department of Trade's Accounting
for People Taskforce in June 2006
Baroness Kingsmill was appomnted to the
House of Lords as a Labour Peer and

sits on the Economic Affarrs Committee
Baroness Kingsmill holds an MA from
Cambridge University UK

Jim Hughes ** 8

Independent Non-Executive Director
(aged 51)

Mr Hughes has extensive experience in
the energy market and joined First Solar in
March 2012 as Chief Commercial Officer
and was appointed Chief Executive Officer
in May 2012 Prior to joining First Solar Mr
Hughes served from October 2007 untl
April 2011 as Chief Executive Officer and
Director of AEt Services LLC which owned
and operated power distribution, power
generation (both thermal and renewable)
natural gas transportation and services,
and natural gas distnbution businesses in
emerging markets worldwide From 2004
to 2007 he engaged in principal investing
with a privately held company based in
Haouston, Texas that focused on micro-cap
investments in North American distressed

manufacturing assets Previously, he
served from 2002 untl March 2004 as
President and Chief Operating Officer of
Prisma Energy International, which was
tormed out of former Enron interests in
international electric and natural gas
utilities Priar to that role, Mr Hughes spent
almaost a decade with Enron Corporation i
positions that included President and Chief
Operating Officer of Enron Global Assels,
President and Chief Operating Cfficer of
Enron Asia Pacific Afnca and China and
as Assistant General Counsel of Enron
International Mr Hughes 1s a member of
the Board of Directors of the Los Angeles
branch ot the Federal Reserve Bank of
San Francisco, the Advisory Board of the
United States Export-lmpaon Bank and the
International Commitiee of the Amernican
Heart Asscciation

Frem 1699 to 2008, Mr Hughes was a
non-executive director of Quicksilver
Resources an exploration and production
comparny and from 20C7 untl 201¢ of
Elektro a Braziian electric utility isted on
the Bovespa He holds a BA Business
Administration at the Edwin L Cox School
of Business at Southern Methodist
University in Dallas participated in the
Foreign Exchange Programme with Queen
Mary’'s College, Urniversity of London and
has a Jurnis Doctor from the School of Law
at the University of Texas

Haresh Jaisinghani *9

Independent Non-Exaecutive Director
{aged 47)

Mr Jaisinghans 1s the owner and Managing
Direcior of 3R Capital Private Limited,

an investment advisory and project
development firm focused on the energy
environmental and infrastructure sector in
Asia From 1994 1o 2007 Mr Jaisinghani
held a number of senior leadership
positions with the AES Corporation an
NYSE listed Fortune 50C global power
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cormpany, ncluding President of Asia
Middle Easl, and CIS, and served as

a member of the Corporate Executive
Commuittee He currently also serves on the
board of the CitySpring Infrastructure Trust,
a Singapore-listed infrastructure trust fund,
and charrs the board of CityLink Investment
Private Limited, the holding company of
the Basslink subsea electricity fransmission
interconnect in Australla Mr Jaisinghar

18 a graduate of University of Maryland

and has an engineenng degree from the
Urwversity of Bombay

Shonaid Jemmett-Page ~ =10

Independent Non-Executive Director
{aged 53)

Ms Jemmeit-Page qualified as a Chartered
Accountant with KPMG 1n 1984, becoming
a partnern 1992 In 2001, she joned
Unilever plc as Senior Vice President,
Finance and IT far Home and Personal
Business for Asia, based in Singapore

and, in 2005 became Global Senior Vice
President, Finance and IT for Home and
Personal Care and an Executive Board
member of Uniiever's HPC Business in
2009, she moved to CDC Group plc, the
UK government-backed private equity
development finance company investing in
developing countries where she was Chief
Operating Officer until leaving the group m
2012

From 2008 o 2010 Ms Jemmett-Page
was a non-executive director of Havelock
Europa plc Ms Jemmett-Page 1s currently
a non-executive director of GKN plc, Close
Brothers Group plc, Amin plc Onga
Partners plc and Greencoat UK Wind pic
She holds an MA In Natural Scrences from
Cambridge University UK

Commuttee membership

A Audit Committee

R Remuneration Cormmittee
E Ethics Commitiee
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Corporate Governance Report

The Management Team

In addition to Mr John Campion the
Management Team comprises

Laurence Anderson 1

President and Chief Operating Officer

Mr Anderson joined Showpower Incin
1987 as a Vice President and Director of
Operations In 1896, he was appointed

the President of Showpower, a position he
hefd until the company was acquired by GE
Energy Rentals in December 1999 As part
of the acquisition Mr Anderson became a
Vice President of Fleet Operations for GE
Energy Rentals (n 2002, he was hired as
Vice President of Aistom Power Rentals
Alstom Power Rentals was a subsidiary of
Alstom Power Inc, a Pans-based company
focused on energy and transportation
Infrastructure In March 2004 Alstom Power
Rentals ownership was transferred 1o APR
LLC, a company owned and operated by
John Campion and Laurence Anderson

Mr Anderson has served as the President
and COO of the APR Group since 2004

Andrew Martinez 2

Chuef Financial Officer

Mr Martinez has over 26 years of
international public accounting and public
company experence nciuding with Emst
& Young and PricewaterhouseCocpers
and has held vanous global financial
leadership reles including seven years
with the Cendant Corpaoration, where

he served as VP of Financial Reporting,
Planning & Analysis and tater as the Group
Vice President of Finance for Cendant s
Travelport Inc group Mr Marinez 1s a
member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Banlking & International Finance from the
Cass Business Schaol at City University
Lendon Mr Martinez joined APR Energy
in October 2011 and was appointed Chief
Financiat Officer in August 2012

Lee Munro 3

Senior Vice President

Mr Munro joined General Electnic Company
(GE) working as a corporate auditor He
worked his way through the organisation
becoming the Chief Exacutive Officer of
GE Eurcopean Cperations Services After
departing from GE 0 June 2005 Mr Munro
founded LifeCare BV, a health and wellness
company Mr Munro holds a MBA from the
University of North Texas Mr Murro jained
the APR Group as a Senior Vice President
in December 2008
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Brian Rich 4

Senior Vice President - Business
Development

Mr Rich brings over 20 years of
international energy and utiity infrastructure
expenence 10 nis role at APR Energy

Prior to joming APR Energy, Mr Rich was
Chief Financial Officer of Lebara Ltd a

31 bulhon telecommunications company
based in London and earlier served as
Chuef Executive Officer AES Afnica Power
Corporation, where he managed AES
Corporaton s fully integrated utility in
Cameroon, generation assets 1in Nigena,
and business development throughout
the region Mr Rich also held senior
management positions in Moscow,
Russia, as Senior Vice-President, Cruef
Financral Cfficer and Treasurer of NASDAQ-
listed Gioiden Telecom, Inc , and in

Hong Kong as Chief Financia! Officer of
Mirant Corporation's International power
businesses Mr Rich holds his Bachelor
and Juns Doctor degrees from Tulane
Unversity in New Orleans, Louisiana

Mr Rich has served APR Energy as Senior
Vice President of Business Development
since 2012




Steve List 5

General Counsel and Chief
Compliance Officer

Mr List has over 25 years of legal
experience Most recently Mr List was
based in Sydney, Australia, as the Asia
Pacific General Counsel for Accenture,
where he supported the company $ $3 5
lhon Asia Pacific business with over
80,000 employees in that region Dunng
Mr List s tenure at Accenture, he had
global responsibibty for therr Health &
Service Practice was the company s first
Government Compliance Officer and led
lis North Amencan Usiities legal team
Addittonally Mr List worked as Senior
Counsel for Peoples Energy Corporation
based in Chicago and began his career as
an associate at a boutique law firm in the
Chicago area At APR Energy Mr List s
responsible for compliance, the in-house
legal practice, as well as managing the
Company secretanal responsibilities

Mr List has an undergraduate degree

n Psychology from the University of
Wisconsin-Madison, and holds his law
degree from DePaul University Mr List
joined APR Energy in December 2011

Chris Himebauch 6

Chief Human Resources Officer

Mr Himebauch has over 20 years of
progressive human resources leadership
experence in a variety of Industnes Mr
Himebauch began his career in human
resources with Hyatt Hotels Corperation

n Southern Caldornia Subsequently he
spent 12 years at Darden Restaurants,
where he was the Director of Statfing and
then Crrector of Employee Relatrons for
60 000+ employees and managers In over
625 locatons across the United States

Mr Himebauch then served as Regional
Vice-Prestdent of Human Resources for
Wyndham Worldwide, where he oversaw
HR for 26 properties throughout the U S
East Coast and the Canbbean Most
recently, Pnor 10 joining APR Energy, Mr
Himebauch led the Field Human Resources
team for Winn-Dixie Stores inc  supporting
521 Stares, 5 Distnbution Centres and
420 Pharmacies, employing over 48 000
employees Today Mr Himebauch

leads a Human Resources group that 1s
responsible for wentifying developing
and engaging peaple who live the APR
Energy values and deliver on the Group's
strategy Mr Himeb:auch holds a BA from
the University of North Carolina at Chapel
Hill and an MBA tram the University of
Southern Califorma Mr Himebauch joined
APR Energy in January 2012

Wayne Friederich 7

Vice President of information Technology
Mr Friedench has over 25 years of |7
technical and leadership expenence
spanning the chemical consumer goods
and energy industnies Mr Friedench held
senior 1T leadership posibons as Vice
President of IT with Playtex Products,
Director of Global Infrastructure at
Energizer Holdings and Senior Director of
IT at Abound Solar Mr Fnederich holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Business
Administration — Information Systems from
Southern litnois University at Edwardsville
Mr Friedench joined APR Energy in July
2012 as Vice President of information
Technology

Silvio Cavaceppi 8

Vice President of Marketing &
Communications

Mr Cavaceppi has over 20 years of
progressive leadership expernence In
international marketing and market
development, and has a strong track record
In developing and executing international
markeling programmes and brand sirategy
His expenience includes 16 years with
Lexmark International, a Fortune 500
information technology company where

he held a number of management

rales, including Director of Marketing
Communications, a position he held
immediately prior to joming APR Energy

Mr Cavaceppi holds a BS degree from

the University of Florida in Business
Admurustration and an Intemational MBA
from the University of South Catolina Mr
Cavaceppr joined APR Energy in December
2011
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Corporate Governance Report

Board meetings

The Board typically meets at least six irnes a year in the US and in the UK, both in person and by telephone Supplementary meetings are
held as and when necessary At each scheduled meeting, the Board evaluates regular reports focusing on amongst other things, the financial
structure and performance of the business, the order pipeline and the Group's satety record At particular points in the year, the Board reviews
budgets, capital expenditure nsks and financiat statements

The Board receives regular updates on strategy acquisition opportunities, and the competitive fandscape Most Board meetings include
presentations from specific parts of the organisation in arder to give the Directors an opporturity to examine the Group s business model in
detail

Attendance at meetings
The attendance of Directers at mestings of the Board and its committees :n the year to 31 December 2013 1s set out below

Board Ethies Audit Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee
No. of meetings 13 1 4 5
Mike Farrey 13 - 3 5
John Campion® 13 1 - ]
Matthew Allen 13 - - -
Edward Hawkes 13 - - -
Denise Kingsmill 11 1 - 3
Vipul Tandon 12 1 - -
Gregory Bowes 10 - - 5
Haresh Jaisinghani 13 - 4 -
Jim Hughes 13 - 3 5
Shonaid Jemmett Page 13 1 4 -

1 John Campion stoed down from the Remuneration Committee on 24 July 2013 He was eligible to attend two meetings during the year

The Chairman also halds meetings with the Non-Executive Directors without the Executive Director present, and at least once a year, the
Senior Independent Director chairs a meeting of the Non-Executive Directors without the Chairman Additionally, KPMG completed a Board |
effectiveness review which was shared with the Board

Board committees
The Board has put in place various committees to aid in the governance of the Company, Including Audit Remuneration and Ethics (the
“Comrmittees ) Details regarding the composition, responsibiiies, and meetings of these Committees are prowded on pages 62 to 67

Each Committee reports to and has its terms of reference reviewed and approved annually by, the Board and the minutes of the Committee
meetings are circulated 10, and reviewed by the Board The terms of reference of each Committee are available on the Group s website www
aprenergy com

The Code recommends that the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee should comprise at least three independent Non-Executive
Directors The Company s comphant with these guidelines in relation to the Remuneration Commtiee and the Audit Committee

The Board considered that the matters previously delegated lo the Norminations Committee were of sufficrent importance that they should be ‘
consiered by the Board as whole Therefore, during the year these matters were considered, as necessary by the Board

Frequency of Commitiee meetings

The Committees meet as frequently as I1s required to perform thew delegated responsitiiities (with the intention that the Audit Committee meets
at least four imes a year and the remaining Committees at least twice a year) Details of Commitiee meetings and attendance of members Is
provided above
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Leadership

How the Board operates

The Board comprises the Chairman the Chief Executive Officer, and eight Non-Executive Directors, four of whom are considered independent
Given the Chairman Mike Farrey's very senior roles within the UK banking industry the Board although mindful of the prowisions of the Code
considers him to be independent

Baroness Denise Kingsmult CBE 1s the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director and is available to meet shareholders if they have concerns
that have not been resclved through the normal channels of communication {ncluding with the Chairman or Chiet Executive Officer) or ifitis
not approprate to use such channels

Mike Fairey (Chairman), im Hughes Haresh Jaisinghan, Shonaid Jemmett-Page and Denise Xingsmill bnng a wealth of expenence and
expertise from the widler business world and are considered by the Board to be independent The remaning Non-Executive Directors Matthew
Allen, Gregory Bowes Edward Hawkes, and Vipul Tandon, are nominated by key shareholders so are not considered 1o be independent

The Board remained unchanged throughout the year ended 31 Daecember 2013 Detalls of the Board including biographies are provided on
pages 5410 55

The Company's governance structure alse encompasses an Operating Board (the Board of APR Energy Holdings Limited, the mmedate
subsicdiary of the Company} which compnses the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Qperating Officer and Chiet Financial Officer as well as
nominees from the key shareholders referred to above

Board balance and Independence

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer and division of responsibilities

The roles of the Chairman and Chual Executive Officer are separated, wath Clear wnitten guidance to support the dvision of respansibilities A
copy of the document setting out the dmsion of responsibilties between Chairman and Chief Executive Officer can be found on the Group s
website

There 1s a clear dwision of responsibilites between the running of the Board wtuch is the Charman s primary duty, and the day to day
management of the Group s business which is the Chief Executive Officer’s primary responsibilty No one indwdual has unfettered powers of
decision

The role of the Chairman
The Charman leads the Board He s responsible for creating the conditions for and for ensuring an effective Board and effective contnbutions
from indvidual Directors, parkculaty Non-Executive Directors, based on a culture of mutual respect, open debate and constructive challenge

To achieve this, it 1s necessary for the Charman to faciliate and encourage open commurmnication and constructive working retations between
the Executive and Non-Executive Directors The Chairman seeks to ensure that the Executive Director 1S open and responsive to constructive
challenge of proposals by the Non-Executive Directors The Chairman 1s in frequent contact with the Chief Executive Officer The Chauman
also keeps the Non-Executive Directors up to date with significant developments between Board meetings  Moreover, the Chaiman 1s also
responsible for ensunng effective communication with shareholders and this 15 discussed further under 'Relations with shareholders' on page
69

The Chairman sets the Board agenda and ensures that adequate time 1s dedicated for discussion of all agenda tems, particularly strategic
1issues and nisk appetite Sce his appantment as Charman Mr Farey has led a detaled process of Board agenda review and planning,
working with the Company Secretary the Company's General Counsel & Chief Compl:ance Officer, the Chairmen of the Board Committees
and the Chief Executrve Officer Dunng the year, the Beard approved an annual agenda plan designed to ensure that il necessary matters are
reserved for Board decision and are afforded adequate tme for discussion throughout the year The Chairman monitors with assistance from
the Company Secretary, the information distnbuted 1o the Board to ensure that it is of high quabty, accurate clear and timely

Duning the year, the Chairman met with the Non-Executive Directors without the Chief Executive Officer being present in order to review the
Chief Executive Officer's performance
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Corporate Governance Report

The role of the Chtef Executive Officer
The Chief Executive Officer has day to day management responsibility for the running of the Group s cperations, for the application of Group
pohoies and for the implementation of the Group s strategy and policies agreed by the Board

The Board has given the Chief Executive Officer broad authonty to operate the business of the Group and he 1s accountable for, and reports
to the Board on, the performance of the business The Chief Executive Cfficer also has a key role in the process for the settmng and review
of strategy More broadly the Chief Executive Officer promotes the Company’s culture and standards including approprate governance
standards throughout the Group In addition, he ensures that the views of the Management Team on business 1ssues and, as appropriate
employees views on relevani Issues are communicated to the Board in a balanced manner

In carrying out his responsibilities, the Cheef Executive Officer 1s supported by the Management Team wha together, are respansible amongst
other things for ensunng that accurate information s provided to the Board on the Company s financial perfermance

The role of the Chief Executive Officer and the Management Team
The biographical detals of the Chief Executive Officer and the Management Team and details of therr relevant expenence and other significant
commitments are set out on page 54 and pages 56 to 57

The Chief Executive Officer and the Management Team have specific execubive responsibiities but their duties extend te the whole cf the
Group's operations and activities and are not confined 1o the parts of the business encompassed by ther specific executive role

The role of the Non-Executive Directors

The role of the Non-Executve Directors is to scrutinise the perfoermance of management in meeting agreed goals and objectives and to monitor
the reporting of performance Their role 1s also to satisfy themselves on the integnty of financial information and that the financial and non-
financial controls and systems of nsk management are robust and defensible

The role of the Semior Independent Director

Baroness Derise Kingmull was appointed Senior Independent Director in 2011 The role of the Senior Independent Cirector 1$ to prowide a
socunding board for the Chairman, to serve as a focal point to assist in resolving shareholder concerns which have not been resolved by the
Charman or Chtef Executive Officer or in circumstances where a shareholder considers that commurication with any of these Directors would
be napprapnate No such matiers of concern were raised by shareholders dunng the year ended 31 December 2013 The Senior Independent
Director also oversees the assessment of the effectiveness of the Chairman's performance, and s avalabtle for the other Non-Executive
Directors to raise any 1Ssues or Concerns

The role of the Company Secretary

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, who 1s respensible for advising the Board on all governance
matters, ensurng good information flows within the Board its Committees and Seruor Management and ensunng that Board processes are
complied with Both the appointment ana removal of the Company Secretary are a matter for the Board as a whole

Conflicts of interest

The Charrman and Non-Executive Directors are permitted to serve on the boards of non-Group companies provided it does not impinge

upon thelr required time commitment to the Group The Directors are required to declare any directorships for non-Group companies or other
appointments which could give nse to actual or potential confiicts of interest The Group records and declares interests in a Directors Interests
Register

The Directors have a duty to avoid a direct or indirect interest which conflicts, or may possibly conflict with the interests of the Group unless
that confliict has been approved by the Board The Articles give the Directors power to approve conflicts of interest subject to certan
conditions, such as, the meeting being quarate without the Director (in question participating and/or that the relevant Director does not
pariicipate in the vote No conflicts of interest were declared duning the year

The Board 1s satisfied that the Charman and Non-Executive Directors have devoted the required time 1o the proper performance of ther duties
far the Group throughaut the year Aftendance at Board and Committee meetings Is set out on page 58

Effectiveness

Board evaluation and effectiveness

The effectiveness of the Board 1s vital to the success of the Group The Board considers that it and 1s Commiitees have the appropnate
balance of skills expenence independence and knowledge of the Group to enable them to discharge ther respective duties and
responsibilities effectively In additon, processes are In place for evaluation of the Board's performance including self-assessment and external
referencing with third parties 1o ensure its performance 1s mantaned The Board believes that it presents a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group s position and prospects through its communications with sharehclders
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Since the last repon, the Company has undertaken a review to evaluate the performance of the Board, its Committees and mdmidual Directors
and n order ta ensure the Non-Executive Directors maintain sufficient skifls and knowledge to be suitable for re-election This review was
undertaken internally, with the Chairman being responsible for the evaluation of the Board as a whole and the Senior Independent Director
beng responsible for the review of the Charman's effectiveness Adcdiionally KPMG completed a Board effectiveness review which was
shared with the Board

Diversity

The Company and its Board are commitied to diversity and inclusicn in terms of its composition, the Board has created a culture of inclusion
where difference Is recognised and valued The Board wil retaun this commitment in its selection critena including diversity In nationalty,
gender, and industry experience

In fostenng cultivating and preserving a culture of diversity and inclusion throughout the Group, the Board recognises that our human capital 1s
the most valuable asset we have The collective sum of the indwvdual differences, iife expenences, knowledge, Inventiveness, nnovaton self-
expression, unigue capabilities, and talent that our employees bring to ther work represents a significant part of our culture and plays a key role
in helping us achieve our strategic goals

We embrace and encourage our employees' differences in age colour disability ethnicity family or marital stalus gender identity or
expression language national ongin physical and mental ability, poktical affiiation, race, religion, sexual onentation, socio-economic status
veteran status and other charactenstics that make our employees unique

APR Energy's diversity intiatives are appicable but not limited to our practices and palicies on recruitment and selection compensation and
benefits professional development and traiming, promotons, transfers, social and recreational programmes, layofts, terminations, and the
ongeing development of a work envircnment built on the premise of gender and dversity equity that encourages and enforces

e Respectful communication and cocperation between all employees

o Teamwork and employee participation, permitting the representation of all groups and employee perspectives

& Work/life balance through flexible werk schedules to accommaodate employees varying needs

& Employer and employee contnbutions to the communities we serve to promote a greater understanding and respect for diversity

Selection, appointment, review and re-election

Succession

The Board has a number af procedures in place for both executive and Board level succession These include supervising the career
develcpment of key personnel to ensure they possess the correct mix of skill ang experience to fulfil therr potential In addition, the
Management Team includes a number of highty capable individuals with the abiity o move in due course inte mare senior rales on the
Operating Board and/or on the Board itself

Appointment, retirement and re-appointment of Directors
Board appointments are made only after a thorough and orderly process of candidate identification, internew, and final selectiort An inihial
shorthst of candidates is developed via a mix of external advertising and consuitancy in specific fields

A thorough screening process (s uiilised 1o narrow the candidate pool to a selection that is then vetted through personal interviews with
members of the Board Final candidate recommendations are presented to the full Board for approval Indiwviduals are required to have the
necessary expernence anc integrity in relation to therr sector knowledge or skilts and to have sector knowledge or skills which complement
those already within the Board The terms of appointment for Directors 1s set cut on page 81

The Company's Articles of Association provide that each Director shall retire from office at the third AGM after appointment and that f the
Company coes not fill the vacancy of the retinng Director at that AGM, then that Drrector shall be deemed to have been reappomnted unfess
the Company resclves not to fill the vacancy or unless a resolution (to re-appaini that Director} 1s put to the Shareholders and 15 not passed
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board has decided that all Directors shall be subject to annual re-election by Shareholders at the AGM

As s customary in isted companies, the Independent Non-Exacutive Directors are normally expected o serve two three year terms (plus,
exceptionally, one addiional three year term if both the Company and the Director in question agree)

Board Induction and training

A review of Board periormance 1s managed by the Charman In addition, training and development needs are identified by the Chairman,
Committees and individual Drrectors, and relevant guidance 1s taken Histoncally, Board members have participated in a training programme
led by bath the General Counsel & Chief Compliance Cificer as well as the Company's brokers This training covered a broad range of topics,
inciuding antbi-corruption and complance (the FCPA and the UK Bribery Act) and Directors’ responsibiliies

The Chayman and the Beard provide ongoing assessment of the Board and Management Team perfarmance
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Corperate Governance Report

Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee plays a key rofe in ensuring the integrity of our financial
statements and the effectiveness of our nsk management processes and internal

controls

Shonaid Jemmett-Page
Chairman, Audit Cormmuttee

The Audt Committee plays a tundamental role in morutonng and reviewsng certan aspects of management and auditor conduct which

could financially impact upen shareholders This includes reviewing the integnty of the Group's financial statements to determine whether the
Judgements and policies of management are appropnate, as well as monitorng the (independence of the external auditors and effectiveness of
the audit process The Commuttee’s responsibities alse nciude oversight of the Group s systems of internal control and nsk management Thig
report details the activiies we undertook during the year mn fuifiling our responsibiliies

Membership
and process

Chairman and
members

Commitiee
Attendance

Role

Terms of
Reference

Marn Activities

The Committee compnises four members Three members are considered to be independent Non-Executive Directors
and af least one member has recent and relevant financial expernence The Chairman of the Company, who serves on
the Commuittee, was considered independent on appontment as Chairman of the Company

The following were members of the Audit Committee of the Company dunng 2013
» Shonaid Jemmett-Page, Charman

o Mike Farrey

« Jim Hughes

e Haresh Jaisinghani

Shonaid Jemmeti-Page has recent and relevant financial experience Her biography 1S set out on page 55

The Committee met on four occasions in 2013, with meetings tmed to concide with key dates in the financial and
reporting calendar The members attendance record 1S set out on page 58

The pricnary role of the Audit Committee 1s to ensure the integnty of the financial reporiing and audit processes and the
mantenance of sound internal control and nsk management systems This includes responsibility for monitoring and
reviewing

» the mtegrity of the Group s financial statements and the significant reporting judgements contained therein,

« the approprateness of the Group s relationship with the external auditors ncluding auditor independence, fees and
provision of non-audit senvices,

@ the effectiveness of the external audit process, making recommendations tc the Board on the appoiniment of the
external auditors,

» the activities and effectiveness of the newly established internal audt function,
& the effectiveness of the Group's internal control and risk management systems  and
« the Group's policies and practices concerning busingss conduct and ethics, including whistieblowing

The terms of reference that set out the Cormmittee’s authonty and responsibiiies are availlable on the Group's website
at www aprenergy com

The Cammittee’s activties since the last report principally retated to inancial reporting, the external audit, internal
control and nsk management (n particular, the Committes

Financial Reporting

e considered snformation prasented by management on significant accounting jJudgements and policies adopted in
respect of the Group's half year and annual financial statements and agreed therr appropriateness,

& examined key points of disclosure and presentation to ensure the adequacy, clanty and completeness of the
financial statements,

o discussed with the external auditor its reports to the Committee which highlighted key accounting matters and
significant jJudgements in respect of each set of financial statements,

# reviewed documentation prepared to suppert the going concern judgement given on page 39

o considered malters in respect of accounting for the Group's Founder securnbes and

e consdered the accounting Judgements and methedologies applied in determining the opering batance sheet
following the acquisition of the GE Power Rertal Business
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Main Activities Governance
{cont’d) & considered the prevention, detection and reporting of fraud and the Group s anti-fraud policies,

= reviewed pracedures associated with engaging the external auditor to carry out non-audit related work,

= the Committee s work plan for the year ahead and a review of histonc actvity against the Committee's terms of
reference and

e the effectveness of the external audit process the independence of the external auditor and a proposal in respect
of the re-election of the external auditor

MBIABAD

The Audit Committee last met in March 2014 and considered financial and governance matters, including the content
of thus Annual Report and Accounts

External advisors Deloite LLF the Group's external independent auditors {the ‘Auditors or Deloitte ) 1s invited to every meeting The
Committee meets separatety with Deloitte and the Head of Internat Audit without any member of the management
team being present

Internal iInput The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer Vice President of Finance Head of internal Audit and Director of
nvestar Relations are normally invited by the Chairman of the Committee to attend meetings of the Commitiee to
mantan effective communications

ABejens

Signihcant and matenal issues
ln reviewing matters relating to the financial siatements, the Committee has identified and cons:dered the followng significant 1ssues

Area of focus Committee action

Acquisition & The Group completed the acquisition of the GE Power Rental Business on 28 October 2013 The transaction
accounting resulied in the application of complex accounting judgements, assumptions and methodologies in order to
establish a far value opening balance sheet
» KPMG were engaged as external advisers to assist (in determining the fair value of the opening balance sheet
All assumptions were reviewed and challenged where necessary by the Auditors, with its findings reported to us
for consideration Following a review of all supporting internal and external documentation we confirmed that we
were satisfied with the jJudgements made by management

e In accordance with IFRS 13 "Fair Value Measurement”, the value of the transaction reflected the closing share

aoueLllolad

price at completion of 1 155p per share As a result, for accounting purpeses, otal consideration was $362 milion, e

reflecting the issuance of 15,453,128 milion new Ordinary Shares and $73 millon in cash as recognised in the 2

financial statements The Group recognised the provisional far value of identifiable assets and liabilities relating 1o g-

this transaction tn accordance wath IFRS 3 Business Combinations Further details can be found in note 29 a

Goodwill e The Group tests goodwill annually for imparment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might f
impairment be impared The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (CGU) 1s determined from a value in use 'g
A

calculation Based on this calculation, and the Committees consideration of the appropriateness of the key
assumptions the Committee considered and concluded that there 1s no reasonable possible change in the key
assumptions uthsed in the impairment caiculations that would give nse to an impairment

Accounting @ The Group has operations in vanous junsdicahions and as such 1s subject to an inherent nisk ansing from the

for income tax geographical mix of revenue and profit and the complex nature of these arrangements The Committee reviews

provisions the Group's tax positions and ensures that any potential exposures are dentified and are representing accurately
in the financial statements, as approprate

Going concern = The Committee reviewed the appropnateness of prepanng the Group s Financial Statements for the haif-year
and full year on a going concem basis The Committee considered papers prepared by management, faking into
account the external auditors’ revew of these papers, and management's assumphons in relation to going concemn
matters The Committee laoked at a number of scenanos, mncluding recognition that part of the Group's financing
faciibes 1ts $250 rmillon lerm-loan 1s due fo be renewed on 1 January 2015 Notwithstanding this the Commitiee
concluded that the management team s recommendation o prepare accounts on a going concern basis was

appropriate
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Founder securities ® The Group contnues to value the Founder secunties via a bespoke Mante Carlo simufation model which was created
1IN 2012 to ensure the accounting for this financial habiity was appropniate Further to the receipt of a letter from the
FRC requesting further information anc clarity regarding the accounting treatment in respect of the Group’s Founder
securities, the Committee undertook extensive dialogue with the FRC and in July 2013 the FRC confirmed that it was
satisfied with regard to the accounting treatment of these secunties and closed its enquiry

UOIRLLIOMI JBLIO
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Recoverabibty of & Management review the trace and other recewvables balance on a regular basis and assesses Its abiity to collect
trade and other recevables that are past due and prowides for an adequate allowance for doubtful accounts based on the financial
receivables stability recent payment history of the customer, letters of credit in place and other pertinent factors refated to the

creditworthiness of the customer Speaifically for the 2013 year end management focused on the Libya recewables
balance and were satsfied that these were recoverable, as all invoiced amounts had been recerved as at the date of
this repon  Based on this review, the Committee considered and concluded that these balances were recoverable

The Committee discussed with the Auditor the areas of significant nsk identified by the external iIndependent Auditor (see pages 92 to 94) and
has satished itself that such nsks are being appropnately managed

In aaditon the Committee has considered a number of other key judgements and nisks, as part of discharging a best practice approach
which included
e revenue recognition in respect of new contracts and contract exiensions,

« pohcy and practice in respect of demobilisation provistans and
® policy and practice i respect of the useful Iives of property plant and equipment

The Commitiee 15 satisfied that all sigrificant 1ssues and nsks have been managed appropnately and in accordance with the relevant
accounting stancards and principles

Internal control and risk review

The Board 1s responsible for the Group s system of internal control and reviews annually the effectiveness of the system of nsk management
and the internal controls framework The system 1s designed to manage rather than ebminate nsk of falure 10 achieve business objectives,
and provides reasonable but not absolute assurance against matenal russtatement or joss

A comprehensive reporing structure was implemented during the year for the management of nisk, linancial compliance, and operational
centrols This includes regular, at least annual review of the mechanisms in place to assess that risk 1s identified, managed and controlled
wherever possible

Key elerments of the nsk management and internal control framework nclude

# adetaled annual nsk assessment process, and
s structure of internal control policies and procedures

The nsk assessment process conducted by management focuses on the identification of key nisks o the annual business plan, an assessment
of the likelihcod and potential Impact of each risk, a review of existing controts and therr effectiveness and finally the rdentification of further
achons 1o be taken to miigate the nsk factors The nsk assessment Is reviewed by the Audit Commitee

The Group s wnternal control framework compnses documented policies and procedures that define proper controls delegation of authorty
and accountabilities in work flows for the effective operation and reporting in the business The review and approval of business pians, budgels
and investment programmes 1s conducted by the Board Regular reporting 1s provided to the Board that not only covers perlarmance on key
fnancial metnes, but also focuses on operational performance The Group operates a whistle blowing procedure, further details can be found
on page 42

Duning the year, the Group has further enhanced its inance function to support the anticipated growth and demands of a iisted business This
continues to be monitored in evaluating the process to secure a Premium Listing and the extra requirernents this would entas

The Commitiee assesses the Group's internal risk management and financial control systems in arder to help the Board understand the
efficacy of structures in place Reflecting the growth af the business and the Board's focus on interal ¢ontrol the Group has reciuiied a seniar,
expenenced indmdual as Head of Internal Audht

Internal audit

The Audit Committee has oversight responsibiliies for the Internal Audit department, following the establishment of an internal audit function n
December 2013 The primary responsibility of the function 1s 1o provide Independent objective assurance and consulting services designed o
help ihe Group accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluating and impraving the effectiveness of nsk
management, contral, and governance processes

Internal Audit 1s responsible for the preparatron and ongoing managemernt of an annual audit plan which will be reviewed and approved by the
Audit Committee and all repoits ansing therefrom are rewewed and assessed, along with the refated management's actions (o findings and
recommendanons

Since his appomtment in late 2013, the Head of Internal Audit 1s nvited to and attenas Audit Commitiee meetings and 1S also given the

opportunity to meet privately with the Audit Committee without any members of management present Going forward the Audit Commuittee wall
undertake a regular snternal assessment of the effectiveness and independence of the Internal Audit function
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External Auditors

The Audit Commuttee has respensibility for making a recemmendation on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the Auditors The
Auditor was reappointed auditor of the Group at the Annual General Meeting held in May 2013

Audit tendenng

The Audit Commultee acknowledges the changes to the Code, the recent findings of the Competition Commuission and the Guidance for Audit
Commuitiees 1ssued by the Financial Reparting Counail each in the context of tendenng tor the external audit contract at least every ten years
a requirement which i1s currently voluntary for a Standard Listed company Deloiite was appointed Auditor to the Company in 2011 The Auditor
15 required to rotate the audit partner responsible for the Group audit every five years 2013 was the first year of the current lead audit partner's
tenure

Recognising the relatively recent appointment of the Auditor, the Commiitee wail continue to give cansideratian e the timing of the next formal
tender in kght of the regulatory requirements, and any further changes in the regulatory framework In any event, we do not anticipate that this
will be earlier than the date of the rotaton of the current senior statutory auditor There are no contractual obligations that restnct the choice of
Auditors

Effectiveness of external audit process

To assess the effectiveness of the external audit process, the Auditor 1s asked on an annual basis to articulate the steps that It has taken

to ensure objectivity and independence including where the Auditor provides non audit services APR Energy monitors the Auditor s
performance, behaviour and effectveness dunng the exercise of its duties wiigh infarms the Audit Committee's decision to recommend
reappointment on an annual basis This year, the Commitiee obtained a report on the Auditor's own quality control procedures and considered
its annual audit quality and transparency report Dunng 2013 the Commitiee undertook a review to evaluate the performance of its Auditor
This was undertaken internally incorporating feedback from across the Group including the Management Team, the Ftnance function and
Committee members For the 2013 financal year management were satisied that there had been appropnate focus and challenge on the
prmary areas of audit nsk and assessed the quality of the audit process to be good The Committee concurred with the view of management

Non-audit services

The fees and performance of the Auditor are reviewed annually The Committee aims to ensure that the provision of non-audit services does not
impar the integrity Independence and obectmty of the Company s Auditor This has been achieved by adhenng to the Accounting Practices
Board Ethical Standard Number 5 relating to ‘non-audit services provided o audited entsies  The Commuttee has teviewed and monitored the
nature and extent of non-audit services and challenged it, where appropnate The Committee has also rewewed ihe fees (both indwdually angd
N aggregate relatve to the audit fee), noting that alt significant non-audit services work required Commuitiee approval before commencement

It s acknowledged that in some crcumstances, the Auditor's understanding of the business can be beneficial In improving the efficiency and
effectiveness of advisory work and, therefore, it has been considered approprnate that the Auditor be engaged It was also determined that the
nature of the work would not undermine auditor objectity and independence In total $1 2m (2012 30 8m) was spent on non-audit services
dunng the year aof which 30 8m (2012 $nil) related to acquisition of the GE Power Rental Business and $0 1m (2012 $0 4m) related to the
intenm review The work undertaken on the acquisition of the GE Power Rental Business 1s work that would usually be expected 1o be done by
the Company's auditor, as there are significant synergies and timing benefits 10 the Company As such the Commuttee considers that this level
of non-audit fees relative to the audit fee of $1 0m (2012 $09m) 1s acceptable For further detadls see note 9

Independence

The Commuttee requires confirmation, at least annually, from the Auditor that it pessesses the suitable iIndependence and impartiality to
continue to serve the Company as auditor The Commuittee reviews the expertise, performance and effectiveness of the Auditor Based on the
reviews conducted the Committee has satisfied stself that the UK professional and regulatory requirements for audit partner rotation have been
complied with

Reappointment of the Auditor

In light of the reviews undertaken and the satisfactory conclusions reached the Committee has recommended that a resolution proposing to
reappoint Deloitte {now in its third year) as the Group's Auditor for a further year be put to shareholders at the 2014 AGM
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Corparate Governance Repont

Nomination Committee Report

Membership
and process

Renmit

Terms of
Reference

The Board deterrmined that the actvities often defegated to a Nemination Committee, would be performed by the
Board as a whole There were no specific meetings of the Committee, however the Board considered a number of
tasks ordinanly underiaken by the Committee throcughout the year

The Committee 1s responsible, amongst other things, for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board

of the Company and of the Subsidiary and ensuring that both are compnsed of the nght balance of skills knowledge
and expenence 1dentfying and nominating for approval candidates to fill any vacancies on those Boards as and when
they anse, gving full consideration to succession planning for the Group, and making recommendations as to the
composition of the other committees of the Board

In discharging its normination related responsibiities, the Board is responsible for

e« ensurng that the Company has a formal and transparent procedure for the appaintment of new Executive and
Non-Executive Duectaors to the Board,

e ensuring that the Company reviews the balance and effectiveness of the Board identifying the skills needed and
those individuals who might best provide them, in accordance with the Principies of Good Governance and the
Code of Best Practice contaned in the Code the requirements of the UK Listing Authonty’s Listing, Prospectus and
Disclosure and Transparency Rules and any other applicable rules, as appropnate,

& reviewing regularly the Board structure size and composition (including by reference to skills, knowledge,
expenence and dversity} and make recammendations to the Board with regard to any adjustments that are
deemed necessary

o Icentifying and nommating candidates, tc fill Board vacancies as and when they anse as well as put n place plans
for successian in particular of the Chief Executive and Chaiman of the Company,

& pior 1o any appontment evaluahng the balance of skills knowledge and experience on the Board, and, in the iight
of this evaluation preparing a descnption of the role and capabilities required tor a particular appointment

Inidentifying suitable candidates the Board shall use open advertising or the services of external adwvisers to faclitate
the search, consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, and consider candidates on ment and against
objective cntena and with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board including gender taking care that
appointees have enough tme available to devote to the posion The Board's approach to diversity 1s detailed on
page €9

There were no changes to the Board duning the year
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Ethics Committee Report

Membership
and process

Committee
Attendance

Remit

Key activities
duning the year

The Ethics Committee, which compnses Baroness Derise Kingsm:ll (as Chairy John Campion, Shanaid Jemmett-
Page, and Vipul Tandon, 1s responsitle for adwising the Board on the development of the Group s comphance policies
and strategies :ncluding examining whether ethical nsks have been effectively identified, assessed, managed and
reporied to the Board, with a view to ensunng that the Group does not engage in bribery, corruption or unethical
benhaviour

The Committee met once in 2013 and the members' attendance record 1s set out on page 58

The Company mantains an ant-corruphen pohicy and all employees have certified that they have read and will comply
with that policy The Group also employs safeguards anc programmes across its business, including ant-corruption
raining programmes and due aikigence on third parties, designed to prevent the occutrence of fraud bribery and
corruption

Since the Committee’s last report, its main activities have been

» Areview of the Company's anti-corruption training including the extension to nclude modules on export
compliance and ant money laundenng and traning coverage within the Group

& Areview of the Company's process for supply chamn compliance certification, angd

» The Committee engaged the service of The Good Corporation to conduct an independent audit of the Group's
ethics and comphance practices The Good Corporation applied its framework on bribery and corruption, and
found the Company to be in the top quartie of all companies surveyed with a strong set of policies and controls to
prevent bribery and corrupiion

Following The Good Corporation’s report, the Committee has overseen further enhancements in the implementation of
procedures for safeguarding the Group against the nisk of bribery and corruption including

e developing vendor, agent and custormer centifications sign-offs agreements checklists, and other forms of due
dilgence in connection with engaging with thurd party providers,

e conducting third-party agent registration background checks and creating an electronic central repasitary for such
Information

e strengthering anti-corruption proecedures and processes for invoice and expense approvals, and

e thenclusion of a conflict of Interest policy into the corporate employee handbook and annual employee declaration
of compliance
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Corporate Governance Report

Directors’ Report

The Company was incorperated in England and Wales on 30 October 2002 under the Companies Act 2006 as a private company imitec by
shares with the name Horizon Acquisiion Company Limited and wath registered number 7062201 The pnncipal legislation under which the
Company operates 1s the UK Companies Act 2006 (the 'Act’} and the regulatitons made thereunder

The Company I1s a holding company for the Group whose Ordinary Shares are currently admitted to a standard listing on the Official List and
10 trading on the Main Market The Greup 1s a leacing global provider of fast-track large-scale mohile turbine power solutions to a vanety of
customers including sovereign owned ubiihes governmental institutions and industnal customers

Other Statutory and Regulatory Information
The Crrectors present the Annual Report together with the audited Consolidated Fnancial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013

Strategic Report

The Companies Act 2006 requires us ta present a far review of the business dunng the year to 31 December and of the position of the Group
at the end of the financial year along with a descnption of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties faced This (s set out In the Strategic Report,
which can be found on pages 2 to 51

Corporate Governance statement

The Disclosure and Transparency Rules require centain information 1o be included in a corporate governance statement in the Directors’ Report
Information that fulfils the requirernents of the corporate governance statement can be found in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 52
to 67 and s incorporated into this Directors’ Repont by reference

Information included in the Directors’ report

Certain information that fuffils the requirements of the Corporate Governance Statement can be found in the Cirectors’ report in the sections
headed ‘Substantiat shareholdings”, ' Deadlines for voting nights”, “Repurchase of shares”, “Amendment of the Company's articles of
associahon’ ‘Appontment and replacement of directars and Powers of the directors  and 1s incerporated into this Corporate Governance
section by reference

Disclaimer

The purpose of this Annual Report and Accounts 1s to provide information to the members of the Company The Annual Report and Accounts
have been prepared for, and onty for, the members of the Company, as a body, and no other persons The Company rts Directors and
employees agents or advisers do not accept or assume responsibilty to any other person to whom this document 1s shown or inte whose
hands it may come and any such responsibility or hability 1s expressly disclaimed

The Annual Report and Accounts contain certain forward-looking statements with respect to the operatons, perfermance and financial
conditon of the Group By their nature these statements involve uncertamnty since future events and circumstances can cause results and
developments te differ matenally from those anticipated  The forward-looking statements reflect knowledge and information available at
the date of preparation of this Annuat Report and Accounts and the Company undertakes no chligation to update these forward-looking
statements Nothing i thws Annual Report and Accounts should be construed as a profit forecast

Results and dividends

The results for the year are set out on page 34 to 38 Dwdends paid and proposed are set out on page 39 The Board 1s proposing a final
dvidend of 6 7 pence per share subject to shareholder approval at the AGM on 20 May 2014, payable on 3 June 2014 i¢ shareholders on the
register as at 4 Apnl 2014 Following the payment of an intenm dividend of 3 3 pence per share in May 2013 the proposed total dvidend for the
year 1s therefore 10 0 pence per share

Internal control and risk management
Details of the Group's approach to internal controt and nisk management can be found on pages 46 to 47

Directors and their interests

A list of Directors, their interests in the ordinary share capital of the Company therr interests in 1ts long-term perlormance share plan and details
of their options over the ordinary share capital of the Company are given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 88 No Director had

a matenal interest in any significant contract, other than a service contract or contract for services with the Company or any cf its operating
compares at any ime during the year The names of all persons who at any time dunng the year, were Direclors of the Company can be
found on pages 54 to 55 under The Board

As at the date of this report, indemnities (which are qualifying third-party indemanity provisions under the Companies Act 2006) are in place
under which the Compary has agreed to indemnify the Directors of the Cempany and the former Directors of the Company who held
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office dunng the year ended 31 December 2013 to the extent permitted by law and by the Company s Articles of Association in respect
of all habihties incurred In connection with the performance of ther duties as a Director of the Company or 1ts subsichanes Copies of these
indemnities are avallable for review at the Company's registered office

Employment policy

The Group continues to give full and farr consideration to applications for employment made by disabled persons hawng regard to therr
respective aptitudes and abiiies The policy Includes where practicable the continued employment of those who may become disabled
during their employment and the provision of training and career development and prometion, where appropnate The Group has continued
its pohcy of employee involvernent by making information avalable 1o employees on matters of concern to them Many employees are
stakeholders in the Company through participation in share option schemes and a long-term performance share plan

Gender diversity

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employs 196 people globally Around 27% per cent of cur workforce 1s female wath sorme 52 women
employed At a seniof leadership level women represented 12% (3 out of 26) of this population and 20% (one in five) of the Board are femate

Future developments
Important events since the year end are descnbed in note 35 and future developments are descrnbed in the Strategic report on pages 2 to 51

Relations with shareholders

The Board aims to prowde an impartial and straightforward analysis of the Greup and its business when communicating with shareholders,
and we believe that being clear and open In our assessment of the market for temporary power and the prospects for the business 1s extremely
important (n line with the Company's Main Market isting in London, management will contnue to engage fully with shareholders on a regular
basis

A reflection of the Board's commitment to this goal has been the appointment of a full ime Director of Investor Relations based in London
Beyond the formal reporting of full year and half-year results, presentations, group calls and one- te-one meetings will be undertaken by
management :n the UK Europe and North Amenca Non-Executive Directors are informed on a regutar basis of such actmty and encouraged
to engage direcily with shareholder meeting programmes dunng the year

The Board makes every effort to ensure it has a comprehensive understanckng of the views of major shareholders gained from reguiar contact with
such shareholders and frequent dialogue with our brokers The Board uses the Annual General Meeting to communicate with private investors and
welcomes therr participation

Conflicts of interest

The Group has ngorous procedures in place to deal with conflicts of interest Should any Directors declare any interests they have which could
conflict with those of the Group, then the Board ts sabsfied that the powers it has to authonse (of otherwise address) such potential conflicts are
effective

Major shareholders

As at 3 March 2014 (the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document) the Company had receved notification of the fotkowing
majar shareholders, representing 3% or more of the voting nghts attached to the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the Company

Name of Shareholder No of ordinary shares % of total voting rights
General Electnc International Inc 15,453,129 16 4%
SSP Energy 11,131,556 11 8%
ACM Energy Holdings 10,073,820 10 7%
JCLA 7,000,585 7 4%
Oppenheimer Funds Inc 6,171,648 6 6%
Aliance Bernstein 5,780,075 61%
J P Morgan Asset Management 5,559,537 55%
Blackrock Inc 5,232,977 56%
Capital Research Management 5,051,460 54%
Equinox Partners LP 2,988,749 32%

The Duectors are not aware of any other matenal interests amounting to 3% or more In the share capital of the Company
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Corporate Governance Report

Share capital

On 31 December 2013, the Company had in1ssue 94,251 622 ordinary shares of 10 pence (2012 78,235 164 ordinary shares of 10 pence)
Fellowing completion of its acauisiion of GE's power rental business on 28 Qctober 2013, the Company 1ssued 15,453,128 new ordinary
shares of 10 pence to General Electnc International Inc  Details of the changes In 1ssued share capital duning the year are disclosed in Note 23
to the accounts

Rights and obligations attached to ordinary shares

Subject lo the provisions of the Comparues Act 2006 (the Act } and without prejudice to any nghts attached o any existing shares any share
may be 1ssued with such nghts or restrictions as the Company may by ordinary resclution determine, or in the absence of such determination
including where such resolution does not make specific provision, as the Board may determine

Voting rights

Subject to disenfranchisemnent as provided in the Company's Articies of Association and subject to any special terms as tc voting on which
any shares may be 1ssued (no such shares currently being in 1ssue) and any other provisions of the Articles, on a show of hands every member
present In person {or, being a corporatton present by a duly authonsed representative} or by proxy shall have one vote and on a poll every
member present in person or by proxy shall have cne vote for every share of which he s the holder The Campany’s major shareholders do not
have difierent voting nghts

In the case of joint holders the vote of the senior who tenders a vote whether in person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the
votes of the other joint helders  and for this purpose senionty shall be determined by the order In which the names of the holders stand in the
Register in respect of the joint holding

Restrictions an voting

No member 18, unless the Board otherwise decides, entitted in respect of any share held by him to vote (either personally or by proxy or by a
corporate representative) at any general meeting of the Company or at any separate general meeting of the holders of any class of shares in
the Company if any calls or other sums presently payable by him in respect of that share remain unpad or If he is a person who 1S interested
(as defined in the Articles) in less than 0 25 per cent {in nominal value} of the shares of that class in1ssue and he has been served with a
restriction notice (as defined in the Articles) after failure to provide the Company with information concerning interests in those shares required
to be provided under the Act

Save as disclosed in the prospectus published by the Company in September 2011 1n connection with its readmission to the Official List of the
UK Listing Authonty (the Readmission Prospectus ', which 1s avallable on our website at www aprenergy com the Company 1s not aware of any
agreement between holders of secunties that may result in restnictions on voting nghts

As disclosed in the Readmission Prospectus, pursuant to relabionship agreements entered into between the Company and certan
shareholders on 13 June 2011, such shareholders are obhiged not to exercise therr voting nghis or precure any amendment to the Articies
which would be inconsistent with the terms of the relevant relatianship agreement

Pursuant to the relationship agreement entered inta between the Company and General Electnc tnternational Inc on 28 October 2013, such
shareholder 15 obliged to exercise or cause the exercise or, as appiicable, prevent the exercise of all veting nghts exercisable by any member of
the GE group in the manner required to give effect to its obiigations under such retationship agreement

Dividends

The Company In a general meeting may declare dividends in accordance with the respective nights of its members provided that no dvidend
shall be payable in excess of the amount recommended by the Directors The Directors may pay such ntenm dmdends as appear to them to
be |ustified No dwidend or other moneys payable In respect of a share shall bear interest as aganst the Company

There are no fixed date on which entitlement to dwvidends anses All dvidends unclaimed for a period of twelve years after becoming due for
payment shall be forfeited and shall cease to remain owing by the Comgany

Variation of rights

Whenever the capital of the Company s dwded into different classes of shares the nghts attached to any ciass may (unless otherwise
prowded by the terms of 1ssue of that class) be vaned or abrogated either with the consent in writing of the holders of three guarters of the
1ssued shares of the class (excluding treasury shares) or with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate meeting of such
holders

Restrictions on transfer of ordinary shares in the Company

There are no restnctions on the transfer of crdinary shares in the Company except that

& pursuant 1o the relationship agreement dated 28 Octaber 2013, General Electic (nternationa! Inc has agreed with the Company not to
directly or indirectly transfer or dispose of ordinary shares (withoul the prior wntten consent of the Company) untl the first anniversary of
the Relatonship Agreement or the earlier termination of such restnclions in accordance with the terms of the relattonship agreement
applcable (and thereatter for as long as members of the GE group hold equal to or greater than & per cent of the Company s ordinary
shares such ordinary shares must only be transterred or disposed of n accordance with agreed orderly marketing arrangements)
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e cerfain restnctions may from time to ime be iImposed by laws and regulations (for example insider trading laws), and

e purstant to the Listing Rutes of the Financial Conduct Authonty certain employees of the Company require the approval of the Company to
deal in the Company’s ordinary shares

Otherwise, the Company 1s not aware of any agreaments between holders of ordinary shares that may result in restrictions on therr transter

Amendment of Articles of Association

Unless expressly specified to the contrary in the Articles of the Company, the Articles may be amended by a special resolution of the
Company s shareholders

Rights to appoint and remove Directors

The Board may appoint any person to be a Director Any Director s appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next annual general
meeting and shall then be eligible for election by shareholders

In addition to any power of removal conferred by the Act the Company may by special resolution remove any Director befare the exprration of
his/her penod of office The office of a Director must be vacated f (1) he resigns his office by notice in writing defivered to the office ar tendered
at a mesting of the Board, or {n) by notice in writing he offers ta resign and the Board resolves to accept such offer or {m) his resignation i1s
requested by all of the other Directors and all of the other Directors are not less than three in number or (v} a registered med:cal practitioner
who s treating that Director gives a written opimicn to the Company stating that that Director has becoeme physically or mentally incapable of
acting as a Director and may remain so for more than three months, ar (v) by reason of a Directer's mental heaith a court makes an order
which wholly or partly prevents that Director from personally exercising any powers or rights whuch that Director would otherwise have, or (vi) he
15 absent without the permission of the Board from meetings of the Board (whether or not an alternate Director appointed by him attends) for six
consecutive months and the Board resolves that his office 1s vacated or (i} he becomes bankrupt or compounds with his creditors generally
or {vin) he 1s prohibited by law from being a Duector, or (ix) he ceases to be a Director by vitue of the Act or 15 removed from office pursuant to
the Arlicles

Relationship agreements

As disclosed 1n the Readmission Prospectus, certain shareholders entered into relationship agreements with the Company on 13 June 2011
The pnncipal purpose of such relationship agreements s to ensure that the Company 1s capable of carrying on its business independently of
the relevant shareholder and to ensure that transactions and relahionships between the Company and such sharehclders are at arm’s length
and on a commercial basis Such agreements will terminate upon such shareholder (fogether with their connected persons and investment
vehicles) ceasing to hold 5 per cent or more of the total number of ordinary shares In 1ssue In addition solong as such sharehoiders’ collective
shareholaing i the Company does not fall below 5 per cent such shareholder will have the right to nominate for appointment one Dicector (or
n the case of the Founders twao Directors) at each of the Board and Operating Board levels

In additon General Electnc International, Inc entered into a relationship agreement with the Company on 28 October 2013 The principal
purpase of such relationship agreement (s to ensure that the Company 1s capable of carmying on its business independently of GE and to
ensure that transacticns and relationships between the Company and GE are at arm's length and on a commercial basis The principal rights
and obligahons of General Electne International, Inc under such agreement will terminate upon members of the GE group ceasing to held
equal to or greater than 5 per cent of the Company s ordinary shares In addion, as such members of the GE group hold equal te or greater
than 5 per cent of the Company's ordinary shares General Electnc International Inc will have the nght to appointment one observer 1o attend
Board meetings and meetings of the Audt, Ethics, Nomination and Remunerabion Committees

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Company s Articles and to any directions gwven by the Company in general meeting by special resolution,
the business of the Company 1s managed by the Board, which may exercise all the powers of the Company whether relating to the management
of the business of the Company or not In particular the Board may exercise all the powers of the Comparty to borrow money and to mortgage or
charge all or any part of the undertaking, property and assets (present anc iuture) and uncalled capital of the Company and to 1ssue debentures

and other secunties whether cutnght or as collateral secunty for any debt 4iability or cbligation of the Company or any third party

Powers in relation to the Company issuing or buying back its own shares

At this year s Annual General Meehing sharehoiders will be asked to grant authonity to the Board to allot relevant secunties (1) up to a nominal
amount of £6 220 607 (representing 62,206,070 ordinary shares of 10p each) being the guideline Imit of approximately 66% of the Company's
ordinary share capital Of this amount £3 110,303 (or 31,103 035 ordinary shares of 10p each), representing approximately 33% of the
Company s ordinary share capital can only be allotted pursuant to a fully pre-emptive nghts 1ssue such authonty to apply until the end of next
year s Annual General Meeting {or 1f earher, until the close of business on 20 August 2015)

A special resolution will also be proposed to grant the Cirectors' additional power 10 make non-pre-emptive Issues for cash in connection with
nghts 1ssues and otherwise up to a nominal amount of £471,258, representing approximately 5% of the Company s ordinary share capital A
special resolution will also be proposed at this year's Annual General Meeting to grant the Directors authonty to repurchase the Company's
ordinary shares In the market The authonty will be imited to a maximum of 9,425 162 ordinary shares, representing 10% of the Company s
ordinary share capital and will set the minimum and maxmum pnces which may be paid
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Corparate Governance Report

Founder securities

The Founder securities take the form of C ordinary shares in APR Energy Holdings Limited Details of the Founder secunties are disclosed in
Note 25 to the accounts

Save with the approval of the halders of 75 per cent of the Founder secunties in issue from time to time (1) APR Energy Holdings Limited
may not be voluntanly wound up (i} the Company may not sell its ordinary shares in APR Energy Holdings Limited, () APR Energy Holdings
Limited may not seil any matenal part of the business or assets acquised pursuant to the Acquistion and (v) orcinary shares must not be
1issued at a discount Lo therr market value

Securitles carrying special rights

Save as disclosed in the Readmission Prospectus {and summarised above) in respect of Founder securities no persan holds secunties in the
Group carrying specia nghts with regard te control of the Company

Rights under the employee share scheme
There are no resinctions on the exeraise of voting nghts in relation to shares to which the employee share scheme relates

Going concern

The Directors confirm that the business 1s a going concern on the basis that it has significant cash, debt faciliies and net assets and for this
reason have adopted the going concern principle In the preparation of the financial statements Further discussion regarding going concern 1s
provided on page 39 in the Financial Review

Change of control

The Company 1s party to a number of agreements, which take effect alter or terminate upen a change of controt of the Company following the
successful conclusion of a takeover bid Such agreements incluge purchase contracts with Caterpillar Inc together with several customer sales
contracts, none of which are considered individually materal

In additon the Company's share schemes contain provisions which, in the event of a change of control, would result in cutstanding options
and awards becoming exercisable subject to the rules of the relevant schemmes As summarised in Note 25 to the accounts, if a change of
caontrol of the Company 1s at a price per ordinary share that 1 at {east equaf to a specified price per orcdinary share, the Founder securities may
te converted into the requisite number of ordinary shares

There are na agreements between the Company and its Directors or its employees prowviding for compensation for loss of office or employment
that accurs because of a takeover bid (although In ine with the position for many listed companies, provisions of the Company's share plans
permit options and awards granted under such plans o vest on a takeover In certain crcumstances)

Certain members of the Management Team have entered Mo service agreements with APR Energy, LLC, a subsidiary of the Company The
terms of such agreements generally provide that in the event of a termination of that person's employment due ta a change of control of the
Company, the relevant employee shall be entitled to (1) unpaid base salary as at the date of terrmination (1) any annual bonus accrued but
unpad as at the date of termination, () a number of months’ base salary and (iv) other non-maternal benefits

Disclosure of information to the Company’s Auditor

In accerdance with section 418 of the Act the Directors who hetd office at the date of the approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that so far
as they are each aware there 1s no relevant audit informatron {as defined by section 418(3) of the Act) of which the Group's Auditor 1s unaware,
and each Director has taken all the steps that he/she cught to have taken as a Director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit
infermation and 1o establish that the Group's Auditor 1s aware of that information

Indemnity of officers

Under Article 180 of the Artictes the Company may indemnify any Director or other officer aganst #abiity subject 1o the provisions of the Act,
and the Artictes grant an indemaity to the Directors against any habity for the costs of legal proceedings where judgement 13 given in therr
tavour Under the authonty conferred by Article 180, the Company has granted indemnities to Diractors and officers of the Company and its
subsidianes The indemnities do not apply 1o any claim which anses out of fraud, default, neghigence, ar breach of fiduciary duty or trust by the
indemnified person

The Company has Duectors and officers hability nsurance which covers each Director and hus or her fawful spouse or cvil partner against
losses for clams made aganst them in ther capacity as Directors of the Company The policy 1s intended to mantain such coverage for the
term of the Directors’ appointments, subject 1o the terms and conditions of the policy of insurance from time to ime in force

Where It is appropnate for a Director to seek advice from independent adwisers at the Company's expense, the Company will reimburse the

cost of reasonabie lega! costs incurred subject (in each case) to a maximum of £5,000 per Director and, subject further to the prior approval of
the Board
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Essential contractual arrangements

The Company's key equipment purchases are focused on two major suppiiers with which ¢ has strategic alllances and other agreements The
Company purchases its diesel and Gas reciprocating fleet from Ring Power Corporation with ts headguarters located in St Augustine Flonda,
USA Ring Power 1s an authonsed dealer of Caterpillar Inc based in Peoria llinais, USA On 28 October 2013 the Company purchased GE s
dual-fuel mobile turbine fieet The Company has arrangements for global support and service from GE, Ring Power and Pratt & Whitney Power
Systerns, inc to procure spare parts as required

Political contributions
There were no poliical contributions durning the penod

Annual General Meeting

The Company's Annual General Meeting ( AGM'} will be held on 20 May 2014 The Notice of the Annual General Meeting and details of the
resolutions (o be proposed at the meeting will be providec to shareholders in a separate circular

AGM - special resolutions

Special resolutions will be proposed at the 2014 AGM to authonse the Directors (1) to allot ordinary shares up to an aggregate amount
representing approximately one third of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company and a further one third 1n relation to nghts 1ssues (in
line with guidance 1ssued by the Asscoiation of the Brtish Insurers) (i) to disapply the statutary pre-emption nghts of shareholders on aliotment
of equity secunties for cash up to a im# of a total of shares with a norminal value of approximately 5 per cent of the current 1Issued share capital,
() to authcnse the Company to purchase ts own orcinary shares, (iv) to approve the calling of meetings (cther thar AGMSs) on 14 days'

notice (v} to give authornity (in the form customanly taken by Enghsh law governed companies listed on the London Stock Exchange) for the
Company to make donations 1o chanties or other worthwhile causes that might techrically fall within the Act's definiion of a poliical donation,
and (v) to ratty the payment of previous dividends

Auditor
Deloitte LLP was appointed as Auditor at the last AGM and has expressed its willngneass to continue in office and, in accordance with the
provisions of section 489 of the Act, a resolution propasing its reappointment will be put forward at the forthcoming AGM

Greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions

The following information reflects the Company's mandatory reporting of greenhouse gas emissions pursuant to the Act's (Strategic Report
and Drirectors’ Repart) Reguiations 2013 (the "Regulations”) Under the Regulations the emission categones captured within the definitions
reflect all matenal emission sources for which the Group 1s desmed respensible

The Group has cecided to measure GHG emissions using an operational control approach, the organisational boundary has been set to reflect

those actvities within the Group s control meaning that the Group does not have responsibility for any emission saurces that are beyond the

boundary of its operahional contral Fleet emission are driven by three man factors the fuef type customers chose to use the pattern of thair

usage and the fuel efficiency of the Group's fleet Ordy the {ast of these three factors 18 under the Group s control, therefore emissions ansing

from these other factors has not been measured

The Group does not manufacture any products or equipment and has identified the following key actvities as being within the GHG reporting

requirements

— Scope 1 Fleet emissions reflectng all fuel types burned within the Group s power generating equipment, including reciprocating engines
and dual-fuel turbines used acrass all geographies within the Group's control

— Scope 2 Heat and electnoity purchased from the respective tocal suppliers for sitefeffice usage and Group owned and cperated site
vehicles This has been calculated as non-matenal and would reflect less than 1% of emissions and has therefore not been included

At present Scope 3 activities (e g business travel, freight shipping) are excluded from the reporting scope as these are not within the Group s
operatioral control nor 15 il beleved that the quality of the data would not be suficiently robust for accurate reporting in these areas

The Group has identiied GHG emissions per megawatt hour (MWH) as the most appropnate KPI (referred to as the intensity ratio) This ratio
will be impacted by fuel type, fuel quality and power generation equipment type, the determination of each of these factors rests with the client

Global GHG emissions data - (CO.e metric tonnes rounded to the nearest 10,000)

2013
Scope 1 2,240,260
Scope 2 <20,000
Total GHG emissions (CO:e) 2,260,260
Company’s chesen intensity ratio
Emissions per MWH 074
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Corporate Governance Report

Statement of the Directors
in respect of the Annual Report and Financial Statements

Falr, batanced and understandable

As recrared by the Code the Ouectors confirm that they conseder that the Apnual Report, taken 8s a whote, is (g, balanced and
understandable and provides the nlomation necessary for shegeholders to assess the Company’s performance, business mode! and stratagy
When arriving at this posiion the Boad was asssied by a number of processes mciudinyg the fotowng

» the Annual Report I3 drafted by appropnate serkor management with co-ordination to ensure consistency Across sections

& avefificaion procass o ensure factual accwacy'

= comprehensrve reviews of drails of the Report exe undertaken by members of the Management Team and other senior management,
» an advanced draft 1 considered and reviewed by the Company's legal advisers and other acwvisers, and

o the final draft is reviewed by the Audit Comnsttee pnor to consideration by the il Boasd

Statement of Directory’ responsibilities
The Dwectors are responsibie lor prepanng the Annugl Report and the financiad statements n accordance with appkcabie law and regulabans

Comparty law requires the Cirectors to prepare financial statements for each financlal year Under that law the Ovectors are requred to prepar
the Group financal statements n accordance with Intemational Finencial Reporting Standards JFRS3) as adopted by the Ewopasn Union
and Articlo 4 of the |AS Regutahon and have also chosen to prepare the Parent Company &nancial statlements under IFRSs as adopted by
tha EU  Under comparty law the Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied thal they gve a tue and {ew view of the
state ol affairs ol the Comparny and of the profit or loss of tha Compary ko that penod  In prepanng thesa financlal staterments, Intematonal
Accounting Standarc 1 requires that Directors

» properly select and apply acocounting polcies,
o present information, scuding accounting policies in & mannar that prowides relevant, rekable, comparable and understandable nformation

» provide additonal disciosuras whan compliance with the specfic requrements m FRSs are nsuffiaent to enables users to understand the
impact of parbcular ransactions other events and conditions on the entity’s financlal posdion and financial performance and

« mako an agsessment of the Companty's ability to continue as a going concem.

The Directors are responsible lor keeping adequate accounting racords that are sufficent 10 show and explam the Company's transactions and
drsclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial posiion ol the Company and enable them 10 ensure that the financial siatements
comply with the Act. They ere aiso respongsible lor saleguarding the assets of the Company and hence for talung reasonable steps lor the
prevention and detection of fraud and olher iTegulanties

The Directors are responsible lor the maintenance and integnty of the coporate and financial nlormation nchuded on the Company’'s wabsite
Legstabon 1 the Unked Kingdom govermeng the preparabon and dissemsnation of financial statements may chifer from legrslation in other
(urisdictions

Roesponsibillty statoment

Wa confirm that 10 the best of our knowladge
« the financial stalements, prepared n accordance with internabonal Financial Reporing Standards give a true and fair view of the assats,
fiskfities, Anancial postion and profit or loss of the Comparnty and the undartakmngs included wn the consolidation taken as a whole,

e the strategc report inciudas a kair review of the developmant and performance of the business and the positon of the Company and the
underlakings mciuded in the consokdation taken as a whole, together with a descnipbion of the prncipal nsks and uncertainties that they lace,
and

o the Annual Report and financial statemants. taken as a whole, are fay, balanced and undenstandable and provde the trformation necessary
for sharehaolders to assess the Company's performance busmess model and srategy
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Annual Statement
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to present our report on
Directors remuneration at the end of a
successful and transformational year for the
Group We operate a simple remuneration
structure across all employees, which
provides a clear ink between pay our key
strategie prionbies and the overall interests
of sharehoiders The Committee considers
it essental to ensure that our executive
pay arrangements are fully aligned with the
ambition and achievement of our profitable
growth strategy

We were pleased with the Group § progress
during the year in which we delivered a
strong financial performance, togelher with
the completion of the acquisition of the GE
Power Rental Business which accelerated
the pace at which we can execute our
strateqy

Remuneration Committee activities

The Remuneration Committee (the
Committee ) has recognised best practice

arrangements, resulting m John Campion,

Chiet Executive Officer stepping down from

the Commuttee, which now comprises only
Non-Executive Directors

The main actvities of the Committee since

the last report were as follows

e Assessed performance ¢t the Chief
Executive Officer and deternmined
annual bonus for 2013,

# Approved share awards for 2013,

e Established the Chief Executive Cfficer s
salary arrangements for 2014,

o Set bonus targets for the Chiet
Executive Officer for 2014

o Reviewed remuneraton benchmarking
and provided recommendation to the
Board regarding fee structures and levels
for Charman and Non-Executive Directors,

o Considered remuneration market
trends and corporate governance
developments,

® Reviewed the revised remuneration
reporting regulations and prepared
the Directors’ remuneration policy and
repart, and

o Considered a Non Executive Director
share purchase plan and provided
recammendation to the Board

Further details can be found in the
Remuneration Committee's report on page 90

Remuneration for 2013

Executive remuneration for the year was
set in accardance with the outcome of a
detalled review of the remuneration policy
and levels for the Executive Directors
undertaken by the Committee and its
adwvisers, as detailed in our 2012 Directors’
Remuneration Report This review sought
to align remuneration to dnve long term
shareholder value growth development and
sustainability and ensure that the Company
1s able to attract and retain the top talent in
the industry

The Committee consulted with a number

of the Company's major institutional
shareholders (including those represented
on the Board) in relaton to these changes
(equating to an aggregate sharehclding

N excess of 50%) Those consulted were
altogether supportive of the changes, and
shareholders voted cverwhelmingly in
support as reflected by therr 98% favourable
vote at the 2013 AGM

The Company has continued to seek to
align the long-term interests of shareholders
the senior management team (iIncluding

the Chief Executive Officer) and other
employees in the Group by significantly
increasing part:cipahon in the Company's
Share Award Plan 2012 — with participation
now cascaded to all levels of the Group {and
with approximately 130 total participants)
Details of the remuneraticn decisions for
2013 are set out in the Directors annual
remuneration report which follows

The Commuttee believes that the
performance of John Campion has been
strong throughout the year Under his
leadership and wision the Group has effected
a transformatianal acquisition and moved,

at pace with its ambitions Remuneration for
the year reflects the Group's strong financial
performance, and 1s disclosed on page

84 of the Directors remuneration report

This performance resulted in the award of

a bonus representing 107% of target to the
Chief Executive for 2013 The performance
condiiens of the 2011 LTIP award relating
the penod ending 31 December 2013 were
not met, and theretore, did not vest

Key remuneration decisions for 2014
Following the extensive remuneration review
in 2012, the Committee has, with this in
mind made no matenal or substantal

changes to the Company's Executive Director
remuneration arrangements dunng 2013

During 2013, the remuneration arrangements
for the Charman and Non-Executive Directors
were reviewed by the Committee This review
resulted in changes to the fee structure and
fee levels efiective January 1, 2014 These
changes have been made to reflect the
commitment and coninbution that 1s expected
from the Charman and Non-Executive
Directors, and 1s commensurate with
comparaple roles In companies of a similar
size and complexity to APR Energy

Remuneration disclosure

This report compites with the requirements
of the Large and Medium-sized Comparues
and Groups Regulations 2008 as amended
1N 2013 the prowisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code (September 2612} and
the Listing Rules

The repon comprises two main seclions

e The Directors’ remuneraiion policy report
(rages 77 1o 83) This section contams
details of the remuneration policy that
we propose will apply from the 2014
AGM (20 May 2014) subject to oblaning
shareholder approval at the AGM, and

& The Directors' annual report on
remuneration This section sets out
details of how our remuneration policy
was implemented for the year ended 31
December 2013 and details of Directors’
remuneration for the year ended 31
December 2013

At the Company's AGM in May 2014

» The Directors’ remuneration policy report
will be put to a binding shareholder vote,
and

e The Directors annual report ¢n
remuneration report will be put to an
advisory shareholder vote

| sincerely hope that you find this report of
the Committee’s work and remuneration
cemprehensive and understandable t hope
you will support the resclutions presented at
the upcoming AGM

Jim Hughes
Chawrman,
Remuneration Comnuttee
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Directors’ Remuneration Report

Reward principles

Our policy on remuneration

The Group's remuneration policy 1S set based on the Remuneration Commiitee’s recommendations subject to Board approval The Commitiee
seeks to prowde fair and appropnate remuneration acress the Group and to retain key talent wathin the organisanion tn setting remuneration
levels, the Committee has regard to comparable UK and US energy market peers in terms of size, geographical spread, and complexity It also
considers pay and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group

Remuneration levels and the refative importance of its different components are commensurate with those of the Company's UK and US
energy market peers with similar revenue and market capitalisation levels In considenng these comparators the Committee reflects APR
Energy s position as a UK hsted company and acknowtedge that the Group's international business, operating within multipte financial markets,
15 Inherently more complex than many of its comparators

The key elements of the Chief Executive Officer s remuneration are base salary and benefits, an annuai bonus plan and long-term incentive
plans

Each element 1s designed to achieve specific objectives In aggregate, the different elements create a unified and balanced reward mix and
competitive employment proposition The ndmidual elements are descnibed in more details in the remuneration policy table on pages 77 to 80

The Committee considers it essential to ensure that owr remuneration arrangements are fully aligned with the ambition and achievement of our
profitable growth strategy and enhancing long-term sharehoider value

The intention 1s to provide remuneration packages that help attract, retain, and motivate with a significant proportion of the remuneration of the
executive members of the senior management team {Inclucking the Chief Executive Officer) being structured 1o ink rewards to baoth corporate
and indivdual performance Performance related elements of senior executive remuneration seek (o promate the long-term success of the
Group and are compatible with the Group's nsk policies and systems

The Committee takes into consideration performance on environmental social, and governance (ESG) 1ssues, and 1t believes that no element
of the executive incentive structure raises ESG nsks through inadvertently motivating rresponsible behaviour or the taking of any undue nsks
with the business

Stretching performance targets

The Remuneration Committee considers that a successful remuneration policy must ensure that a significant part of the remuneraton package
15 inked to the achievement of stretching corporate performance targets and a sirong alignment of interest with shareholders Reflecting our
pay for performance policy bonus anc share awards are inked to performance conditions with pre-determined targets No payment 1s made
below threshold levels of performance and at siretch levels of performance, a majonty of total compensation s delivered through performance-
related incentives paid in a combmation of cash and shares

Competitive remuneration

The intention 1s to provide remuneration packages that heip attract, retain, and motivate the members of the seruor management team to
achieve the Group's objectives of delivering growth in profits and enhancing long-term shareholder value The remuneration package and
the relative mportance of ds different campenents are based on a view of both UK and US energy market peers, with target compensaton
set around the mechan and the abrity for exceptional performance to be rewarded through vanable pay methods at the upper quartie of the
market Remuneration should reflect best prachice among our peer groups, suppart our strategy, and have regard to governance principies
around remuneration

Commercial sensitivity with regards ta disclosure of performance measures and targets

It s expected that commercially sensivity measures, targets and outcomes (particularly sirategic and personal annual bonus targets) will not
pe disclosed retrospectwely where the Committee considers this 1s nat in the Company’s commeraial interests
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy Report

It 1s intended that this Poltcy Report shall take binding effect from the date of its approval at the AGM on 20 May 2014 Information ort how the
Company intends to implement the pohicy for the current financial year 1s set out in the ‘Staterment of implementation of remuneration policy”

on page 84

Future policy - Executive Directors

Purpose and link
to strategy

Element

Operation

Performance
measures

Maximum
opportunity

Executive Directors

Attract and retain ugh-calibre
talent necessary to deliver the
Group s sirategy

Base salary

Reflect market value of role
and the Director's skills,
experence and performance

Where the Executive Director
also recenes fees from the
Company these will be taken
nio account when setting
base salary

Reviewed annually, any increases
typically apply from 1 February

When determireng base salary

levels, consideranon 1s given to the

following

e salary levels paid for similar
rcles with comparable status,
skills, and responsiiity In UK
and US energy market peers of
comparable size and complexty

e the competitiveness of salary
levels against these peers, and

o performance aganst personal
and corparate objectives,
expernence and condiions
throughout the Group

No prescnbed maximum annual ~ None
ncrease

Salary increases to Executive
Directors are generally within
the guidelines for the wader
employee population

However increases may be

made above this level at the

Committee’s discretion to

take account of Indmvidual

circumstances such as

@ Increase in scope and
responsibility,

® Increase to reflect the
indnadual's development and
performance inrole (e g fora
new appointment where base
salary may be increased over
time rather than set dwectly
at the levet of the previous
incumbent or market level)
and

& Alignment to market fevet

Provide local market-
competitive retrement
benefits

Retirement benefits

Attract and retain high-cahbre
talent necessary to deliver the
Group's strategy

Abitty to invest In a standard
company 10 a “Section 401K"

ptan (a US retrement plan made
avalable to US emplioyess
generally} or a local equivalent plan
on the same ierms as for other
employees

These arrangements are subject io
himits based on US iaw

Pension contribution may be pad
nto personal pension savings
plans or paid as a separate cash
allowance

Maximumn of 25% of base salary ~ None

No element other than base
satary 1s pensionablie
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Directors' Remuneration Report

Future policy - Executive Directors (cont’d)

Element Purpose and link Operation Maximum Perfarmance
to strategy apportunity measures
Orther benefits Provice local market- The Group provides a range of Set at alevel which the None
competitve and cost-efiective  benefits which may include a Remuneraticn
benefits to executives to assist  car benefit (or cash equivalent), Committee considers
them to carry out therr duties prwvate medical nsurance & Appropnately posiboned
effectively permanent health insurance and against comparable rotes
life assurance N companies of a similar
Attract and retain high-calibre s1ize and complexty in the
talent necessary to deliver the  Additional bengfits may also be relevant market, and
Group s strategy provided in certain crcumstances o provides a sufficient
which may include relocation level of beneft based on
expenses, housing allowance and the rale and indmdual
school fees Other benefits may be crrcumstances, such as
offered if considered appropnate relocation
and reasonable by the Committee
The benefits arrangements for
executive directors are reviewed
by the Committee periodically
10 ensure appropnateness in
terms of the type and leve! of
benefits provided In determining
appreprateness the Committee
will consider factors such as the
drrector’s country of residence and
length of service as well as local
practices, cost and convenience
Annual bonus Reward and incentivise Measures and targets are set For maximum performance  Performance is assessed

the achievernent of annuai
financial and strategic targets

annually and payout levels are
determined by the Rermuneration
Committee based cn performance
against those targets

The Remuneration Committee
may, In exceptional circumstances,
amend the bonus payout

should this not, In the view of

the Commuttee, reflect overall
business performance or indmvidual
contribution

Annual bonus 1s payable in cash
There are no clawback or malus

provisions apphcabie to the annuai
bonus

250% of base salary

For on-target performance
125% of base salary

Far threshold performance
50% of base salary

No bonus is payable if
performance 1s below
specified threshold levets

using the following
melrics

75% of the award 1s
based on financial
measures, currently
revenue, adjusted EBIT

and adjuste¢ ROCE, and

25% of the award (s
based on strategic
measures

The measures and
targets are set by
the Committee each
year The measures
that wil! apply for the
2014 financial years
are descnbed in the
Direciors’ annual
remuneration report
Measures for the
following years will
te summarnsed in
the Directors’ annual
remuneration report of
the relevant year
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Future policy - Executive Directors {cont'd)

Element

Purpose and link
to strategy

Operation

Maximum
apportunity

Performance
measures

Long-term share
based incentive
plans

Motwvate and reward the
achievernent of long-term
Group financiat performance in
line with the Group's strategy
and long-term shareholder
returns

Support the creation of
shareholder value and aligns
Executive interests with those
of long-term shareholders

Awards made in the form of
conditional shares or options,
with vesting dependent upon
the achievement of performance
conditions

Grants are typically made annually

The Commiftee judges whether
and to what extent targets have
been met and If an exceptional
event occurs that causes the
Committee to consider that the
targets are no longer appropriate,
the Committee may adjust them

Awards vest subject to continued
emplcyment and performance
measured after three financal
years and may vest earlier in
good leaver circumstances or

in connechon with a change of
contral ot other corparate event
In accordance with the plan rules

The Committee may acjust the
number of shares that vest to
ensure the basis of calculation to
ensure It is far and consistent

Awards may also be adjusted in
the event of a vanation of capital
In accordance with the plan rules

There are no clawback or malus
provisions applicable to the long-
term incentive plans

Awards vest an the foliowing

basis

®» Threshold performance
30% of the maximum
shares awarded

& 'Maxmum' performance
100% of the shares
awarded

With straight-ine vesting
between performance levels

Current annual award levels
for Executive Directers range
between 100% - 300% of base
salary at the tme of grant

Overall Individual hmit of 400%
of base salary, In exceptional
crreumstances

The Committee retains the
discretion to make awards
up to the indduat it and,
would expect to consull with
significant investors if awards
were to be made routinely
above current levels

Performance 1s
measured against
growth of the Group s
annualised adjusted
eamings per share,
measured over a
mimmum three year
penod

The measures and
largels are set by the
Committee

Details of the targets
that will apply for
2014 are set out in
the Directors annual
remuneraton report

Histonc
Commitments

Honaur previous
agreements

Where commitments have been
given pnor to the 2014 AGM, as
a matter of palicy APR Energy will
honour those commitments N
accordance with therr terms The
only such current commitments
are share awards made and
disclosed 1o shareholders in
previous years

Dependent on
creumstances

Dependent on
crcumstances
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Directors’ Remuneration Repaort

Future policy - Nan-Executive Directors

Element Purpose and link Operation Maximum Performance
to strategy opportunity measures

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors’ fees

Fees Reward indmduals for Fees are reviewed penodically Set at a level which None
fulfiling the relevant role @ Reflects the commutment
The tee structure s as follows and contnbution that
Attract and retain ndividuals « The Charman s paid a single, ts expected from the
with the skills, expenence and consolidated fee, Charman and Non-
knowledge to contnbute 1o an & The Non-Executive Directors Executive Directors, and
effective Board are pad a basic fee, ® Is appropnately postioned
plus acditional fees for against comparable roles in
membership or charmanship companies of a similar size
of Board Committees or further and complexity among UK
responsibiities (e g SID), and US energy companies
® Fees are currently paid in cash of a similar size and
although the Company may international scope

ntroduce a facility whereby

Nar-Executive Directors can elect  ACtual fee levels are disclosed
to recewe a portion of ther fees ' the Directors” annual

In APR Energy shares basedon  'emuneration report for the
open market value at the tme relevant financial year

As noted above performance measures aopply to the Annual banus and the Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) These were chosen and targets are set as follows

= Annual bonus — the specific metncs and therr weightings are sef by the Committee m the hght of the Board s assessment of the strategic imperatves facing the
Company and the budgets and ctfrer operational plans adopted by the Board lo best address both short and longer-term imperatives Manargement proposes
Suitable meatnes (which are quantitative wherever possible) and levels of performance to form the threshold on-target and maxrmum levels of attamnment The
Comrmittee then assesses whether actwevernent of these 1s approprately ahigned with sharehelders interests and whether the reward that would accrue ta the
Exscutive Directors would be justifable They also exarmine whether the metnc 15 consistent with the requirements of prudent nsk management (and does not tself
credte perverse incentives) and good govemance

= LIIP - after consguiting with shareholtiers in 2012 1t was determined that the LTIP plan was lully ahgned with the strategic imperatives facing the Company could
eastly be adapted o changing circumsiances and so represented a strong means of assessing value-creating actviies By including a longer-tern assessment of
annuafised earmngs per share growzh over a minmum of three years a clear ncentive 1s created to manage the business for value over the longer term Details of
outstanding awards under the Company s LTIPs are set out on page 118

llustrative performance scenarios The chart show three scenanos (@) mnimum {b) on-target and (c)
maximurm In developing the scenanos, the following assumptions
3 have been made
200 Chief Executive Officer 3051000
Fixed remuneration only based on latest known salary
350 E retirement benefits and other benefits, as shown in single
3000 '-él figure table
2 500 é Base Benefits Retirement Total
2000 $'000s salary benefits  fuxed
CEO 714 14 10 738
1500
Based on what an Executive Director would receive i
1.000 $736 000 performance was In line with the on-target scenanc
500 -
o 100% g & Annual bonus pays out at 125% of salary for on-target
£
Minimuim On-Target s performance
& ® A LTIP award with a face value of 100% (In ine with the
I Foed Annual Varable M Long-em varable Q normal” grant policy} pays out 30% of maximum, being
threshoid leve! of vesting
The above chart prowides an lustration of the operation of the Based on what an Executive Director would recewe (f
remuneration policy and shows the levels of remuneration in US performance was in line with the maximum scenaro
dollars that would be recewed by the Chief Executive Officer for
different performance tevels In accordance with the Directors E ® Annual bonus pays out at 250% of salary for maximum
remuneration policy for 2014 3 performance
§ & A LTIP award with a face value of 200% (in ling with the
a ‘maximum  possible award under the plan rules) pays out
=2 at 100% of maximurm
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Non-Executive Director Fees

The Chairman is paid a single consolidated fee per annum The
Non-Executive Cirectors are paid a basic fee plus fees reflecting
additional responsibilites includng  Senior independent Oirector
membership and charrmanship of Beard Commitiees In additon, the
Committee retains the authonty to pay addiional fees, up to £20,000
for iIndependent work cutside of the scope of the Board subject to
approval by the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The annual rates for Non-Executive Director fees effective 1 January
2014, are shown n the 1abie on page 83

The Company encourages the Non-Executive Directoss to buidd up
a holding in the Company's shares The Commuittee may introduce
afacity whereby Non-Executive Directors may elect to receive a
portion of therr fees in Ordinary Shares of the Cempany purchased
on a regular basis in the market

Letters of appointment

Non-Executive Directors, including the Chairman, are appointed
pursuant to a letter of appointment

The contractual arrangements for the current Chief Executive Officer
comprses a service agreement with APR Energy LLC and a letter
of appointment with the Company Under the terms of his service
agreement the Chief Executive Officer Is entitied to a termination
equal to twelve months salary Where appropnate, it will cantinue

to be the Company s policy that an Executive Director may have a
service agreement with the relevant operating subsidiary in addition
to approprate contractual arrangements with the Company

The details of the Directors' letters of appointment with the Company
are summansed in the table below

Name of Cirector Date of Ietter Notice

of appointment penod
Mike Fairey (Charrman) 17 December 2009 12 months
John Camgion 13 June 2011 12 months
Matthew Alien 25 January 2012 12 months
Gregory Bowes 13 June 2011 3 months
Edward Hawkes 12 January 2010 12 months
Jim Hughes 25 January 2012 12 months
Dernise Kingsmili 17 December 2009 12 manths
Haresh Jaisinghani 25 January 2012 12 months
Shonaid Jemmett-Page 23 July 2012 12 moanths
Vipul Tandon 13 June 2011 3 months

Terms of appeintment of Directors

Executive Directors' service contracts are carefully considered by
the Committee The Committee considers that a roling contract
with a notice penod of 12 months 1s appropnate A longer intial
pernod of notice of up o 36 manths, may be used where considered
appropniate in order to secure the recrutment of an external
candidate

The appontment of Non-Executive Directars 1s normally for a hxed
term of three years, dunng which time the appointment may be
terrmunated by the Board, or by the Company s shareholders on
notice

Exit payments

Int the event of early terminaton, an Executive Director may receve
compensation up to a maxamum of basic salary, retirernent benefit
entitlement and other contractual benefits over the notice penod
The Commiltee will consider mitigation where appropnate, having
regard to the crrcumstances

There 1s no automatic entitlement fo annual bonus Executive
Drrectors rmay receive & bonus in respect of the financial year of
cessation, based on performance against pre-determined targets
Where an Executive Direclor leaves by reason of death disability or
ll-heath they may receive a pro-rata bonus for the year of cessation

The treatment of leavers under the Company s long-terr incentive
plans 15 determined by the rules of the relevant plans The Committee
will deterrmine when awards vest and the period dunng which awards
may be exercised

Performance shares lapse if the participant leaves employment in
case of termination for cause or resignation In other cases normalty
inclucing death and ilt heaith, injury or disability, redundancy and
retirement, the Committee may determine that awards vest at the end
of the performance penod and are pro-rated for ime Performance
cendlions would apply However, the Committee has the discretion
tc allow the award to vest on cessation of employment {on a pro-rata
basis or otherwise} i, having regard to progress towards meeting the
performance conditions at that pont

The Committee may vest the award on any other basis if it believes
there are exceptional circumstances wihich warrant that For example
It can be in the interest of the Company for the Board to proactively
organise succession and manage an executive s departure When
determining the treatment of outstanding awards in those cases the
Committee wil take inte account the executive s level of perfarmance
and contribution to the transiion

No compensation i1s payable to Nan-Executive Directors on leaving
office

Approach to recruitment remuneration

The remuneration package for a new Executive Director would be
set in accordance with the terms of the approved remuneration
pohcy in force at the ime of appointment The Committee may offer
a package that will be sufiicient to atiract and retain the high-calibre
talent necessary to develop and deliver the business strategy The
Committee may offer additionat cash and/or share-based elements
when it considers these to be In the best interests of the Company
and, therefore, shareholders The Committee will seek to ensure
that no more 1s paid than i1s necessary Any buyout payments
would be intended to be no more than is necessary to compensate
for remuneration lost due to leaving the former employer and

would reflect the delivery mechamsm ( @ cash, shares options),
time horzons and performance requirements attaching to that
remuneraton

The foltowing elements may be considered by the Committee for

inclusion In a recruitment package for an Executve Director in
addibon to the policy elements set out in the table on pages 77 10 79
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Element Approach

inutal long-term
ncentive award

Aninitial long-term incentive award may be

made which may be higher than the maximum

opportunity, as set cut on page 79

The Committee will ensure

- The award 1s Iinked to the achievement of
approprate and challenging performance
targets

- The award will be forfeited if the performance

and continued employment conditions are
not achieved

Iniiad annual The iniial annual bonus opportunity may be set
bonus higher than the approved policy
opportunity The Committee will ensure the award 1S
finked to the achievement of appropnate and
challenging performance targets

Compensation for ~ The lerms of any compensation will be
forferted awards determined by taking into account the terms of
any forfeited awards, Including
- Performance achieved or likely to be
achieved,
— The proportion of perfermance/vesting period
remaining, and
— The form and trming of the onginal award

In certamn hmited circumstances, for example
in order to compensate for a loss at a previous
employer other than for forferited awards the
Committee may make a one-off sign-on award
as part of the inial package

Sign on awards

The Committee retains the discretion to
determing, based on the circumstances at the
tme whether this would be in cash or shares
whether or not perfermance conditions or an
additional holding penod would apply

Relacation costs Where necessary, the Company will pay
appropriate relocation costs in hne with
standard practice The Committee will seek to

ensure that no more 1s paid than is necessary

An enhanced initial notice penod  sign-on awards or increased intial
annual bonus or long-term incenfive award opportunities would only
be made avallable in exceptional circumstances

APR Energy plc 1s required to set out the maximum amount of
vanabie pay which could be paid o a new Director In order to
provide the Company with sutficient flexibility in a recruitment
scenano the Committee has set this figure as 650% of base salary
excluding compensation for forfeted awards  This represents the
mamum annual bonus {250%) and the maxmum LTIP award
(400%) 1n excepticnal circumstances

This level of variable pay would only be avalable in excephonal
circumstances, and in order 1o achieve such a leve! of vanable pay,
siretching targets would need to be met, over both one year (for the
annual bonus) and at least three-year {for long-term incentive plan)
performance penods

In the case of an internal appointment, any variable pay element

awarged in respect of the prior rofe may be allowed to pay out
according to its terms
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Fee levels for a new Charman or new Non-Executive Directors will
be determined in accordance with the policy set aut in the policy
table

Consultation with our employees

Although the Commitiee does not consult directly with employees
on the Directors' remuneration policy, the Committee considers
the general basic salary increase remuneration arrangements and
employment conditions for the broader employee population when
deterrmining remuneraton policy for Executive Directors

Statement of consideration of employment condi-
tions elsewhere within the Group

The remunerabon policy for execulives reflects the overriding
remuneration philesophy and principles of the wider Group

When determining the remuneraton policy and arrangements for
Executve Directors, the Remuneratien Committee considers pay
and employment conditions across the Group which operates In a
number of different countnes and has employees who perform a
diverse range of jobs The overalt am s that

e employees, including the Chiet Executive Officer are paid by
reference to the market rate,

@ the APR Group prometes and offers internal promaotion
cpportunities

e the Group offers employment conditions which are commensurate
with applicable laws where the Group does business, and

« the Group offers a range of benefits depending on the employee
location including retirement savings plans flexible benefits paid
annual leave, and healthcare insurance

As mentioned in the Annual Statement by the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee the Company has continued to seek

i0 align the long-term interests of sharehotders, the Management
Team (including the Chief Executive Officer) and other employees in
the Group by significantly increasing participation in the Company's
Share Award Plan 2012 — with part:cpation now cascaded to all
levels of the Group {and with approximately 130 total participants)

The Committee seeks to encourage greater employee ownership
and 18 considenng the intreduction of arrangements whereby
employees would be able to participate In a US tax qualifying
employee share purchase pfan a UK tax qualfying Share Incentive
Plan and/or a UK tax qualitying Sharesave Plan (or equivalent plans
tallored to reflect tax and legal consideranons in other relevant
[urisdictions), offenng an opportunity to acquire shares on beneficial
terms It 1s envisaged that participation in such plans may be
offered to as many employees as practicable up to the relevant
statutory hrmits In common wath most plans of this type 1t1s not
anticipated that performance conditions will appiy

The Compary centinues to review and evolve its medium-term
strategic plan The Committee will seek to align the remuneration
of key sentor management, excluding Executive Directors, to the
successful delivery of stretching performance targets in support of
this plan The key ditference from remuneration across the wider
Group will be an increased emphasis on performance related pay

Statement of consideration of shareholder views

The Remuneration Commitlee 15 committed to an ongoing
dialogue with shareholders and seeks the views of the Company's
largest shareholders when any major changes are being made

to remuneration arangements  The Cornmittee nates that




shareholders may not speak with a single vorce but will seek takes into account the views of significant sharehoiders when formulating and
imptementing the policy

When the last major review of remuneration occurred, the Commiitee consulted with a number of the Company s major Institutional
shareholders (equating to an aggregate shareholding in excess of 50%) (iIncluding those represented on the Board) in relation to the proposed
changes Those consutted were altogether supportive of the proposed changes to the Directors’ remuneration arrangements

At the 2013 AGM, sharehaolders voted more than 98% 1n favour of the advisory remuneration vote

Payments in exceptional circumstances

In truly unforeseen and exceptional crcumnstances, the remuneration committeg retains the discretion 10 make emergency payments which
might not othermse be covered by this Policy An example of such an exceptional crcumstance could be the untimetly death of a director,
requinng ancther director to take on an intenm role until a permanent reglacement is found Any such event and the basis for such payments
will be announced on a trmely basis to shareholders wia a regulatory information service announcement and the Company’s website

Statement of implementation of remuneration policy in the 2014 financial year
Components of remuneration - Executive Directors

Eftective from 1 February 2014, the base salary for the Chief Executive Officer increased 5% to $714,00C Retirement and other benefits are in
accordance with those stated in the policy table, and are in ine with 2013

There 1s no change i the maaimum percentage opportunity under the annual bonus plan The Committee determined that the performance
measures apphcable for the 2014 annual bonus are 75% financiat based (Revenue 20%, Adjusted EBIT 20%, Adjusted ROCE 35%) and 25%
qualtative based on strategic performance measures unchanged from 2013 Targets for 2014 are not disclosed because they are considered
to be commercially sensitive

There 15 no change in the maximum LTIP opportunity for the Chief Executive Officer and targets remain unchanged from 2013 It 1s expected
that awards will be made follewing the publication of the Annual Report

Annuahised Adjusted EPS growth Performance level Vesting (%)
Maximum >11% 100%
Threshold 4% 30%
Below threshold <4% 0%

Awards will vest on a straight line basis between threshold and maximum

Components of remuneration — Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Director fee schedule for 2014, effective from 1 January 2014, 1s shown below

Position Annual fee (£'000s)
Chairman 130
Non-Executive Director 70

Additional responsibilities

Senior Independent Director 20
Chairman of a Board Commuittee 10
Mernbership of a Board Committee 5
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Directors' Remuneration Report

Annual Report on Remuneration

This section provides the details of the actual payments and awards to Directars who served dunng the year Information contained in the
Annual Report on Remuneration has, where indicaled been audited by the Group's external independent audtors

Single total figure of remuneration

The following table sets out the single figure of total remuneration for Directors for the financial years ending 31 December 2012 and 2013

Audited
£'000 Salary / Benefits' Retirement Annual Leng-term Total
Fees benefits bonus incentives??

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Executive Directors
John Campron 432 166 9 ] 7 7 581 179 - - 1,028 361
Non-Executive Directars
Mike Farrey 90 30 - - - - - - - 80 80 170
Matthew Allen 70 a5 - - - - - - - - 70 65
Gregory Bowes 70 70 - - - - - - - - 70 70
Edward Hawkes 70 70 - - - . . . - - 70 70
Jim Hughes 70 65 - - - - - - - - 70 685
Denise Kingsmull 70 70 - - - - - - - 80 70 180
Haresh Jaisingharu 70 65 - - - - - - - - 70 85
Shonaid Jemmett-Page 70 32 - - - - - - - - 70 a2
Vipul Tandon 70 70 - - - - - - - - 70 70

t Benefits include private medical insurance and ide assurance

2 Represents the value of long-term incentve plans whera the performance pencd ended within the inancial year

3 As reported inthe 2012 Annual Report, Mike Farey and Denise Kingsmill each subscnbed for ther remaining 10,000 matching shares dunng
2012 The share price on the date of vestng was £7 98

Additional notes to the single total figure of remuneration

Base salary

In 2013, the Chief Executive Officer was entitled to total annual base salary of $680,000 per annum, inciusive of a fee in respect of membership
of the Company's Board Base salary increased from effective 1 February 2013 reflecting the outcome of the 2012 Remunerahon review, which
wdentified that the Chief Executive Officer's base salary was significantly behind those of market peers resulting in an adjustment to reflect
median peer salary

In 2012 the Chief Executive Officer was entitled to totat annual basic remuneration of $450 000, comprising a fee of £70 000 as a member

ot the Board, and a satary under his employment contract with APR Energy LLC {a subsidiary of the Company) of $380 000 per annum In
recognition of the challenging financial year and organisational restructunng, the Chief Executive Officer elected 10 cease to accept his salary
resulting in an actual salary of £165,627 baing receved

Benefits
The benefits provided to the Chief Executive Officer included private medical insurance and hie assurance
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Retirement benefits

The Chief Executive Officer does not receive any pension benefits other than the ability to nvest in a standard company Section 401k’ plan (a
US retirement plan made available to US employees generally) subject to the apphcable imits based on US law, which reflects the same terms
as for other US employees The level of retirement benefits in 2013 remained unchanged from 2012

Annual bonus
For 2013, the Chief Executive Officer was eligible for an annual bonus opportunity ranging from 0% 1o 250% of basic remuneration, dependent
on performance wath threshold level set at 50% and on-target level set at 125%

The performance measures were a combination of qualitative, sirategie performance targets (25%) and financial targets (75%) which were
measured over the penod of one year Financral metncs for the purposes of the annual benus arrangements for the Chief Executive Officer
were Revenue (20%), Adjusted EBIT (20%) ang Adjusted ROCE {35%) in 2013

As highlighted in the Committee Chairman s letter, the Group delivered a strong financial performance i the year, with good growth across
financial metrics which led to 109% of the bonus relating 1o financial measures becoming payable

John Campton achieved his strategic objectives for 2013 which led to 100% of the bonus relating to strategic measures becoming payable
Notably, achievernents against strategic and indiwdual performance measures included the completion of the acquisition of the GE Power Rental
Business Overall, this resulted in the Chiet Executive Officer recewing a bonus equal to 107% of target 53% of the maximum or 134% of salary

The annual bonus for 2012 was based 80% financial metnes and 20% strategre and individual performance metnes The Chief Executive Cfficer
achieved below perfarmance for inancial and strategic metrics, this resulted in 53% of target 32% of the maxmum or 63% of salary

The table below seis out performance achieved for the 2013 bonus aganst targets

Weighting Actual*

(as % of maximum) performance
Revenue 20% Shghtly above target
Adjusted EBIT 20% Above target
Adjusted ROCE 35% Shightly above target
Strategic objectives 25% Achieved
Total resulting level of award as % of target 107%
Total resulting level of award as % of maximum 53%

1 The actual target range has not been disclosed as this 1s considered by the Board to be commercially sensitve and, therefore, will not be
disclosed

Long-term incentive plans (audited)

Share awards made dunng the year

In June 2012, the Company adopted the APR Energy Share Award Plan 2012 {the ‘PSP ) The PSP allows for the grant of share options and/cr
contingent share awards This provides a more effective retention tool with the flexibility to refiect common US practice en equity incentives. It
15 & lang-term incentive plan enabling selected employees to be granted a nght to acquire ordinary shares in the Company at a specified price
subject to the safisfaction of specified condiions The number of ordinary shares issued or issuable pursuant to awards granted in any 10-year
penad (s imited to 10 per cent of the 1ssued ordinary shares from time to tme

In 2013 72 957 contingent share awards were granted to the Chief Executive Officer under the PSP This award reflects the maximum
cpportunity of 200% of base salary representing a face value of $1 360 000 The number of shares reflects the closing share price of 1 155p
on 28 October 2013, the date of award based on the prevailing exchange rate, and remain subject to performance conditions These awards
provide for ardinary shares to be delivered (subject to payment of the nominal value of the award shares, if so required) on or after the third
anniversary dependent on the achievement of performance conditions determined by reference ta the growth of the Group's annualised
adjusted earmings per share over the perod of three years ending on 31 December 2015, with 30% vesting at a threshold of 4% growth, nsing
to 100% vesting for growth of 11% or more, with straight-ine vesting between each level of performance
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Drirectors’ Remuneration Report

Performance graphs

Chief Executive Officer pay and relative Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”) performance

The following graph compares the performance of a £100 investment in APR Energy plc £0 10 Crdinary Shares performance from 19
Septernber 2011, the first day of trading on the London Stock Exchange Main Market to 31 December 2013 measured by TSR compared to
that of the same investment in the FTSE Alt Share Index The FTSE All Share Index has been selected for this comparison because it is the
index which the Committee considers to be the most ciosely comparable to the Company The FTSE 250 Index I1s afso included as this alsa
represents a useful comparator

TSR s the measure of the returns that a company has provided for its shareholders reflecting share price movements and assuming
renvesiment of dividends Spot data 1s used at the date of Main Market isting and at the end of each financial year The intermedrate points are
the values at the Company’s financial year ends
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=z b FTSE All Share
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Source DataStearm Retum index 19/211 311211 a1/12012 31/1213
Financial Year Ending 31 December 2011 31 December 2012 31 December 2013
CEO total remuneration {Single figure, £'000s) 82! 36t 1,028
Annual variable pay (% of maximum) 34%2 32% 53%
Long-term variable pay (% vested as % of maximum) 0%? 0% 0%

1 Calculated on a pro-rata basis for the period from 19 September 2011 to 31 Decernber 2011, as a proporion of the reporied 14 month year
ended 31 December 2011

2 For the 14 month perod ended 31 December 2011
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Change in remuneration of Chief Executive Officer compared to employees

The table below sets out the percentage change in the remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer compared to that of Group management
This group was selected as the most appropnate comparator group as the Chief Executive Officer s US-based and this group provides a
useful local market reference point and 1s considered to be the most appropriate representation of the Group s employees for this requirerment

Change in remuneration % change % change % change
from 2012to 2013 in base salary In benefits I annual bonus
Chief Executive Officer 51% 7% 225%
Group management 20% 16% 109%

The increase In base salary year on year reflects the findings of the 2012 remuneration review which found the Chief Executive Officer's
remuneration to be substantially below market peers The Chief Executive's Officer’s revised salary became effective 1 January 2013 The
Committee expecis future changes to the Chief Executive Officer’s base salary to be broadly in Ine with all employees In 2014, the Chief
Executive Officer's salary increased by 5% n Iine with employee salary ncreases The increase in the Chief Executive Officer s annual bonus
reflects the increased base salary in 2013, an mncrease n the maximum annual bonus opportunity as a proportion of base salary, and improved
performance aganst financial and strategic measures

Relative Importance of spend on pay

The table below displays the expenditure and percentage change in overall spend on employee remuneration and shareholder distributions as
required by the relevant remuneration regulations

$m unless otherwise stated 2013 2012 % change
Overall expenditure on pay ' 334 223 49%
Adusted EBITDA? 181 2 156 7 16%
Dividend paid in the year? 129 164 (21%)

1 Qverall expenditure on pay Total staff costs from Note 10, including wages and salanes social secunity costs pension and share-based
payments

2 Underlying profit Adjusted EBITDA represents a key performance indicator for the Group

3 Returns to shareholders Total dividends paid in the year - as shown in Note 34 Dwvidends paid in 2012 refiect the Company's inaugural full and
final dwidend of 10 0 pence per share in respect of the inancial year ended 31 December 2011 and a 2012 intenm dividend of 3 3 pence per
share In 2013, divdends pad reflect a final dvidend of 6 7 pence per share for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 and a 2013 intenm
dividend of 3 3 pence per share
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Directors’ shareholdings and share interests

Directors’ interest tn shares

The beneficial interest of the Directors in shares of the Company as at 31 December 2013 are stated below

Audited At 31 December 2013 At 31 December 2012
Name of Director No of Ordinary No Founders No of Ordinary  No Founders
shares secunties shares securities
Mike Fairey (Chairman} 30,000 - 30,000 -
John Campion *2 7,030,146 - 8,794,707 -
Matthew Atlen > 508,782 11,667 1,072,008 11,667
Gregory Bowes © 38,754 - 38,754 -
Edward Hawkes &7 375,888 10,000 792,001 10,000
Jim Hughes - - - -
Derise Kingsmul! 30,000 - 30,000 -
Haresh Jaisinghar - - - -
Shonaid Jemmett-Page 786 - 786 -

Vipul Tandon ® -

1 As at 12 March 2014 JCLA Cayman owned 6,841,463 ordinary shares

2 These ordinary shares are held by JCLA Cayman which is ultmately owned approximately 59% by John Campion
3 Matthew Allen was also beneficially entilled to 19% of the 360,000 ordinary shares held by Honzon Growth investment LLP These were

transferred to Matthew Allen in 2012

4 Matthew Allen 1s also beneficially entitled to a further 4,600 Founder secunties through his membership of Hernizon Growth investment LLP
5 Gregory Bowes shares are held indirectly — he has interests in the partnership structure which owns ACM which 1n turn has interests in the

Company

6 Edward Hawkes was also beneficially entitled to 25% of the 360 000 ordinary shares held by Honzon Growth Investment LLP These were
transferred to Edward Hawkes 1n 2012 He also has interest in a further 50,000 ordinary shares by being a directer and shareholder of Bizy

Investments Ltd

=~

8 Vipul Tandon has partnership interests in the partnership structure which owns SSP which has interests in the Company

88 | APR Energy | Annua! Report 2013

Edward Hawkes is also beneficially entitied to a further 6,000 Founder secunties through his membership of Honzon Growth investment LLP




Directors’ share options and contingent share awards

Audited
Options '
With Without Vested but Exercised
performance performance unexercised durning the year
measures measures

Chief Executive Officer
John Campion 260,757 Nit - -

1 There are no share schemes in place for John Campion

2 All awards awarded under the PSP are considered to be ‘options’ because they reflect a contingent nght to acquirefreceive shares, subject
to meeting performance targets and payment of a nominat value

There 1s no shareholding requirerment in place for Executive Directors The Committee believes that given the significant shareholding of John
Campion the infroduction of such a requirement 1s not appropnate The Committee retains the discretion to apply shareholder guidelines for
Executive Directors in the future f they believe this to be n the best interests of the Company and shareholders

Detalls of the awards made under the Company’s Long-Term Incentive Plans are set out below Details of the performance conditions that have
appled to awards are shown on page 85

Audrted
Plan Grant During 2013 Exercise Date Expiry
date price from which date
At1 At 31 exercisable/
January December awards vest
2013 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2013

John Carnpion PSP 2013 - 72,957 . - 72,957 Nominal 280ct'16 n/a
PSP 2012 150,000 - - - 150,000  Nominal 20 Nov 15 n/a
2011 Plan® 2011 600,000 - - 562,200 37,800 £1000 13Jun*14 12 8ep'14

1 This award I1s subject to a performance condibion based on the increase in the Company s adjusted earrings per share over the pened
ending 31 December 2015 with 30% vesting for annualised EPS growth of 4% and 100% vesting for adjusted EPS growth of 11%

2 Vesting will be delayed unti performance outcome has been determined

3 This award vests in tranches according to adjusted EBITDA {50%) and adjusted net income {50%) as denved from the audied consclidated
financial statements for the calendar years ending 31 December 2011 2012 and 2013 The performance conditions for the tranches based
on 31 December 2011 were partially met The performance conditians for the tranches based on 31 December 2612 and 2013 were not met

The share options and contingent share awards were granted for nil iniial consideration

Statement of Shareholder voting
The table below sets out the resu'ts of the vote on the Remuneration Report at the 2013 AGM

Voted for Votes against Votes cast Votes withheid
Number % Number % Number % Number %
60,223,929 98 5% 931,821 15% 61,155,750 100% 1,131 0%
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Remuneration Committee Report

Membership
and process

Chairman
and members

Attendance

Remit

Key activities
during the year

The Commitiee compnse four Nor-Executive Directors, the majority of witern are independent Non-Executive
Directors The Chairman of the Company may serve on the Committee as an additional member if he or she was
considered independent on appointment as Chairman of the Company

The following were members of the Remuneratton Committee of the Company dunng 2013

e Jim Hughes, Charrman

o Gregory Bowes

o Mike Farrey

e Baroness Denise Kingsmill

John Campion, Chief Executive Officer stood down from the Commuttee on 24 July 2013, in ine with best practice

The Committee met on five occasions in 2013 and the members  attendance record 1S Set out on page 58

The Committee 15 responsible for determining and agreeing with the Board the framewaork or broad policy for the
remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer, Charman of the Company, the Executive Directors, the Company
Secretary and such other members of the Executive Management as it 1s designated to consider

It has specific responsibiity for approving remuneration of Chief Executive Officer, President and Chiuef Operating
Officer and Chief Financial Officer and other key members of management

The Committee Is aiso responsible for

- reviewing the ongoing appropnateness and relevance of the remuneration policy

- approving the design of, and determining targets for, any performance related pay schemes and share
incentive plans cperated by the Company and approving the total annual payments made under such
schemes

- determining the policy for and scope of pension arrangements for Executive Cirectors and other semior
executives,

- ensuring that contractual terms on termination, and any payments made, are far te the individual, and the
Company that falure 1s not rewarded and that the duty to mitigate loss 1s fully recogrised

- ensuring that all provisions regarding disclosure of remuneration Including pensions, are fulfilled, and

- eslablishing the selection crierna selecting, appomnting and setting the terms of reference for any remuneration
consultants who adwise the Remuneration Committee

Ne person shall be involved in any discussion or decisions regarding their own remuneration

The Committee's Terms of Reference is avalable on the Company s website

The main activiies of the Committee dunng the year were
Assessing performance of Chief Executive Officer and determined annual bonuses for 2013,

® Approving share awards for Chief Executive Officer 2013

e Establishing the Chief Executive Officers salary arrangements for 2014,
.

L ]

Setting bonus targets for the Chief Executive Officer for 2014,

Reviewing remuneration benchmarking and providing recommendations 1o the Board on fee structure and
levels for Charman and Non-Executive Directors,

Considering remuneration market trends and corporate governance developments
Reviewing the revised remuneration reporting regulations and prepanng the Directors remuneration report, and
Considering a Non-Executive Director share purchase plan and providing recommendation to the Board

90 | APR Energy | Annual Report 2013




External advisors

Internal Input

The Committee takes intc account iIndependent advice and appraisals of latest market data when considenng
incentive levels and remuneration packages aganst the background of ts policy of not paying more than 1s
necessary

Jowers Watson was appainted by the Committee as its principal external adviser followming a tendenng process in
2012 Towers Watson adwvises on all aspects of the Company and Group's remuneration policy and practice and
reviews the Company and Group s remuneration structures against corporate governance best practice Towers
Watson also provides remuneration cata to the Group and presented a review of developments in UK corporate
governance and remuneration and reporting regulations to keep Committee members up-to-date with new
developments and evolving best practice

Towers Watson 1s a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group {which oversees the voluntary code of
conduct in relation to executive remuneration consuling in the Urnuted Kingdom) and the remuneration committee
1s sabisfied that the advice provided on executive remuneration s objective and independent and that no conflict
of interest anses as a result of other services

During the year Towers Watson was pad fees of £92 700 for services provided to the Committee
Pinsent Masons LLP has prowided advice to the Company on law and regulation int relaton to share plans
matters The advice was provided to the Company and made avalable to the Committee Pinsent Masons LLP

also provides general legal advice to the Company

Alf of these advisers were appointed by the Committee which remains satisfied that the provision of these other
Services IN no way compromises therr independence

The following employees provided input to the Committee during the year

» Chief Executive Officer John Campion

» Chret Human Resources Officer Chnis Himebauch

¢ General Counsel and Chief Complance Officer, Steve List

# Chief Financial Officer, Andrew Martinez, provided updates on the Group's financial performance

» Director of Investor Relaticns, Karen Menzel, in regard of the disclosures required for the 2013 Annual Report

Jim Hughes
Chairman,
Remuneration Committee
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Financial Statements

Independent Auditor's Report
to the members of APR Energy plc

Opinion on financial statements of APR Energy plc
In Gur opinion

e the financiat statements give a true and fair view of the state
of the Group's and of the Parent Company s affarrs as at 31
December 2013 and of the Group s profit for the year then
ended,

» the Group financial statements have been properly prepared
N accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union,

o the Parent Cornpany financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006 and

o ihe financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
group financial statemenis Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

The financial statements comprise the Censohdated Statement of
Comprehensive Income, the Consclicdated and Parent Company
Statements of Financial Position the Consolidated and Parent
Company Statements of Changes in Equity the Consolidated and
Company Statements of Cash Flows and the related Censolidated
notes 1 to 35 and Parent Company notes 1 to 14 The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in therr preparation 1s
apphcable iaw and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and,
as regards the Parent Company financial statements as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Separate opinion In relation to IFRSs as issued by
the IASB

As explained in note 3 to the group inancial statements the group
In addition to complying with its legal obligation to apply IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union has also applied IFRSs as 1ssued
by the Internabonal Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

!n our opinion the group financial statements compily with IFRSS as
issued by the |IASB

Going concern

We have reviewed the Directors Statement on page 74 that the
Group 1s a going cancern We confirm that

» we have concluded that the Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting n the preparatron of the financial statements
1S appropnate, and

¢ we have not iIdentified any matenal uncertainhes that may cast
sigrificant doubt on the Group s ability to continue as a going
concern

However, because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted this statement 1s not a guarantee as to the Group’s ability
1o continue as a going concemn
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Our assessment of risks of maternal misstatement

The assessed nisks of matenal misstatement described below
are those that had the greatest effect on our audit strategy the
allocation of resaurces in the audit and directing the efforts of the
engagement team

e Accounting for GE Power Rental Business acquisihion - The
valuahon and accounting for the assets and contracts acquired
from General Electnc Company 1s considered a nsk due to the
judgemental nature of the valuations and the complexity of the
accounting,

& Accounting for iIncomes taxes - The accounting for Incomes taxes
1s considered a sk due 1o the diverse geographical nature of the
Group and the different fax legislation in place in the junsdichons
in which the Group operates,

e Assessment of goodwill imparrment nsk - The assessment
of the possibility of impairment of goodwill 1s considered a
nsk due to uncertantes in the forecast cash flows as a result
of the temporary nature of the contracts and the inherent
unpredictability of the bustness,

o Valuation of Founder securities - The valuahon of Founder
secunties 1s considered a nsk due to the jJudgemental nature of
assumgptions such as volatiity within the valuation as set out in
note 256 which have a sigificant effect on the valuation,

o Revenue recogribion at contract commencement - The timing
of revenue recognition, particularly at the commencement of
contracts 1s considered a nsk due to the judgemental nature
Iin certain nstances of when commercial operation dates have
been achieved and hence when revenue recognition should
commence and

#® Assessment of Libya receivables recovery - The recoverability
of the Libya recervables balance 1s considered a nsk due to the
length of ime outstanding and the amount of the balance at year
end

How the scope of our audit responded to these
risks

Accounting for GE Power Rental Business acquisition - We
obtained supporting evidence for management's assessment of
the acquisition as a business combination in accordance with IFRS
3 Business Combinations We obtaned the valuations of acquired
assets and liabilities from management which had been prepared
by third-party experts, and engaged and worked with valuation
specialists to validate the valuaton assumptions used We tested
the accuracy of the acquisiton balance sheet to assess whether
the purchase price allocation was appropriate and prepared in
accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations, and we reviewed
the disclosures in the financial statements to assess whether they
were complhant with IFRS

Accounting for incomes taxes - We worked with tax specialists to
understand the tax legisiahion governing the Group's contracts and
the junsdictions in which the Group operated dunng the year We
cbtaned the Group s taxahon computations in respect of current




and deferred tax and assessed the computations for comphiance
with local tax legislahon and 1AS 12 Income Taxes We tested
corporation tax payments made and refunds received, and we
evaluated judgemental tax exposures and provisions, mcluding the
recoverability of deferred tax assets, obtaining supporting evicence
for the position taken by management in respect of the probability
and amount of potential exposures

Assessment of goodwill imparment nsk - We obtained a copy of the
valuation medel used to determine the value in use of the business
We checked that forecasts used in the model had been reviewed
by the Board of Directors We evaluated the key assumptions within
the model including the discount rate used and the revenue and
cost assumptions relating to existing and forecast contracts by
comparing to external, contractual, histoncal or other data, and to
assess whether assumptions had been determined and apphed n
accordance with (AS 36 imparrment of Assets We also tested the
mechanical accuracy of the model

Valuation of Founder securities - We worked with valuation
specialsts to review the Monte-Carle model used to value the
Founder secunties The specialists tested the valuation and
underlying assumptions within the Monte-Carlo model and
assessed the accuracy and integnty of the model calculations We
also reviewed the related disclosuses in note 25 of the financial
statements

Revenue recognition at contract commencement - We obtained
copies of sales contracts evidence of commercial operaton dates
and generation reports to assess whether revenue had been
recognised In accordance with the terms of each contract and IAS
18 Revenue Woe also performed testing of invoices betore and after
the year end tc test whether revenue had been recorded In the
appropnate period

Assessment of Libya recewvables recovery - We obtained and
reviewed sales contracts and the letter of crecit agreements
applcable to the Libya contract validated the terms of the
contracts and agreements to determine the biling and paymenit
arrangements and understood whether the outstanding balance at
the year end was covered by the letter of credrt agreement We also
obtained a sample of the related sales invoices 1o assess whether
they were appropnately approved and that revenue had been
recognised in the approprate penod tested post year end cash
receipts, and assessed whether any provisicn was required aganst
the outstanding balance

The Audit Commitiee's consideration of these risks 1s set cut on
page 63

Qur audit procedures relating te these matiers were designed in the
context of our audit of the finanoal statements as a whole, and not
to express an cpinion on Indivigual accounts or disclosures Our
opinicn on the financial slatements is not modified with respect 1o
any of the nsks descnbed above, and we do not express an opinicn
on these indwvidual matters

Qur application of materiality

We define matenality as the magnitude of misstatement in the
imancial staterments that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable perscn would be
changed or influenced We use matenalty both in planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work

We determined matenality for the Group 10 be $3 5 millicn which 1s
approximately 7% of adusted pre-tax profit excluding amortisation
of intangible assets ansing from the 2011 acquisition, transaction
costs relating to the 2013 acquisiton, and Founder securiies
revaluations These adjustments are made consistently by the
Group in therr earnings communications with the market and in the
opimon of the Directors provide a more comparable measure with
similar organisations and are consistent with the prafit measures
that are most relevant 1o analysts and investors Matenality 1s below
1% of equity

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report ta the
Committee all audit differences in excess of $70,000, as welt

as differences below that threshold that in our vew warranted
reporting on qualtative grounds  We also report to the Audit
Commuttee on disclosure matters that we identfied when assessing
the overall presentaticn of the financial statements

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our audit planning 1dentfied the Group's business to be a single
campenent and therefore all of the operations of the Group were
subject to a full scope audit During the course of the audit semior
members of the UK audit team supemvised the US members of the
audit team and wisited the Company and audit team in Jacksonviile
dunng the planning and completion stages of the audit

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opiriion

e the part of ihe Directors’ Remuneration Report 1o be audited has
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
2006, and

e the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directars
Report for the tinancial year for which the financial statements are
prepared !s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by
exception
Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if,
1N our opINION

e we have not received all the information and explanatons we
require for our audi, or

e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent
Company or returns adequate for our audit have not been
receved from branches not visited by us, or
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Independent Auditor's Report to the members of APR Energy plc

e the Parent Company financial staterments are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Drirectors’ remuneration

Under the Comparies Act 2006 we are also required 1a report if In
our opinon certain disclosures of Directors remuneration have
not been made or the pant of the Directors’ Remuneraton Report
to be audited s not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns We have nothing to report ansing from these matters

Our duty to read other information in the Annual Report

Under Internaticnal Standards on Auditing (UK ang Ireland), we are
required to repert ta you il in our opimien information in the annual
report IS

« materally inconsistent with the information i the audited financial
statements, or

& apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally
inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Group acgured in the
course of performing our audit, or

« otherwise misleading

In particuiar, we are required to consider whether we have identified
any incensistencies between our knowledge acquired dunng the
audit and the Directors Statement that they consider the annual
report 1s far balanced and understancable and whether the annual
report appropriatety discloses those matters that we communicated
to the Audit Committee which we consider should have been
disclosed We confirm that we have nat identified any such
Inconsistencies or misleading statements

Other matters

Corporate Governance Statement

Although not required to do so the Directors have voluntarly
chosen to make a Corporate Governance Statement detaling

the extent of theirr comphiance with the UK Corporate Governance
Code We reviewed the parnt of the Corporate Governance
Statement relating to the company s comphance with nine
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Cade We have nothing
to report ansing from our review

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement,
the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satished that they give a true and fair view
Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinien on the financial
statements N accordance with applicable law and International
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Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland) Those standards require
us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards
for Auditors

We also comply with international Standard on Quality Control 1
(UK and Ireland) Our audit methodology and tcols aim to ensure
that our quality control procedures are effective, understood and
applied Our quality controls and systems include our dedicated
professionat standards review team, strategically focused second
partner reviews and independent partner reviews

This report 15 made solely to the Company’s members, as a body
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the Company s members those matters we are required to state
to them in an auditor's report and/or those further matters we have
expressly agreed to report 10 them on In our engagement letter
and tfor no cther purpose  To the fullest extent permitted by law we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinicns we have formed

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financiat statements sutficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenial
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error  This includes an
assessment of whether the accourting paolicies are appropriale

to the group s and the parent company's crcumstances and

have been consistently appled and adequately disclosed the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements
In additon we read all the financial and non-financial information
In the annual report to 1Identity matenat iInconsistencies with the
audited financial statements and to identify any informaton that 1s
apparently matenally incorrect based on or matenally inconsistent
with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the
audit if we become aware of any apparent malenal misstatements
or Inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

fon (ot

Dean Cook MA FCA

{(Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behaif of Delodte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, UK

25 March 2014




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 Decomber 2013

Consolidated Financial Statements

$milon Note 2013 2012
Revenue 6 308 3 2657
Cost of sales (197 3) {165 0)
Amortisation of intangible assets 15 (8 8) {58 0)
Gross profit 1022 427
Selling, general and admimstrative expenses {332) (33 5)
Operating profit 8 690 92
Acquisition related costs 29 {14 4) -
Founder securities revaluation 25 33) {10 2)
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain ©4) 04
Finance income o2 03
Finance costs 11 (23 6) {4 6)
Profit/{loss) before taxation 275 49)
Taxation 12 77 (106}
Profit/(loss) for the year 198 (14 9)
Total comprehensive profit/(loas) for the year 198 {14 9)
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share - cents 13 244 (191)
Diluted earnings per share - cents 13 242 (191)
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Consohdated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Financlal Position

As at 31 Decamber 2013
$ mifion Now 31 Dacamber 20113 31 Dacember 2012
Assots
Non-curront assets
Goodwill 14 6228 547 1
Imangible ggsets 15 703 398
Property, plant and equipmernt 16 1,184 3 ans
Deforred tax asset 12 78 04
Other non-cument sssets 5.5 54
Total non=current asssta 1,900.8 1,264.2
Curvont asaots
Inventories T 430 g4
Trade and other receivablas 18 183.1 531
Cash and cesh equivalents aag 210
Income tax recelvable 3@ 09
Depxits 18 73 248
Total current assets 2712 1002
Tolal asssts 2,171.7 1,734
Linbilities
Current liabllities
Trede and other payables 20 834 280
Income tax payabla 08 47
Dafamed reverue 21 2rs 80
Derivetive liability 27 - 03
Borrowings 24 s00 -
Decommissioning provisions 2 180 122
Jotal current lishiiities 180.7 88.1
Non-currant ilabilitios
Founder securttes 25 185 152
Defesred tax liability 12 85 43
Boowings 20 620 3 189§
Decommissioning provisions 22 311 7.5
Total non-currant {labllitiss 5354 2205
Total itablilties T78.1 2016
Equlty
Share capital 152 1286
Share pramhum 8749 668.1
Othar reserves 24 ™o 485.9
Equity reserves 28 Bo 45
Accumulated losses {70.4 o3
Total eguity 1,396.8 1,0018
Total [labilities and aquity 2.7 1,373.4

These financial statements of the Compar, registared number 07062201 were apoved by the Board of Drectors on 25 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Share Share Other Equdy Accumulated Total

$ miffion capital premium reserves reserves losses equity
Balance at 1 January 2012 127 668 1 4858 18 (48 7) 1,1197
Loss for the year - - - - {14 9) (14 9)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - - {14 9) (14 9)
Issued share capital - - - 07 07 -
Redemption of deferred shares o1 - 01 - . N
Credt to equity for equity-settled share-based payment expense - - - 34 - 34
Dwidends - - - - (16 4) (16 4)
Balance at 31 December 2012 126 668 1 4859 45 (798 3) 1,081 8
Profit far the year - - - - i58 198
Total comprehensive profit for the year - - - - 198 198
Acqutsition of subsidianes 25 - 284 1 - - 2866
Exercise of equity-settled share-based payment 01 68 - (20) 20 69
Credt to equity for equity-settied share-based payment expense - - - 44 - 44
Dividends - - - - 129 {12 9)
Balance at 31 December 2013 152 6749 7700 69 (70 4) 1,396 6
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2013

$ milhon Note 2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) for the year befare taxation 275 {49)
Adgustments for
Depreciation and amertisation 15,16 1078 144 3
{Profit)/loss on sale or disposal of fixed assets 16 (2 4) c4
Prowvision for bad debt 18 - (15)
Equity-settled share-based payment expansa 28 44 34
Founder securities revaluation 25 33 102
{Gain}/loss on dervative financial instrurments 27 (0 3) 26
Finance income 02) {03)
Finance costs 11 236 46
Movernents in working capital
Increase n trade and other recevables {100 3) (109)
Increase in inventories (26 5) (72)
Increase n other current and non-current assets 0 4) (3 6)
Increase in trade and ather payables 48 9 08
Settlement of decommissioning provisiens 22 (107) 9 4)
Increase/(decrease) in other liabiliies 96 (15)
84 3 127 0
Interest pasd {15 5) 32)
Interest recewed ¢z 03
Income taxes paid (112) (6 8)
Net cash from operating activilies 578 117 3
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (358 4) {351 0)
Proceeds on sale or disposal of propenty, plant and equipment 28 -
Decrease in deposits 179 39
Acquisition of subsidianes 29 (73 1) -
Net cash used in iInvesting activities (410 8) (347 1)
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash from borrowings 567 8 2195
Repayment of borrowings (182 8) {14 5)
Dividends paid 34 (129) {16 4)
Debt 1ssuance costs (11 3) (C8)
Proceeds from the 1ssue of ordinary shares
(net of transaction costs) 51 -
Net cash from financing activities 365 9 167 8
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 129 (42 0)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 210 630
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 33.9 210

Included within cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2013 1s an amount of $8 9 milion which backs letters of credit and as such is

classified as restricted cash (2012 $4 8 million)
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Notes

to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

1 General information

APR Energy plc (the “Company” and together with its subsichanes,

APR Energy or the Group ) 15 a company incorperated in the
United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 The address of
the registered office 1s given on page 132 of this Annual Report The
nature of the Group's operations and its principal activities are set
out In the Strategy Review on pages 11 to 33

These financial statements are presented in US dollars because that
15 the currency of the primary economic environments in which the
Group operates

2 Adoption of new and revised standards

In 2013 several amended standards and interpretations became
effective These are |1AS 1 Presentation of items of other compre-
hensive iIncome - Amendments to IAS 1 |1AS 19 (rewised) Employee
Benefits, IFRS 7 (amended) Disclosures - offsetting financial assets
and liabiites IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements, IFRS 11
Joint arrangements {FRS 12 Disclosure of interests i ather entities
and !{FRS 13 Farr value measurement The adoption of these standards
and mterpretations has not had a matenal impact on the financial
statements of the Group

At the date of authonisation of these financial statements the following
standards and relevant interpretations, which have not been applied
in these financial statements were N 1ssue but not yet effective (and
some of which were pending endorsement by the European Union)

& Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments
to 1AS 32) - effective for accounting pericds begimning on or after
1 January 2014

@ Invesiment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10 IFRS 12 and IAS
27) - effective for accountng penods beginning on or after 1
January 2014,

e Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
(Amendments ta 1AS 36) - effective for accounting pernods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014

o Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
(Amendments to I1AS 39) - effective for accounting perniods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014

o Defined Benefit Plans Employee Contributions (Amendments to
IAS 19) — eifective for accounting penods beginning on or after 1
July 2014

® Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle - effective for accounting
pencds beginring on or after 1 July 2014 and

e Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle - effective for accounting
peneds beginning on or after 1 July 2614

Adoption of the these standards in future penods 18 not expected
to have a material iImpact on the financial statements of the Group

3 Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) The financial
statements have also been prepared in accordance with [FRSs
adopted by the European Union and therefore the Group financiat
statements comply with Article 4 of the EU |IAS regulation The Group
financial statements also comply with IFRS as 1ssued by the IASB

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis Historical cost 1s generally based on the farr value of the
consideration given it exchange for the asseis

The Parent Company financiat statements are prepared in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the European Umion The Parent Company
financial statements are ncluded on pages 124 to 131 and have been
prepared in accordance with section 396 of the Companies Act 2006
Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2008, the Parent Company
1s exemnpt fram the requirement to present its profit and loss account

The pringipal accounting policies adopted and consistently applied
are sef out below

Basis for consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities contrciled by the Company
{its subsicharies) Contral 15 achieved where the Company has the
power fo govern the financial and operating policies cf an investee
entity so as to obtain benefits fromits activiies

The results of subsicdianes acquired during the year are inciuded
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive mncome from the
effective date of acquisition All intra-greup transactions, balances
unrealised gans or fosses, iIncome and expenses are efiiminated on
consclidation

Use of estimates

The preparation of consohdated financial statements 1s in confarmity
with IFRS  (FRS requires the use of certain cntical accounting esti-
mates It also requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group s accounting polcies The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 4

Going concern

The Directors are satisfied that the Group has sutficient resources to
continue In operation for the foreseeable future, a penod of not less
than 12 months from the date of this report The Group’s principal
debt facilihies (lotaling $650 O rmillion) are provided by a syndicate of
panks under arevolving credit facidity and a Term Loan which expire
on 28 November 2016 and 1 January 2015 respectively The Group's
forecasts and projections show that the faciiiies in place currently
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Notes to the Consolidated Finangial Statements

are anticipated to be suthcient for meeting the Group's operational
requirements Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis in preparnng the financial statements Further detailis contained
in the Financial Review on page 39

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidianes and businesses are accounted for using the
acquisiton method The consideration for each acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the farr values (at the date of exchange) of assets
given habilities ncurred or assumed, and equity instruments 1ssued
by the Comparty in exchange for control of the acquiree Acquisition
related costs are recognised in comprehensive Income as incurred

Where applicable the consideration for the acguisition includes
any asset or lability resulting from a cankingent consideration
arrangement, measured at its acquisition-date fair value
Subsequent changes in such far values are adjusted against in the
statement of comprehensive income Al other subsequent changes
in the fair value of contingent consideration classihed as an assel
or hability are accounted tor in accordance with relevant IFRSs
Changes in the fair value of contingent consideration classified as
equity are nol recogrised

The acquiree s identifiable assets, liabilittes and contingent habilities
that meet the conditions for recogrition under IFRS3 (2008) are
recognised at therr fair value at the acquisition date, except that

o Deferred tax assets or hahiities and habilities or assets related to
employee benefit arrangements are recogrused and measured
In accordance with 1AS 12 Income Taxes and |1AS 19 Employee
Benefils respectively,

o Liabilines or equity instruments related to the replacement by
the Group of an acquiree s share-based payment awards are
measured i accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment and

& Assets that are classified as hetd for sale in accordance with IFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Cperations
are measured in accordance with that standard

Goodwill

Goodwill ansing in a business combination I1s recogrised as an
asset at the date that control 1s acquired {the acquisition date)
Goodwill 1Is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any controlling interest n the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer s previously held equity interest

(if any) in the entity over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the labiiities assumed |f after
reassessment, the Group's interest in the far value of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets vanes from the sum of the consideration
transferred, the excess I1s recognised immediately it comprehensive
income as a bargain purchase gain

Goodwill 1s not amartised but 18 reviewed for smpairment at least
annually For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwil 1s
allocated to each of the Group s cash-generating units expected

io benefit from the synergies of the combination Cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated are tesied for mparment
annually, of more frequently when there 1s an indicaiion that the unit
may be impared 1f the recoverable amoum of the cash-generating
unit 15 less than the carrying amount of the unit, the imparment
loss 1s first allocated to reduce the carrying amount of goodwll
allocated to the unit and then to the cther assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset it the unit
An imparrment loss recognised for goodwll s not reversedin a
subsequent pernod
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Revenue

The Group dernves revenue from short to medium-term contracis
that piovide customers with comprehensive power generaton
services Including temporary power solutions that include
installatbon and dismaniling services operations and mamntenance
of the power generating equiprment operations monttonng, and
logistical support

The Group s contracts generally include fixed and vanable-pnicing
components The Group earns the fixed portion of revenue on
contracts by pronding capacity based on a speciied number of
megawatts (MW) 1o the customer The Group's contracts for the
periods presented in the consolidated financial statements primarily
represent lease contracts, which are accounted for as operating
leases The Group determines lease classfication on a contract-
specific basis

The revenue on these contracts 1s recognised as follows

Fixed revenues

Due to the fact that the fixed portion of the contract 1s based on actual
capacity avallable, the payments are considered contingent rent

and revenue 15 recognised when earnmed as the lesser of the amount
billable under the contract or an amount determined by the kilowatt-
hours (‘KWHSs ') made avallable during the penod multiphed by the
estimated average revenue per KWH aver the term of the contract

Vanable ravenues

The Group earns the vanable porton of revenue based on the
actual amouni of energy that the Group delivers to the customer, as
measured In kilowatt hours KWHs The revenue associated with the
vanable pnce component of the contract 1s recognised as earned
during the penod that energy Is produced and delivered

Segment reporting

An operating segment 1s a component of an entity whose operating
results are regularly reviewed by the entity s chief operating decision
maker to make decisions about rescurce allocation and assess its
performance The Group has (dentified the chief operating decision
maker as its Chief Executive Otficer

The Group continues to 1dentify cne operating segment based on
the financial information regularly provided to the chief operating
deciston maker and the methods by which the chief operating
decision maker assesses the Group's performance and makes
decistons abou! resource allocation The Group periodically
evaluates this conclusion by considenng any changes in facts and
circumstances

Leases

Leases are classified as inance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantiafly ali the nsks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee All other leases are classiied as operating leases

As lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of

the Group at their fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments each determined at the inception of the
lease The corresponding liability lo the lessor s included in the
staterment of financial posiion as a finance lease gbligatton

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a consiant rate of
nterest on the remaning balance of the lability Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in comprehensive income

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a




straight-ine basis over the term of the relevant lease

As lessor

Amounts due from [essees under finance leases are recognised

as recevables at the amount of the Group s net investment in the
leases Finance lease income Is allocaied to accounting pernods so
as to reflect a constant penodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding 1n respect of the leases

Rental Income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basts over the term of the retevant lease Inihat direct costs
incurred (n negotiating and arranging an operating lease are acded
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term

Provision for income taxes

The Group compiises operations in vanous junsdictions and it 18
likely that if the stiucture of these operations were to change, there
would be an impact to the effective tax rale and tax hability of the
Group

Whtle certain of the Group's aperations are not subject to tax, the
operations may be subject to Income and withholding taxes in other
tax junsdictions {n prepanng these hinancial statements, the Group
applies the following accounting policies

Withholding tax

Withholding taxes are imposed in certain jurisdictions where

the Group makes cross-border payments to related parties and
where the customer makes ¢ross border payments {o the Group

tn general withholding taxes are imposed on paymenis such as
operanng leases, varnable revenue, rents royalties dwdend and
certain service payments The paying entity acts as the collecting
agent and remits the payments to the taxing authorties The Group
includes its withholding tax expense in the taxation ine In the
consoldated statement of comprehensive Income

Current tax

The current Income tax charge 1s calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the staterment of financial
position date in the countres where the Group cperates generates
taxable income and 1s subject to tax under local country tax law

Management penodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect ta situations in which applicable tax regulation 1s
subject to interpretation It estabhshes prowisions where appropnate
based on amounis expecled to be paid to the tax authorities

Taxable profit differs from net profits as reported in the statement

of comprehensive Income because i excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it furiher
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Group's

hapihty for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacled by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax 1s recogrused using the hability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax basis of assets and
habilities and therr carrying amounis in the financial statements
Deferred income tax 1s determined using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the statement of iinanciat
position date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset 1s realsed or the deferred income tax hability

1s settled Deferred tax habilities are generally recogrised for all
taxable temporary differences Deferred income tax assets are

recognised only to the extent that it s prabable that future taxable
profit will be avalable against which the ternporary differences can
be utihised The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced 1o the extent that it 1s no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avallable to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred income tax assets and liabilties are oifset when there

1s a legally enforceable nght to offset current tax assets against
current tax hiabilittes and when the deferred iIncome taxes assets
and habilities relate to income taxes levied by the same 1axation
authonty on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there 1s an intention to settle the balances on a net
basis Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the penod when the hability 1s settled or the asset 1s
realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted at
the batance sheet date Deferred 1ax s charged or credited in the
statement of comprehensive iIncome, except when it relates to items
charged or credited 1n other comprehensive income 1n which case
the deferred 1ax 1s also dealt with in ather comprehensive income

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each Group company are
presented in the currency of the prmary economic environment 1N
which it operates (i1s functional currency)

For the purpose of the consoidated financial statements, the results
and financial position of each Group company are expressed In

US dollars which i1s the functional currency of the matenal trading
enlites and the presentational currency for these consolidated
financial statements

In prepanng the financial statements of the indiwvidual comparses,
transactions In currencies other than the entity s functional currency
{foreign currencies) are recogrised at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions At each balance sheet
gate monetary assets and habihties that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevasing at that date Non-
monetary iters carred at far value that are denomirated in foresgn
currencies are translated at the rates prevaling at the date when the
fair value was determined Non-monetary stems that are measured
in terms of hustonical costin a foreign currency are not retranslated

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the
assets and habidities of the Group's foresgn operations are translated
at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period unless exchange rates fluctuate significantty dunng that penod,
inwhich case the exchange rates at the dates of the fransacttons are
used Exchange differences ansing, | any are recogrised in other
comprehensive ncome and accurmulated in equity

intangible assets

Intangibles assels acquwed as part of a business combination

are capitalised, separately from goodwill, at far value at the date
of acqusition if the asset 1s separable or anses from contractual
or other legal nghis and its tar value can be measured rehably
Assets such as customer contracts have a finite useful ife and are
amortised over thesr useful economic life being the contract length

The acquired ntangible assets relating to the brand and trademark
are being amortised over 25 years and 10 years respectively

The useful Iife of intangble assets is reviewed on an annual basis
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and any recogrused imparment loss The cost s

the purchase prce of the property and equipment including any
related shipping costs Centain purchase contracts atlow the Group
to hold back a percentage of the purchase price until a warranty
penod expires Purchase prce retentions are classified as a hability
and reperted 1n current or non-current habiibes depending on the
anticipated pay-out penod

Costs incurred to mobihse and install power generating equipment
pursuant 1o a contract are also captured in property and equipment
and are depreciated over the #fe of the contract 1o which the pawer
generating equipment relates, or for contract extensions over the
expected contract ife at the paint at which the contract extension 1s
deemed probable

The cost of property and equipment also includes when applicable
a decemmissioning cost, which represents the intal farr value

of the associated decommissioning habifity A decommissioning
labihity 1s established when there 1s a legal obligation associated
with the retirement of a long-lived asset and the amount can be
reasonably estimated (see nole 22)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying value or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropnate, only when it 1s
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured rehably
All other reparrs and maintenance expenditures are recorded within
the statement of comprehensive iIncome as incurred

Oepreciation 1s computed using the straight-ine method applied
to iIndividuai items over ther estimated usefui lives, or for dual-fuel
turbines based on machine run hours over ther esttmated total
machine run hours Management uses judgement in determming
the useful lives of its property and equipment considenng the
fotlowing factors expected usage, expected wear and tear, and
technological ar commercial obsolescence of the generators
Management reassesses useful ves annually A summary of the
Iwes used for computing depreciation 1s as foliows

Cftfice furriture 5-7 years
Machinery and equtpment 7-25 years
Mobilisation and installation assets 1-5 years
Vehicles 5 years
Computer and software 3 years

Dual-fuel turbines 18,750 - 100,000 mach:ine run hours

The Group reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever
events or changes in creumstances indicate that the carnyng value
of an asset may not be recoverable and exceeds far value

Impairment

Tangible and intangible assets exciuding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there 1s any incication that those assets have suffeted

an imparment loss If any such indication exists the recoverable
amount of the asset 13 estimated 1o determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any) Where the asset does not generate cash
flows that are independent from other assels the Group estmates
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the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs An intangible asset with an indefinte useful e 1s
tested far impairment at least annually and whenever there ts an
incication that the asset may be impared

Recoverable amount 1s the ugher of farr value less costs to selt and
value In use In assessing value inuse the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to thewr present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the ime value of
money and the nsk specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been acjusted

If the recaverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s
estimated to be less than Its carming amount the carrying amount
ot the asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s reduced 1o its recoverable
amount An mparment [0ss 1S recognised immediately in the
statement of comprehensive nceme unless the relevant asset s
carned at a revalued amount, sn which case the imparment loss IS
treated as a revaluation decrease

Where an imparment loss subseqguently reverses the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) 15 Increased to

the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
ncreased carrying amount dees not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determmed had no impairment ioss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years
A reversal of an imparment loss 1s recognised immediately in the
statement of comprehensive income, unless the relevant asset

15 carned at a revalued amount it which case the reversal of the
imparment loss is treated as a revaluation increase

Financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting penod whether
there 15 objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets 1s impared A financial asset or a group of financial
assets Is (mpaired and impairment losses are incurred only if

there 15 objective evidence of iImpairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the mtial recogmtion of the asset
('loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on

the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
fmancial assets that can be rehably estimated

Trade and other recevables are considered past due If any portion
of an account has not been paid in full within the contractual terms
of the account The Group assesses its ability 1o collect receivables
that are past due and provides for an adequate altowance for
doubtful accounts based on the financial stability, recent payment
history of the customer, letters of credit In place and cther pertinent
factors related te the creditworthiness of the customer The
allowance for doubtful accounts includes specific amounts for
those accounts that are deemed likely to be uncollectble Upon
permanent impairment, the trade recevable 15 wntten off against the
allawance for doubtiul accounts

Financial instruments

The Group classifies 1ts financial assets and financial habilibes
into the following categones far value through profit or loss

and loans and recewvables for financal assets and farr value
through profit and loss and other financial habiities for financial
habilites The classificatton depends on the purpose for which the
financial instruments were acquired Management determines the
classification of its financial iInstruments at initial recognition

Effective interast method
The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the finance




income generated by a financial asset and the amortised cost of
a financial habihity including allocating interest expense over the
retevant penod The effective mterest rate 1s the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees pad
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate
transaction cosis and other premums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial hability to the net carmying amount on
imtiat recognition

Loans and receivables

Trade and other recevables are non-denvative inancial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market They are (ncluded in current assets except for matunties
greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting perod

These are classified as non-current assets The Group's loans

and recevables are recorded as deposits and trade and other
receivables In the consclidated statement of financial position

Trade and other recevables are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method less any imparment Interest
income s recognised by applying the effective interest rate except
for short-term recevables when the recognition of interest would be
immatenal

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and highly Lquid
Investments that can be readily converted into cash or that have an
onginal maturity of three months or less

Borrowings

Borrowings are inihally recognised at fair vafue less transaction
costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method Under this
methed finance costs of borrowings are atlocated to periods over
the term of the related debt at a constant rate on the carrying
amount Where transaction costs have been incurred but the faciity
not drawn down at the balance sheet date, these are shown in
capitalised finance costs When the facility 1s drawn down, these
amounts are shown net of borrowings

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
supphiars Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment 1s due withm one year or less

Trade and other payables are recognised intially at fair value and
subsequently measured at their amoriised cost using the effective
Interest rate methed

Deposits

The Group mantains bid or performance bonds (secured by cash
deposits) for vanous contracts to guarantee the Group's obhigations
under the terms of the contracts The return of such deposits s
subject to performance of the Group during the contract term
Deposits are recorded at cost less any provision for impairment

Financial habiihes and equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
labilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement

Equity instruments
An equity Instrument 15 any contract that evidences a residual

interest In the assets of an entity after deducting ail of its habillies
Equity iInstruments ssued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds receved, net of direct 1ssue costs

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into denvative financial Instruments to manage its
exposure to foreign exchange rate nisk, including foreign exchange
forward contracts Furher detalls of these contracts are disclosed
in note 27

Dernvatives are mtially recogrised at far value at the date a
dervative centract 1s entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to thewr fair value at each balance sheet date The resuiting gain

or loss I1s recognised in profit and loss immedchately unless the
derivative 1s designated and effective as a hedging mnstrument in
which event the trming of the recogmition in comprehensive income
depends on the nature of the hedge relationship The Group does
nct currently designaie any denvatives as hedges

A denvative with a positive fair value 1s recognised as a financial
asset whereas a denvative with a negative fair value 1s recognised
as a financial kability A denvative is presented as a non-current
asset or a non-curent habihity if the remaining matunty of the
instrument 18 more than 12 months and it 1s not expected to be
realised or settled within 12 months Other derivatives are presented
as current assets or current labiities

Classification of Founder secunties

The Founder secunties are classified as labiities anc measured
at far value at each balance sheet date Further details about the
valuation of the Founder securities are disclosed in note 25

Costs of equity transactions

Incremental costs that aie attnbutable directly to 1ssuing equity
instruments of the Company are recognised in equity net of any tax
effects Other costs not directly attnbutable to the 1ssuing of equity
instruments are recognised in the staterment of comprehensive
Income

Provtsions

Prowisions are recogrised when the Group has a present cbligation
{legal or constructive) as a result of a past event 1t I1s probable that
the Group will be required te settle the obligation, and a rehable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obhigation

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required 1o settle the present obhgaton at the end of
the reporting penod, taking into account the nsks and uncertanties
surrounding the obhigatien When a provision 1s measured using the
cash flows estmated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount (s the present value of those cash flows, where the effect of
the time value of money 1s matenal

Decommissioning costs

The Group records a decommussioning provision when there is a
legal or constructive obligation whereby, as a result of a past event,
it 1s probable that an outfiow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the cbligation associated with the retirement of a tangible
tong-lived asset and the iability can be reascnably estmated The
amount recorded represents the present value of the expected
costs An amount equivalent to the discounted provision (s
capitahsed within 1angible fixed assets and 1s depreciated over the
hfe of the contract The unwinding of the discount ss included In
finance costs
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Inventones

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
Cost compnises direct matenals and where applicable, direct
labour costs and those overheacls that have been incurred In
bringing the inventories to therr present kocation and condition

Pensions
Paymenis to a defined contnbution pension scheme are charged as
an expense as they fall due

Share-based payments

In accordance with IFRS2 share-based payment arrangements in
which the Group receves goods or services as consideration for
APR Energy plc eguity instruments are accounted for as equity-
settled share-based payment transactions, regardless of how the
eguity instruments are obtained by the Group

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured
at the far value of the equity instruments at the grant date The farr
value excludes the effect of non-market based vesting conditions
Details regarding the determination of the farr value of equity-settled
share-based transactons are set out in note 28

The far value determined at the grant date of the equity-settied
share-based payments to employees 1s expensed on a straight-
line basis over ihe vesting pernod, based on the Group s estimate
of equity instrements that will eventually vest At each balance
sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
Instruments expecied to vest as a result of the eifect of non
market-based canditions The impact of the revision of the onginal
estimates Iif any, is recognised in 1otal comprehensive ncome such
that the cumutative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
correspend:ng adjustment to equity reserves

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the applcation of the significant accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, management Is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumpticns about the carrying amounts of assets
and habilities that are not reacily apparent from other sources The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
expenence and other factors that are considered to be relevant
Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and undertytng assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis Rewisions {o accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate 1s revised if the revision affects only
that perod or 1n the penod of the reviston and future penods if the
revision affects both current and future penods

Cntical accounting estimates and assumptions

The foliowing are the key assumptions concerming the future

and other key sources of estmation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting penod that have a significant sk of causing a matenal
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and habilibes within
the next financial year

Useful Iives of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets

Management estimates the useful ives of its property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets considenng the following factors

e Expected usage
e Expected wear and tear through normal usage
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& Technologrcal or commercial obsolescence

Depending on facts and crcumstances management may weight
one of the factors more than another or may consider additional
factors not Iisted above Changes in estimated useful lives could
have a matenal impact on future depreciation expense

Fair values of acquired assets and habiiities of the GE Power
Rental Business

Dunng 2013, the Group acquired the GE Power Rental Business
Under IFRS 3 Business Combinations, all acquired assets and
labiiies must be fair valued at acqusitron date In particular the fan
values of acquired intangible and tangible assets require judgement
and use of models with a number of forecasts and inputs These
farr values are considered prowvisional at 31 December 2013

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting poli-
cles

The following are the cntical judgements apart fram those Involving
estimations discussed above, that management made in the
procass of applying the Group's accounting policies and that

have the most significant effect on the amounts recogrised in the
consolidated financial statements

imparrment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill 1s impatred requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated The value in use calculation requies the entity to
estimate the future cash flows expected to anse from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in arder to calculate
present value No impairments were recorded In the penods
presented

Recoverability of trade and other recervables

Management review the trade and other recevables balance on

a regular basis and assesses Its ability to collect recevables that
are past due and provides for an adequate allowance for doubtful
accounts based on the financial stability, recent payment history of
the customer, letters of credit In place and other pertinent factors
related to the creditworthiness of the customer Spectfically for

the 2013 year end management focused on the Libya recevables
halance and were satistied that these were recoverable as all
invoiced amounts had been receved as at the date of this report

Fair valuation of Founder securnties

The fair value of the Founder secunties ts based on a bespoke
Monte Carlo simulation model, which incorporates a binomial tree
to value the Founder secunties as of the date of the performance
condiiort being achieved within the Monte Carlo simulaton This
model simulates the future Company ordinary share pnce, on a
daily basis, using a Geometnic Brownian Motion in a nisk-neutral
framewark

The valuabon output of the model described above is then
discounted 1o reflect the lack of marketability of the Founder
secunties using a protective put option method This discounted
figure s the number which 1s subsequently booked as the Founder
secuzities habibty in the financial statements

Accounting for taxation

The Group has operations i varous global junisdictions and as
such 1s subject to an mherent nsk ansing from the geographical
mux of revenues and profits and the complex natuie of these




tax arrangements Management reviews the Group s overail tax
position and ensures that any potential exposures are identified and
mitigated as necessary

5 Risk management policies

The Group's activihies give rise to a number of inancial nisks,
particularly market risk compnsed of foreign exchange and interest
rate nsk, credit nsk, hquidity nsk and capital nsk management

Market nsk

Market nsk includes foreign exchange nisk and interest rate

nsk The Group seeks to manage these nsks to acceptable

levels by maintaining appropnate policies and procedures In its
determination o enter into a contract the Group will carry out a
nsk assessment and determine the appropnate risk mitigations
strategies Market nisk also includes the risk that cash denved
from income for services fulfilled under contract terms will become
restricted and not available for use in the on-going activiies of the
business

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has an exposure to transacthonal foreign exchange from
purchases or sales in currencies other than US dollars In order to
minimise exposure to foreign exchange risk the Group pnmarily
contracts in US dollars or in contracts with a price based on US
dollars at the date of transaction or payment if possible (n some
cases, the Group transacts in local currencies when purchasing
matenais and supplies for project operations

in imited circumstances, the Group may use denvative INstruments
to econornically hedge against foreign exchange nsk Any hedges
are mited in duration and correspond to the applicable contract
payments of receipts to which the dernwvatives are associated
Details of the contracis in place at the balance sheet dates are
disclosed in note 27 to these financial staterments

Interest rate risk

The Group 1s primartly exposed to interest rate nsk on its
borrowings Borrowings issued at vanable rates expaose the Group
to cash flow interest rate nsk Borrowings 1ssued at fixed rates
expose the Group 1o far value interest rate nsk When applicable,
the Group may elect to hedge interest rate nisk associated with
debt or borrowings under the credit facility by purchasing denvative
instruments As at the 31 December 2013 and 2012 there were no
interest rate hedges in place

Credit nsk

Credit nisk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with
banks and financial institutions, as well as exposures to cutstanding
recevables from customers Due to the nature of the Group's
business in emerging markets, management believes the most
signiticant of these to be exposures o outstanding recevables from
customers

To mimmise the nsk of a significant impact on the business dueto a
customer defaulting on its commitments, the Group closely monitors
trade recevables In addition, the Group utiises letters of credt,
contract insurance policies and up front deposits to miigate this nsk

Liqurdity risk

Liguidity nsk results from msufficient funding being available to
meet the Group s funding requirements as they anse The Group
manages hquidity risk by maintaining adeguate reserves of cash
and available committed facilities to meet the Group s short and
long-term funding requirements The Group monitors the short-term

forecast and actual cash flows on a dally basis and medium and
long-term requirements in hne with the Group s long-term planning
Processes

The Group s principal debt faciities {{otaling $650 0 milion) are
provided by a syndicate of banks under a revolving credit faciity
and a Term Loan Further details are disclosed in note 26 to these
financial statements

Trade and other payables are disclosed in note 20 to these financiat
statements operating lease commitments are disclosed in note 31
and Founder securtties are disclosed in note 25 to these financial
statements The following contractual matunty table includes all
borrowings (including interest) foreign exchange forward contracts
trade and other payakles, Founder secunties and operating lease
commitments in the Group s statement of financial position
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Maturnity analysis for derivative and non-derivative financial liabilitres

At 31 December 2013 Less than Between Between Over Total
3 months 3 months 1 and 2 years 2 years
& miton and 1 years
Founder securities (note 25) - - - (18 5) {18 5)
Trade and other payables (nota 20) (83 4) - - - (83 4)
Borrowings (note 26) (18 8) {54 2) (2159) (355 1) (644 0}
Operating lease commitments (note 31) (09) {16) {07 {0 1) (33)
Total {103 1) (55 8) (216 6) (373 7) (748 2)
At 31 December 2012 Less than Between Between Qver Total
3 months 3 months 1 and 2 years 2 years
$ mifhon and 1 years
Foreign exchange forward contracts (note 27) {C 1} 03 - - (03)
Founder securnties {note 25) - - - {152) {15 2)
Trade and other payables {note 20} (28 9) - - - (28 9)
Borrowings (note 26) (22) (65) 87 (221 7) (239 1)
Operating lease commitments (note 31) {0 4) (0 8) (@ 8) 07 27
Total (31 6) (7 5) (95) (237 6) (286 2)

The Founder secunties have been shown in the over 2 years category as the contractual matunty of these instruments 1s greater than 2 years
and the instruments are not currently exercisable

Capital nsk management
The Group s cbjective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going corcarn it arder to provide retumns for its eguity
holders and to maintain a&n optmal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it has sufficient hquidity while maximising the return to stakehotders The Group 1s funded through
a mixture of equity and debt financing As at 31 December 2013, the Group's geanng rato was 41% (2012 18%) The long-term expectation of
management would be a gearing ratio of 30%

The Group reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis As part of this review, the Group considers the cost of capital and the nisk
associated with each class of capital The Group 1s not subject to externally imposed capital requirements

6 Revenue
The following 1s an analysis of the Group's revenue from continuing operations from its major products and sevices

$ milllon 2013 2012
Lease revenues 2731 242 2
Power revenues a9 114
Fuel revenues - 52
Finance lease revenues {note 18) 140 -
Other revenues 123 69

Total revenues 308 3 2657

7 Geographical information

The Group s revenue from continuing operations from external customers by location of operations and infarmation about 1ts non-current
assets (excluding any applicable ceferred tax balances) by location of assets 1s detalled below

Libya Uruguay and Botswana revenues represent single individual customers which indmdually form more than 10% of total revenues Of

these revenues, there was $65 3 million, $15 4 milion and $1 5 mullion of trade recewvables ouistanding at 31 December 2013 (2012 $nil $30
milion and $3 1 million)
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Revenue by geographic location

$ millton 2013 2012
Libya 785 -
Uruguay 66 4 138
Botswana 356 209
Other Africa 317 108
Other South America 235 348
Middie East 207 71
Senegal 167 43 4
Canbbean 99 188
Japan 90 1069
Other Asia Pacific 51 -
Other 112 92

Total revenues 308 3 2657

Non-current assets by geographic location

$ mihon 2013 2012
Libya 376 1 -
Other Asia Pacific 2129 -
Uruguay 2131 T25
Middle East 1731 504
Senegal 690 811
Other Africa 576 606
North America 267 918
Carnbbeaan 265 16 4
Central Amenca 2586 182
Other South Amenca 250 437
Europe - 1149
Japan - 899
Carporate and other 6871 6233

Total nan-current assets 18927 1,263 8

The corporate non-current assets pnmarnly relate 1o the goodwill and intangible assets that arose on acquisitons

8 Operating profit for the year
Operating profit for the year has been arnved at after charging/{crediting)

& muihon 2013 2012
Amortisation of intangible assets 88 580
Deprectation of property, plant and equipment 99 0 863
Payments under operating leases 28 44
Staff costs 334 223
{Gain)loss on dervative financial instruments 03) 26
{Profit)/loss on sale or disposal of fixed assets (2 4) 04
Impairment reversal on trade recevables . (15)
Founder secunties revaluation 33 102

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment excludes depreciation related 1o assets for commissioning and mebilisation purposes where the
charge (s capitalised
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9 Auditor’s remuneration
The analysis of auditor's remuneration is as follows

% million 2013 2012

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates
Audit of the Company’s annual accounts 10 09
10 09

Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for other services to the Company

Audit related assurance services a1 04
11 13

Taxation comphance and advisory services 06 04
Corporate finance transaction support services 05 -
11 04

Total fees payable 22 17

Fees payable to Delaitte and their asscciates for non-audt services to the Company are not required to be disclosed because the consolidated
financial staterments are required to disclose such fees on a consohdated basis

Detatls of the Group s policy on the use of auditars for non-audit services, the reasons why the auditor was used rather than another suppher
and how the auditor's Independence and objectmty was safeguarded are set cut in the Audit Committee Report on page 65 No services
were provided pursuant to contingent fee arrangements  Audit retated assurance services relate to work performed on the interim review Tax
comphance and adwsory services and corporate finance transachion support sernaces 1n 2013 pnimanly related to work associated with the
acquisiion of the GE Power Rental Business (30 8 million) and other tax advice In the ordinary course of business

10 Staff costs
The average monthly numbers of employees (ncluding Directors) was

2013 2012
Operations 140 128
Sales 17 18
Administratton 61 52
218 196

Therr aggregate remuneration comprnsed
$ milhon 2013 2012
Wages and salaries 250 156
Tax and social secunty 17 18
Other benefits 23 15
Equity-settled share-based payment expense 44 34
334 223

The Directors Remuneration Report on pages 75 to 91 of these financial statements provides addittonal information included in other benefits
are expenses of $0 3 miion (2012 $0 1 million) relating to defined contribution pension schemes

11 Finance costs

$ miltron 2013 2012
Interest expense on borrowings 227 41
Unwinding of discount on decommissioning provisions o9 05

236 46
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12 Income and deferred taxes
The Group s tax expenses are summansed in the following tables

$ million 2013 2012
Current tax

Current tax expense 145 93
Capitalisation of 2011 intra-Group lease charges - 12)
Prior year adjustments {0 2) (03)
14.3 78

Deferred tax
Deferred tax expense (B 6) 22
(6 6) 22
Total tax expense 7.7 100

The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit/(loss) as follows

$ million 2013 2012
Profit/(loss) before tax on continuing operations 275 (4 9)
Tax at the Cayman Corporation tax rate of 0% (2012 0%) - -
Withholding taxes 32 48
Effect of different tax rates of subsidianes operating i other jurisdichons 47 67
Capitalisation of 2011 intra-Group lease charges - {12)
Prior year adjustments (0 2) {0 3)

77 100

The Group 1s not taxable in certain junsdictions where erther the junsdichions dao not IMpoese an INcome tax or the entity 15 treated as a flow-
through entity for local country tax purposes The difference between the statutory rate and the effeclive tax rate 1s a result of withholding taxes
and taxes in foreign junsdictions as shown above

The structure of the Group generally results in each entity or branch operating within only one tax unsdicion Ingeneral income tax 1s

imposed on taxable income earned In the applicable tax junsdicton Withholding taxes are imposed based upon local country tax laws In the
junsdictions where the Group cperates, these taxes may be imposed on cross border payments to related partes In general withholding taxes
are impased on payments such as rents dwdends, and certain service payments or gross receipts from customers

Deferred income taxes
The deferred tax assets and liabilihes as of 31 December 2013 and 2012 respectively and the associated movements were as follows

31 December 2012 Credit/{charge) Acquistion 31 December 2013
to the statement of  of subsidianes
$ mithon comprehensive income (note 29)
Deferred tax assets
Cecommissioning provisions 02 - - 02
Losses recogrised 02 74 - 76
04 74 - 78
Deferred tax habilities
Withholding taxes {4 Q) 11 - 29)
Other timing differences - 0 8) {14) (20)
Capital allowances in excess of depreciaton {0 3) {13) - {16)
{4 3) (0 8) (14) (6 5)
39) 66 (14) 13

Losses carned forward that have not been recogrised are $nil (2012 $13 8 midlion) due to a tack of future anticipated profits in that junsdichon
Dunng the year the Group recognised the UK losses due to future anticipated profits in that junsdiction
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Nates to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13 Earnings per share

From continuing operations
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data

2013 2012
Profit/{loss) tor the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share
being net profit/{loss) attrbutable to the owners of the Company ($ mullion} 198 (14 9)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpase
of basic earnings per share (number of shares) 81,044,059 78,229,262
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of diluted garnings per share® {number of shares) £1,884,709 78,229,262

Earnings per ardinary share

Basic earnings per share (cents) 24 4 {19 1)
Diluted earmings per share (cents) 242 {19 1)

1 Founder securities are not considered chiutive for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 as the exercise price was above the year end share price The
Founder secunties are also not considered dilubve as the associated performance conditions had not been met at 31 December 2013 or 2012

14 Goodwill

$ mithon 2013 2012
Opening 5471 547 1
Acquisibion of subsidiartes {note 29) 755 -

Balance at 31 December 622 6 547 1

Goodwill acquired in a business combination 1 alocated, at acquisiion, to the cash generating urits {CGU's) that are expected to benefit from
that business combination The Directors have determined the business to have one CGU and the gocodwill is allocated to this unit

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be imparred
The recoverable amount of the CGU 15 determined from a value n use calculation The key assumptions for the value in use calculation are

» Revenue - Management uses current contract portfolio pricing ior the relevant partion of the forecast pencd and pricing guidelines for
expected future contract wins  The brming and size of new centracts 1s based on histonc data and also the sales and opportunities pipeline
The downtime between contracts and contract duration are based on Management's best expectations using histonical data, whilst factoring
In recent developments in creating our proprietary modular bullding system

» Costs — Management has a good understanding of historic realised margins and use this to estimate expected future margins achievable,
which are used to drive direct costs In the model Corporate and admimisirative overheads are then factored in and adjusted for expected
future growth Also included in the model 1s the forecasted capital expenditure which 1s based off supplier schedules from contractual
arrangements and the growth profile

o Growth rate — Short-term growth rates are based on management s internal forecasts A terminal cash flow was calculated using a long-term
growth rate of 3 0% (2012 3 0%} which 1s based on long-term economic growth and industry forecasts

« Oiscount rate — Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the trme value of money
and the nsks specific to the CGU The assumed discount rate used was 14 3% (2012 14 6%) before tax which in the view of management
best reflects the premium the market would reguire for such cash flows

The Group has conducted a sensitivity anaiysis on the impawment test of the CGU carrying value and have determined that there 1s ne
reasanably possible change in the key assumptions utiised in the imparment calculations, that would give rise to an impairment
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15 Intangible assets

The mtangible assets shown in the table below have ansen through farr value account:ing for the GE Power Rental Business in 2013 and the

APR Group in 2011

% mifion Customer contracts Trademark Brand Total
Cost
At 1 January 2012 106 4 - 381 1445
Additions - - - -
At 31 December 2012 106 4 - 381 144 5
Acquisition of subsidianes {note 29) 232 161 - 393
At 31 December 2013 1296 16 1 ag1 1838
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2012 459 - o8 467
Charge for the year 565 - 15 580
At 31 December 2012 102 4 - 23 1047
Charge for the year 70 03 15 88
At 31 December 2013 1004 03 as 11356
Net book value
31 December 2013 202 i58 343 703
31 December 2012 40 - kLN: aos

Customer contracts are amortised over the contract term The brand and trademark are amorhised over their esimated useful economic lives of

25 years and 10 years respectively

16 Property, plant and equipment

Machinery Mobilisation Demchkwhsation Other Total
$ milhon and equipment equipment
Cost
At 1 January 2012 3835 377 168 14 4385
Addittons 3165 273 105 14 3557
Disposals (2 8} (21 8) (152 - (39 4)
At 31 December 2012 697 4 434 122 28 7558
Acguisition of subsidianes {note 29) 2423 - - - 2423
Additions 2939 679 313 17 394 8
Disposals (25 3) (24 1) (80} {0 1) {57 5)
At 31 December 20H3 1,208 3 87 2 55 44 1,3354
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2012 154 101 113 02 370
Charge for the year 422 329 108 Q7 863
Disposals 22) (21 6) (15 3) - (39 0)
At 31 December 2012 554 214 66 09 843
Charge for the year 673 213 106 07 999
Disposals {110) {24 1) (80) . (43 1)
At 31 December 2013 1117 186 92 16 1411
Net book value
At 31 December 2013 1,096 6 686 263 28 11943
At 31 December 2012 642 0 220 56 19 6715

Depreciation 1s presented within the cost of sales In the statement of comprebensive Income
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17 Inventories

% mithon 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Spares and consurnables 430 94
43 0 94

The cost of inventones recognised as an expense dunng the year in respect of coniinuing operations was $9 8 million (2012 $9 6 milion) The
replacement cost of mventones ts not matenally different to thew carrying value

18 Trade and other receivahles

$ million 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Amount recewable under contract 146 © 499
Less allowance for doubtful receivables {15 {1 8)
Net trade receivables 1445 481
Finance lease receivables 140 -
VAT recevables 100 10
Other recevables 146 40

183 1 531

Duning the year the Group recogrised a $14 & millon (2012 $nil} finance lease recevable associated with the planned disposal of the assets
n Botswana The entire balance 1s recoverable in 2014 and the Group has assumed that the customer will exercise a $3 0 milon bargain
purchase option at the end of the 12 month contract

Trade receivables

The average credit pernod on the sales of goods in 2013 was 173 days (2012 69 days) The average credit penod for 2013 1s somewhat
skewed however due to the increased levels of activity at the year end and the resulting high year end tracie recewvables balance No interest 1s
charged on trade receivables The Group assesses its ability to collect recenables that are past due and prowides for an adequate allowance
for doubtfut accounts based on the knancial stabilty recent payrent history of the customer letters of credit in place and other pertinent
factors related to the creditworthiness of the customer The allowance for doubtfu! accounts includes speaific amounts for those accounts that
are deemed likely to be uncaolleciible

The ageing analysis past due but not mparred trade recervables was as follows

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Gross Impaired Gross Impaired
Current 802 - 365 -
30-90 days 463 - 99 -
More than 9C days 193 15 3s {18)
1460 (15) 499 (18)

The movement in respect of the provision for Impairment of trade recevables in the year was as follows

$ mithon 2013 2012
Opening 18 a3
Credit to the staterment of comprehensive income - {1 5)
Utiised (0 3) -

Balance at 31 December 15 18

In determining the recoverability of a trade recevable the Group considers any change n the credit quality of the trade recevable from

the date credit was imibally granted up to the end of the reporting penod There 1s a concentration of credit nsk because there are a imited
number of customers and as at 31 December 2013 the two indwictually significant aggregate amounts owed by Individual customers were
§65 3 mulion and $15 4 millien (2012 $15 8 milion and $9 6 millon) The nsk associated with ndvdual customers 1s mitigated by the letters
of credit we obtain from customers on commencement of a contract Management reviews concentration credit fisk on a regular basis and
ensures that where the net exposure exceeds certamn thresholds appropnate actions are taken This 1S done on a customer by customer
basis and takes account of the billing terms letters of credit and local customs and practices

The Dwrectors beheve that the carrying vatue of trade and other recewables approximate their faur value

19 Deposits
Deposits relate mainly to payments on account made for the purchase of property, plant and equipment which have manufactunng fead-times
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20 Trade and other payables

% millon 2013 2012
Trade payables 48 4 165
Accrued expenses 350 124

At 31 December 83 4 289

The average credit penod on operational purchases in 2013 was 134 days (2012 59 days) The average credit period for 2013 1s somewhat
skewed however due 1o the increased levels of actmty at the year end and the resulbing high year end trade and other payables balance The
Group has financial nsk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid wathun the pre-agreed credt terms

in 2013 $11 0 milion (2012 $6 9 mithlon} of rade and other payables related to the purchase of property and equipment

The Directars consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other payables are appropriate to therr tair values

21 Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue relates to upfront mobilisation fees and payments an account from customers This unearned revenue 1S recognised aver the

Iife of the contract or deducted off future iInvoices

22 Decommissioning provisions

& million 2013 2012
Opening 197 181
Acguisition of subsidiaries (note 29) 79 -
Additons 313 105
Utihsed (107 °4
Unwinding of discount 089 05

Balance at 31 December 49.1 197
Current 180 122
Non-current 311 75

The Group records a decammissioning prowsion when there s a legal or constructive cbligation whereby as a result of a past event, itis probable
that an outfiow of economic benefits will be requrred 1o settle the obligation associated with the retirement of a tangible long-lived asset and the
liability can be reasonably estimated  If the eflect 1s matenal prowvistons are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and where appropriate the nisks specific to the liability

The decommisstoning provision has been calculated using a discount rate of 3 3% (2012 3 3%) The costs are generally expected io be

incurred approximaitely 1-5 years in the future

23 Share capital

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
8 multion Number $ miion Number

Allotted, called up and fully pard
Ordinary shares of 10p each

152 94,251,622 126 78,235,164

Ordinary shares Deferred shares

Number Number

Outstanding shares at 31 December 2011 78,215,164 954,749,920
Share matching awards 20,000 -
Redemption of deferred shares - (954,749,920)
Outstanding shares at 31 December 2012 78,235,164 -
Acquisihon of subsichanies {note 29} 15,453,129 -
Exercise of equity-settled share-based payment 563,329 -
Outstanding shares at 31 December 2013 94,251,622 -

Under the Companies Act 2008, the Company’s ariicles of association do not recognise the concept of authonsed share capital
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

On 28 October 2013, the Group acquired the GE Power Rental Business, compnsing Power Rental Op Co One LLC, Power Rental Op Co
Australta LLC Power Rental Asset Co One LLC, Power Rental Asset Co Two LLC Power Rental Op Co Canada ULC and Power Rental Op Co
Bangladesh Limited

The total consideration for the acquisiion was $361 5 million payable in cash ($73 1 millon) on completion and 15,453,129 cordinary shares
allottedt and 1ssued credited as fully paid up ta the sellers  The far value of this share 1ssue was $268 4 milhon which was equal to the share
price on the closing date of the transaction

24 Other reserves

Merger reserve  Capital redemption Total

$ million reserve
At 1 January 2012 4858 - 485 8
Redemption of deferred shares - 01 01
Balance at 31 December 2012 4858 01 4859
Acguisitton of subsicharies’ (note 29) 284 1 - 2684 1
Balance at 31 December 2013 769 9 01 7700

1 Includes $1 8 mition of costs associated with the 1ssue of 15 453 129 ordinary shares related to the acquisition of the GE Power Rental
Business

25 Founder securities

$ milion 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Founder securittes 185 152
185 152

Subject o the satisfaction of the performance condition referred to below the holders of the Founder secuntes have the nght to require the
Company to acquire the Founder securiies in exchange for the issue to the holders of the Founder secunties of such number of ordinary
shares as have a value equal to 15% of the difference between (1) the share pnce at that ime multiphed by the number of ordinary shares at
the time of fransaction 78,215 1684 (plus the aggregate value created for those parties with outstanding options or convertible secunties (over or
in respect of ordinary shares) which have an exercise (or subscription or conversion} price of less than the market price for an ¢rdinary share at
that tme} and (2) a deemed market capitalisation of the Company which 1s the product of the number of ordinary shares in 1ssue at the time of
the transaction (meaning the Placing Price £10 00 as adjusted appropnriately for matters such as any subsequent consolidation subcivision of
the ordinary shares or allotment of ordinary shares or effects of a nghts 1ssue or any value paic by the Company to ordinary shareholders)

The performance condition 1s satisfiec

(a) once the price per ordinary share has reached (for any 20 Business Days out of 30 successive Business Days} a closing price equal to the
greater af {1} an equivalent of a compound rate of return from Admission on the Adjusted Issue Price equal to 8 3% per annum accrued
dally and compounded quarterty and {1} an amount equal lo a 25% increase in the Adjusted Issue Price (such closing price the “Threshold
Price”) At 31 December 2013 the performance condition was £12 50 (2012 £12 50} or

(b} on the occurrence of a Change of Controt in relation to the Company subject {(where the Change of Control results from an offer to holders
of the ordinary shares) to that offer being at an equivalent pnce per ordinary share equal to (or greater than) the Threshold Price

Fallowing any exerctse by a holder of the Founder securiies of its exchange nghis ihe Company will have the option 1o pay cash equivalen: to
the holder of such Founder secunties, s lieu of issuing ordinary shares In the event that the performance condition has not been satished by
the date falling 5 years from the date of the Acquisition (13 June 2011) the Company will be able to acquire all of the Founder secunties far nil
consideration

The Founder secunties are not exchangeable for a fixed number of ordinary equity shares The number of ordinary shares 1ssued in respect of
these instruments 1s governed by vanous factors including the share price at the date of conversion

The Group continues o value the Founder secunties using a bespoke Mornte Carla simulation model which ingorporates a binomial tree {o vai-
ue the instruments as of the date of the performance condition being achieved within the Monte Carlo simulation Tims model simulates the future
Company share pnice on adaily basis, using a Geometric Browruan Motort in a risk-neutral framework

The valuation output of the modet described above s then discounted ta reflect the lack of marketatility of tha Founder secunties using a protec-
tive put option method
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in accordance with |AS 32 and IAS 39, the Founder secunties were measured at far value upon recogniion and subsequently at each balance
sheet date the inputs used were as follows

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Balance sheet date share price $1574 $1317
Expected volatility 31% 33%
Remaining life 894 days 1,259 days
Lack of marketability penod 730 days 730 days
Risk-free rate 13% 03-05%
Expected dividend yield 12% 15%

The charge for the year was $3 3 millon (2012 $10 2 million) A change in the expected volatility by 1% would have a $0 7 million (2012 $0 9
mullion) smpact on the reportec far value

The expected volalilty used for 2013 and 2012 was determined by calculating the historical and implied volatiiies of the Company and several
comparable listed entity share prices over the previous 3 years

26 Borrowings

Revolving Term

$ miflion credit facility loan Total
At 1 January 2013 2050 - 2050
Cash from borrowings 3178 2500 5678
Repayment of borrowings (182 8) - (182 8)
At 31 December 2013 3400 2500 580 0
Capitalised debt issuance costs (107)
5793

Current - 500 500
Non-current 3400 2000 540 0

In2011 the Group entered into a committed, secured revolving credit facility of $400 million wath a group of international banks with a matunty
date of 28 November 2016

In May 2013, the Group entered into a committed, secured term loan of $150 millon with several of the existing group of International banks
involved with the revolving credit facility This term loan was then subsequently extended in QOctober 2013 by an additional $100 million to $250
milhon with a matunty date of 1 January 2015, with quarterly repayments of $12 5 million commencing on 31 March 2014

As of 31 December 2013 39 8 mifion {31 December 2012 $19 4 milhon) of letters of credit have been drawn against the revohang credit facility
As of 31 December 201 3, the avalable amount of the undrawn facilities was $50 2 million {31 December 2012 $175 6 mullion)

The faciities provide for funding of capital expenditures, working capital requirements and letters of credit Key financial covenants include a
Total Leverage Rato (Adjusted EBITDA/Total Indebtedness) at a maxmum of 5 00 1 which reduces to 2 50 1 by 30 June 2014, and an Interest
Coverage Ratio (Adjusted EBITDA/Net Interest) at a mimnmum of 4 00 1 The LIBOR spread s LIBCR plus 23% 3 8% dependent on the Total
Leverage Ratio

The revolving credit facility and term loan are secured with the equity and assets of the majonty of the Grougp's subsidiary undertakings The
Dwrectors believe that the carrying value of borrowings approximate therr farr value

If the interest rates had been 50 basis points higherflower and all other vanables were held constant, the Group's total comprehensive profi
would have increasedfdecreased by $1 5 million (2012 $0 4 milion) This 1s mainly due to the Group s exposure to (Nterest rates on s vanable
rate borrowings

Bid/performance bonds

The Group has a need to post bid or performance bonds associated with customer coniracts These bonds are typically 1ssued from the
Group's revolving crecht facilty or backed by a cash deposit As of 31 Decemnber 2013 the Group had $8 8 million (2012 $5 1 millon) backed
by cash deposits and $nil {2012 $1 & million) with other international banks
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27 Financial instruments

Financial nsk management objectives

The Group s Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financiat
markets, monitors and manages the financial nsk relating to the operations of the Group through internal nsk reports which analyse exposures
by degree and magnitude of these nsks

As disclosed Innote 5 durnng operations the Group can be exposed 1o market nsk (including currency ntsk and intecest rate risk), credi nsk
and hquidhty nsk

From time to time  the Group may seek tc manage foreign exchange nisk by using dervative instruments 1o imit these nisk exposures The use
of financial derwvatives s gaverned by the Group’s policies approved by the Board of Directors which pravide whitten principles on foreign
exchange nsk and the use oi denvative and non-dervative financral instruments Compliance with policies and exposure lmits 1s reviewed by
the Risk committee on an on-going basis The Group does not enter into or trade financral instruments including dervative financia
instruments for speculatve purposes

The Group has no externally imposed capital requirements

Capital nsk management

The Group manages its capital 1o ensure that it has sufficient iqurechity white maximising the return to stakeholders The Group 1s funded through
a mixture of equity and debt financing The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents and equity comprising 1ssued
capital access to committed $650 million credit faciiies and retained profits The long-term expectation of management would be a geanng
ratio of 30%

Significant accounting policies

Detals of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted including the crtena for recognition, the basts of measurement and the
basis on which income and expenses are recogrised in respect of each class of financial asset, financtal hability and equity instrument are
disclosed in the accounting pelicies section of these financial statements Detads of the Group s nsk management policies are shown in note 5

Principal financial instruments
The prncipal financal instruments used by the Group, from which financial instrument nisk anses are as follows

@ Trade and other recevables

@ Trade and other payables

® Cash and cash equivalents

® Denvative financial instruments
® Borrowings

Categories of financial instruments

$ mulion 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Financial assets
Fair value through profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents 338 210
Loans and receivables

Amount receivable under contract (note 18) 1450 499

Finance lease recevables {note 18) 140 -

VAT receivables {note 18) 100 10
Total financial assets 2039 719
Financial liabilitles
Fair value through prolit or loss

Denvative habilities 185 155
Other financial habilities

Borrowings (note 26) 5793 1995

Trade and other payables {note 20) 834 289
Total financial liabilities 6812 243 9

Foreign exchange forward contracts

in imited circumstances, the Group may use dervative instruments to economically hedge aganst foresgn exchange nsk At the year end, the
Group had no open foresgn exchange confracts  When used these EUR/USD foreign exchange hedges range in value up to $nil (2012 $10
milien} per contract  If the hedged EUR/USE foreign exchange contract rates were to change by 3 cents, the resulting change in contract

values was 3nil (2012 $0 3 million)
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The following table details the Group's hquickty analysis for its denvative financial Instruments based on contractual matunties

Less than Between Between Over Total
3 months 3 months 1 year 2years
$ mithon and 1 year and 2 years
31 December 2013
Founder secunties (note 25) - - - (18 3) (18 5}
Total - - - (18 5) (18 5)
31 Dacember 2012
Net settied foreign exchange forward contracts [OR)] 02 - - 03
Founder secunties (note 25) - - - (15 2) {15 2)
Total {01) (02) - {15 2) {15 5)

The followmng table provides an analysis of inancial nstruments that are measured subsequent to it recognitton at tar value grouped Into

Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the farr value 1s observable

e Level 1 far value measurements are those denved from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or abilities,

o Level 2 far value measurements are those denved from mputs other than quoted pnces included witkwn Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or labiity, either directly ( @ as prices) or indirectly {| e derved from prices) and

o Level 3 far value measurements are those dernved from valuaton techniques that include inputs for the asset or [lability that are not based on

observable market data {unobsenvable inputs)

$ milion Level 1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2013

Derivative hability - - {18 5) (18 5)
Totat - - {18 5) (18 5)
31 December 2012

Derivative habihty - 03) (152) (155)
Total - ©3) (152) (15 5)
$ milfon Level 3
At 1 January 2012 50

Change n far value 102
At 31 December 2012 152

Change In farr value 33
At 31 December 2013 185

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 dunng the cusrent or pnor year The Founder secunties revaluation in the current year resulted in
aloss of $3 3 mulion (2012 $10 2 million) recogresed 10 the statement of comprehensive income

Credit nsk management

Credit nsk refers to the nsk that a counter party will default onits contractual obligatons resuling in a financial loss to the Group Credit nisk anses
from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as exposures 1o outstanding recevables from customers

Due to the nature of the Group's business In emerging markets, management believes the most significant of these to be exposures to
autstanding recevables from customers To minimise the nisk of a significant impact on the business due 1o a customer defaulting on iis
commitments, the Group closely monitors trade recewvables In addition, the Group utilises letters of credit, contract Insurance policies and up

front deposits to mitigate thes nsk

The carnang amount of financial assets recorded i the financial staterments, which 1s net of Imparment losses, represents the Group $

maxmum exposure to credit nsk

The credit nsk on hquid funds and denvate financial instruments 1s imited because the counter-parties are banks with credi-ratings assigned

by intermational credit-rating agencies
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Notes to the Censclidated Financial Statements

The peak concentraton of the Group's credit nsk 1s considered by counterparty, geography and currency The Group holds its cash on deposit
with a number of financial institutions At 31 December 2013 the concentration of credit nisk held with one bank totatled $10 6 mullion (2012 two
banks {otalling $6 8 mifhion and $6 1 mutlion respectively ) which 1s pamanty denominated in Argentinan Pesos and USD (2012 USD and GBP)
See note 18 for details of the lrade recevables concentration erecii nsk

Maturity of financial assets and hnancial habiities
Details of contractual matunties of iinancial assets and financial habiites are shawn in note 5

28 Share-based payments

In accordance with IFRS2 Share-based payment arrangements in which the Group receves goods or services as consideration for APR Energy
pic equity instruments, are accounted for as equity-setiled share-based payment fransactions, regardiess of how the equity instruments are
abtained by the Group

In June 2012, the Company adopted the APR Energy Share Award Plan 2012 (the "2012 Plan”} The 2012 Plan allows for the grant of share
options and contingent share awards This provides a more effective retention tool with the flexibility to reflect comman US practice on equity
incentives 1t1s a long-term in¢entive plan enabling selected employees to be granted a nght to acquire ordinary shares in the Company at a
specthed price subject 1o the satsfaction of speafied condiions The number of ordinary shares 1ssued or 1ssuable pursuant to awards granted
0 any 10-year penod 1s imited to 10 per cent of the 1Issued ordinary shares from ime to tume

In Cctaber and November 2013 contingent share awasds were granted to all employees over an aggregate of 425,858 ordinary shares under
the 2012 Plan These awards provide for ordinary shares to be delivered (subject to payment of the nominal value of the award shares if so
required) on or after the third annwversary dependent on the achievement of performance conditions determined by reference 1o the growth of
the Group's adjusted earmings per share over the penied of three years ending on 31 December 2015 with 30% vesting at a threshold of 4%
growth, nising to 100% vesting for growth of 11% or more

In Novermber 2012, tollowing a review by the Remuneration Committee and ratification by the Board, contingent share awards were granted
to three senior employees aver an aggregate of 315,000 ordinary shares under the 2012 Plan These awards provide for ordinary shares to
be delrvered (subject to payment of the nominal value of the award shares f so required) on or after the third anniversary dependent on the
achievement of performance conditions determined by reference to the growth of the Group's adjusted earnings per share over the perniod of
three years ending on 30 June 2015 with 30% vesting at a threshold of 4% growth nsing to 100% vesting for growth of 11% or mare

In June 2012, share options were granted (o selected employees 10 subscribe tor up to a totat of 1,770,000 ordinary shares at an exercise pnce
of £6 83 per share under the 2012 Plan In October 2012, share opltrans were granted 1o additional employees to subscnbe for up to a totaf of
360 000 ordinary shares at an exercise price of £7 63 per share also undes the 2012 Plan These share ophons normally vest as to one third on
each of the first second and third anniversanes of the grant and once vested remain exercisable until the tenth anniversary of the grant

In 2012 the onginat APR Energy Performance Share Plan was re-named the APR Energy Share Option Pian 2011 (the 2011 Plan") There s a
corresponding 2011 Plan under which there were grants made to contractors Onginally share options were granted under the 2011 Plans to
employees and contractars employed by or providing senices to the Group and vested in tranches according to adjusted EBITDA, (50%) and
adjusted net income (50%) as dernved from the audited consclidated financial statements for the calendar years ending 31 December 2011,
2012 and 2013 and to be delivered on or after the third anniversary However the Directors were concermed that the 2011 sbare options were
not acting as an effective tool for motivating and retarming key staff in the way onginally intended The share ophions held by cettain continuing
ophon holders (over an aggregate of 749,500 oidinary shares) were amended and restated in June 2012 by the Remuneration Committee

by replacing the onginal performance conditions with a vesting schedule more in line with a US workforce with a third vesting by reference 1o
conlinued employrment or senace provisions on each of the first second and third anniversanes of the onginal grant on 13 June 2011 At the
same tme the exercise pernod was extended from the three months onginally provided until the tenth anniversary of the grant  In each case,
the exercise price remains unchanged at £10 00 per ordinary share  No amendments were made to the share gptions granted under the 2011
Plan to the three most senior employees, which for the two who reman employed, are exercisable subject to the onginai terms

2012 Plan
2013 2012

Number of Weighted average Number of Weighted average
share options exercise pnce {$5) share options exercise price ($)
Opening 2,065,000 1131 - .
Granted duning the year - - 2,130,000 10 87
Exercised durning the year (414,997) (1097} - -
Forfeited dunng the year {110,002} {(1097) {65,000} {11 29)
Balance at 31 December 1,540,001 "N 2,065,000 11 31
Exercisable at the end of the year 270,003 1131 - .
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Inputs to the Black-Scholes model for the 2012 Pran share options awards are as follows No options were granted »n 2013

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Grant date share pnce - $1063-%51207
Exercise price - $1063-8$1207
Expected volatility - 32-34%
Expected life - 2,008 - 2,373 days
Risk-free rate - 10-20%
Expected dividend yield - 13-14%

The share-based payment expense for 2013 related to these awards was $2 6 mihon {2011 31 6 million) The waighted average far value of
the awards 1ssued dunng the year was $nil per share option (2012 $3 10) The weighied average remaining contractual life of these awards at

31 December 2012 was 8 6 years (2011 95 years)

Contingent share awards
2013 2012

Number of Weighted average Number of Weighted average
share awards exercise pnice ($) share awards exercise price ($)
Opening 315,000 - - -
Granted dunng the year 425,858 - 315,000 -
Forteited during the year {744) - . .
Balance at 31 December 740,114 - 315,000 -

Exercisable at the end of the year

Inputs to the Black-Scholes model for the 2012 Plan contingent share awards are as follows

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Grant date share price
Exercise price
Expected volatility
Expected Iife

Risk-free rate

Expected dividend yield

$16 95-518 66 $11 04
31% 32%

1,095 days 1,085 days
20% 20%
09-10% 1 4%

The share-based payment expense for 2013 related to these awards was $0 8 milion (2012 30 1 millon) The weighted average far value of
the awards 1ssued during the year was $18 15 per contingent share {2012 $1057) The weighted average remaning contractual ife of these
awards at 31 December 2013 was 2 4 years (2012 2 9 yaars)

2011 Plans
2013 2012

Number of Weighted average Number of Weighted average
share options exercise price (§) share options exercise price ($)
Opening 1,748,500 1624 2,133,500 1623
Exercised dunng the year (148,332) {16 06) - -
Forfeited durnng the year (967,000) {16 57) {384,000) (16 23)
Balance at 31 December 634,168 16 57 1,749,500 16 24
Exercisable at the end of the year 331,335 18 57 248,833 16 24
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Notes io the Consolidated Financial Statements

Inputs to the Black-Scholes model for the 2011 Plans are as follows No aptions were granted in 2013 and 2012 related only to modifications of
existing awards

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Grant date share price - $1063
Exercise pnce - $1556
Expected volatility - 34%
Expected life - 1,643 - 2,008 days
Risk-free rate - 08%
Expected dividend yield - 15%

The share-based payment expense for 2013 related to these awards was $0 9 million (2012 $1 7 milion} The weighted average far value of the
awards 1ssued dunng the year was Snil per share option (2012 $nul per share ophon) However the removal of the performance cntena dunng
2012 increased the weighted average far value of the 2011 awards by $0 95 per share option for those awards not held by the three most sersor
employees The weighted average remaining contractuai ife of these awards at 31 December 2013 was 6 8 years (2012 50 years)

The expected volatility used for all 2013 and 2012 awards was determined by calcutating the tustonical and implied volatiliies of the Company
and several comparable hsted entity share prices over the prewious 3 years The expected life used in the mode! has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the eftecis of non-transterability, exercise restiictons, and behawoural considerations

Share Matciung Scheme

2013 2012
Number of Weighted average Number of Weighted average
share awards exercise price ($) share awards exercise price ($)
Opening - - 20,000 016
Exercised durning the year - - (20,000) (0 16)
Forfeited dunng the year - - - -
Balance at 31 December - - - -

Exercisable at the end of the year - - - .

29 Acquisition of subsidiaries |

On 28 October 2013, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital and obtained contral of the following companies (compnsing the
“GE Power Rental Business™)

e Power Rental Op Co One LLC,

o Power Rental Op Co Australia LLC

e Power Rental Asset Co One LLC,

e Power Rental Asset Co Two LLC,

» Power Rental Op Co Canada ULC, and
& Power Rental Op Co Bangladesh Limited

The acquisition advances APR Energy towards its stated stratequc goals creatng the world's leading fast-track mobile turbine fleet of 1 2GW,
significantly strengthering and diversifying APR Energy's business, and creating a long term strategic aliance with GE The prowvisional
amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and habillies assumed are as set cut in the table below, and are considered
to be provisional due to the use of estimates in valuing the intangible assets
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Prowvisional

$ milhon fair value
Property, plant and equipment 2423
Intangible assets 383
Trade and other receivables 158
Inventory 72
Trade and other payables (Q3)
Deferred tax hiability (14)
Decommissioning provisions (79)
Deferred revenus (90)
Total identifiable assets and liabilities 2860
Goodwill 755
Total consideration 3615
Satisfied by
Cash 731
Equity instruments (15,453,129 ordinary shares of the Company) 288 4
Total consideration 3615

The total consideration for the acguisition was $361 5 million payable in cash ($73 1 milhon) on completion and 15,453,129 ordinary shares
alloited and 1ssued credited as fully pard up to the sellers

The fair value of this share issue was $288 4 millon which was equal to the share price on the closing date of the transaction multipled by the
number of shares 1ssued Acqusition retated costs amounted to $14 4 millon (2012 $nil) and were pnmarily related to legal and professional
fees and early termination fees and were charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

The goodwlt of $75 5 million ansing from the acquisiion 1S reflective of the expected strong growth prospects of the GE Power Rental
Business None of the goodwall Is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes

The GE Power Rental Business contributed 89 2 milion revenue and $2 4 million to the Group's profit for the penod between the date of
acquisition and the 31 December 2013 If the acquisition of the GE Power Rental Business had been completed on the first day of the
financial year, Group revenues for the penod to 31 Decempber 2013 would have been $376 6 million and profit would have been $45 1 million

30 Contingent habilities

Impact of operating i First, Secaond and Third-Tier countries

Al 31 December 2013 the Group had operations in vanous couniries across several continents Operating in these counines subjects the
Group 1o the Inherent nsk of changes in law, regulations, and governmental policy and stability The Group has ulilsed mnsurance and letters of
credit to help mihgate these nsks and no prowvision has been recorded

Legal and environmental

From time to time, the Group 1s subject to iigation or environmental clams The Group uses vanous means to hmit its exposure to such
contingencies mauding nsk managerment strategies and insurance coverage These claims can involve highly complex 1ssues, actual
damages, and other matters These issues are subject to substantial uncertainties and therefore the probability of loss and ar estimation
of damages are difficuli to ascertain Management s assessments can involve complex judgements about future events and can rely heavily
on estimates and assumptions The Group’s assessments are based on estimates and assumptions that have been deemed reasonable
by management The Group recognises a llability for contingencies when it 1s more hkely than not that the Group will sustain a loss and the
amount can be estmated

As of 31 December 2013 the Group was not subject to any substantive legal or environmental claims and it has not recorded any contingent
obhigations in the consolidated financial statements

Purchase commitments

As of 31 Decernber 2013, the Group s commitments related o the purchase of property plant and equipment were $16 6 million (2012 $117 5
million)
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Notes to the Consohdated Financial Statements

31 Operating lease arrangements
As Lessee

$ mulhon 2013 2012

Minimum lease payments under operating leases
recognised as an expense In the year 28 44

The Group had vanous operating lease agreements for offtce and warehouse space, land and office equipment dunng the year The lease
terms on these arrangements are typically two years Lease commutrments over two years relate to corporate headquarters The farr value of the
Group s lease obligations 1s approxmately equal to therr carrying amount

$ miflion 2013 2012

Commitments under non-canceliable operating leases falling due

Within one year 25 12
Greater than one year but less then two years o7 08
Within two to five years ot 07
Total commitments over the next five years 33 27
As a lessor

Lease income 1s contingent on plant avalabidity and accordingly the minimum lease income under non-canceltable operating leases 15 il

32 Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note

JCLA Holdings LLC 1s a related party due to 1is owners being the CEQ and COQ of APR Energy plc Consulling services from JCLA Holdings
LLC (and its subsicianes) were incurred by the Group dunng the year These consuliing services were made at ant arm s length market price
The total expense for the year was 0 4 milion (2012 $0 3 milhon) The services rendered were all paid in cash No guaraniees have been
given or received

CJJ LLC 1s a related party due to its owner being the CEQ of APR Energy plc CJJ LLC prowvides Iravel arrangement services to the Group
These services were made at an arm s length market price The total expense for the year was $0 3 milkon (2012 $nil) The services rendered
were all paid in cash No guasantees have been given or received

JCLA Development Il LLC :s a company related by common conirol by the CEC and COQ JCLA Development fl LLC rents office space to
the Group These rental services were made at an arm 8 length market pnice  The total expense for the year was $nil (2012 $0 1 million) The
services rendered were all paid in cash No guarantees have been given or received

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel of the Group I1s set out below In aggregate for each of the categones specified in IAS 24
Related Party Disclosures Further informahon about the remuneration of certain key management personnel 1s provided in the audited part of
the Directors” Remuneration Report on pages 75 to 81

$ mifhon 2013 2012
Remuneration 70 25
Post-employment benefits - -
Other long-term benefits o1 01
Termination benefits - 0s
Equity-settled share-based payment expense 28 0B

99 43

The group of indwiduals designated as key management personnel has been expanded from 5 to 9 ndmduals in the current year

33 Significant Investments

The principal subsictary undertakings of the Group at the year end, and the main countries in which they operate are shown below All
companies are wholly owned
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Country Country

Name Principal actmity of operation of regrstration
APR Energy Holdings Limited Holding company UK England and Wales
APR Energy Cayman Limited Holding company United States Cayrman lslands
APR International LLC Holding company United States United States
APR Energy LLC Supply of temporary power United States United Statas
APR LLC Supply of temporary power United States United States
APR Energy SRL Supply of temporary power Argentina Argentina
APR Energy Il LLC Holding company Unned States Umted States
APR Energy Panama SRL Distribution centre Panama Panama
Falconbnidge Services LLC Service company United States United States
APR Energy Spain SLU Supply of temporary power Spain Spain
APR Energy (Cyprus) Limited Supply of temporary power Cyprus Cyprus
APR Energy Germany GmbH Supply of termporary power Germany Germany

Power Rental Gp Co LLC

Supply of temporary power

Irag, Bangladesh, US Vi

Unrted States

Power Rental Op Co Australia LLGC

Supply of temporary power

Australia

United States

Power Rental Asset Co LLC Holding company United States United States
Power Rental Asset Co One LLC Supply of temporary power Urited States United States
Power Rental Asset Co Two LLC Supply of temporary power United States United States
Power Rental Op Co Canada ULC Supply of temporary power Canada Canada
Power Rental Op Co Bangladesh Limited Supply of temporary power UK England and Wales
APR Energy FZE Distribution centre Dubai Dubai
APR Energy Uruguay SA Supply of temporary power Uruguay Uruguay
PT APR Indonesia Supply of temporary power Indcnesia Indonesia
Alaska Bussines Group SA Supply of temporary power Guatemala Guatemala
APR Energy (Singapore) Private Distribution centre Malaysia Singapore
34 Dividends
$ millien 2013 2012
Declared and paid during the year
Final dividend for 2012 6 7 pence (2011 10 0 pence) per ordinary share 79 125
Intenim divedend for 2013 3 3 pence (2012 3 3 pence) per ordinary share 50 39
Dividends paid 12.9 164
Proposed for approval by the shareholders at the AGM
Final dividend for 2013 6 7 pence (2012 6 7 pence) per ordinary share 99 85

The proposed final dwidend 1s subject to approval by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a hability
N these financial stalements

35 Events after the balance sheet date

On 10 January 2014 the Group anncunced the extension of its 200MW diesel power module project in Libya on the same terms as the onginal
contract

©On 12 February 2014, the Group announced the signing of a large-scale, urnkey power contract in Myanmar The facility will provide the
Myanmar Eleciric Power Enterprise (MEPE) with a guaranteed rminimum of 82MW of power generation

As past of the acquisition of the GE Power Rentals Business, the Group acquired a number of contracts as well as additional fleet  As disclosed
at the tme some of those contracts are held with corporate, not soveraign, counterparties  We have been informed that one of those parties In
Australha, Forge Group Limited, filed for protection from its creditors post year end  As such, the assets allocated to that project are ted up in
the recervership process  Although st is still in the early stages, the Group s working with the adminstrators/recervers of Forge Group Limited
regarding possession of those assets

On 26 March 2014 the Group anncunced the signing of a maobile turtine contract to prowide fast-track power to an industrial customer In the
South Pacific The plarnt will comprise mobile turbines producing a guaranteed 60MW and will power the customer $ mining operatens
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Company Financial Statements

Statoment of Financial Position
As at 31 Decembaer 2013
$ mitlion Note 31 Docomber 2013 31 Devember 2012
Assats
Non-curront assets
Invastmants ] 12045 1,204 §
Trade and cther receivablss 7 2602 2838
Total nen-curment asssts 1,4737 1,480.4
Currant nssets
Trade and other recenvables 7 o4 02
Cash and cash equivalents - 18
Tots! current assets 0.4 2.0
Total assets 1,474.1 1,490.4
Liablilties
Current llabllities
Tiade and other peysblas 8 11 2183
Total currend liablititias 1.1 38
Total Babliitiss 1.1 3183
Equity
Share capitel 8 152 128
Share premum 749 888 1
Other reserves 10 700 4858
Equity reserves 1 a0 45
Retained eamings a0 10
Yota! squity 1,4730 1,172.1
Tota! lisbliives and squity 1,474 1 14904

These financial statements of the Company registersd rumbes 07062201
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Chief Executve Officer




Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Share Share Cther Equity  Retaned Total
$ millor caprtal premium reserves reserves earnings eqgurty
Balance at 1 January 2012 127 668 1 485 8 18 A7 14721

Profit for the year - - - 130 130
Total comprehensive profit for the year - - - - 130 130
{ssued share capnal - - - 07 o7 -
Redemption of deferred shares ©1) - 01 - - -
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payment expense - - - 34 - 34
Dwidends - - - - (16 4) (16 4)
Balance at 31 December 2012 126 668 1 4859 45 10 1,1721
Profit for the year - - - - 159 159
Total comprehensive profit for the year - - - - 159 159
Acquisihion of subsidianes 25 - 2841 - - 2866
Exercise of equity-settied share-based payment 01 68 - 20 20 69
Credit to equity for equity-settied share-based payment expense - - - 44 - 44
Dividends - - - - (12 9) (12 9)
Balance at 31 December 2013 152 674 9 7700 69 60 14730
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Cempany Financial Statements

Cash Flow Statement
For the year anded 31 December 2013
$ rmithon Note 2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year before taxation 159 130
Adjustments for
Equity-settled share-based payment expense " 04 02)
Movements n working capital
Decrease/(increase) In trade and other receivables 185 (11 5)
{Decrease)fincrease In trade and other payables 28 8) 39
Net cash from operating activilies 60 52
Cash flows from financing activitles
Dividends paid 14 (128} (16 4)
Proceeds from the 1ssue of ordinary shares 51 -
Net cash used n financing activities (7 8) (16 4)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {18) (112)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 18 130
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year - 18
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Notes

to the Company Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

1 General information

APR Energy plc (the Company ), Is a company incorporated in the
United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 The address of

the registered office 1s given on page 132 of this Annual Report The
nature of the Company's operations and its principal activities are set
out in the Strategy Review on pages 11 to 33

These financial statements are presented in US dollars because that
Is the currency of the primary economic envirenment in which the
Caompany operates

2 Adoption of new and revised standards

In 2013 several amended standards and interpretations became
effective These are IAS 1 Presentation of items of other comgre-
hensive Income - Amendments 1o IAS 1, IAS 19 (revised) Employee
Benefits IFRS 7 {amended) Disclosures - ofisetting financial assets
and liabiities (FRS 11 Joint arrangements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of
interests in other entires and IFRS 13 Farr value measurement The
adoption of these standards and interpretations has not had a matenal
impact on the financial staternents of the Company

At the date of authonsation of these financiaf statemenis, the following
standards and relevant interpretatrons, which have not been applhed
n these inancial statements, were In1ssue but not yet effective (and
some of which were pending endorsement by the European Urion)

e Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Labihties (Amendments
to 1AS 32) — effective for accounting penods beginning on or after 1
January 2014,

e Investment Entites (Amendments te IFRS 10 IFRS 12 and IAS 27)
- effective for accounting periods beginming on or after 1 January
2014,

e Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
{Amencdments to JAS 36) — effective for accounting penods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014

« Novation of Denvatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
{Amendments to 1AS 39) - effective for accounting periads
beginnming on or after 1 January 2014,

o Defined Benefit Plans Employee Contebutions (Amendments to
IAS 18) — effective for accounting penods beginning on or after 1
July 2014

e Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle — effective for accounting
pericds beginning on or after 1 July 2014 and

o Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle - effective for accounting
pencds beginning on or after 1 July 2014

Adoption of the these standards in future penods 1s not expected o
have a material impact on the financial statemenis of the Company

3 Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statementis have been prepared in accordance with
Internationat Financial Reporing Standards (IFRSs) The financial
statements have also been prepared in accordance with IFASs

adopted by the European Umion and therefore the financial statements
comply with Article 4 of the EU 1AS reguiation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis Histoncal cost 1s generally based on the farr value of the
consideration given in exchange for the assets

Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company I1s
axempt from the requirement to present its own prefit and loss
account The profit for the year endeci 31 December 2013 of the
Company was $15 9 miflion (2012 $13 0 milion) These financial
statements are presented in US dollars because that (s the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements 15 1n conformity with IFRS
IFRS requires the use of certain crnitical accounting estimates It also
reguires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies The areas involving

a higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas where
assumplions and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in note 4

Going concern

The Directors have, at the tme of approving the inancral statements,
a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources
to continue m cperational existence for the foreseeable future Thus
they continug to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
prepanng the financial statements Further detai 1s contanedt in the
Financial Review on page 39

Provision for income taxes

Current tax

The current ncome tax charge 1s caiculated on the basts of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial
pesition cate in the UK where the Company operates, generates
taxable income and 15 subject to tax under local country tax law

Management penodically evaluales positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which apglicable tax regulation 1s subject to
interpretation It establishes provisions where approprnate based on
amounts expected to be pad to the tax authorities

Taxable profit differs from net profits as reported in the statement

of comprehensive Income because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in cther years and it further
excludes itemns that are never taxable or deductible The Company's
hability for current tax (s calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantvely enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax 1s recognised, using the labiity method, on
temporary differences ansing between the tax basis of assets and
habslities and therr carrying amounts in the financial statemenis
Deferred income tax 1s determined using fax rates that have been
enacted or substantally enacted by the statement of financial
position date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

income tax asset 1s realised or the deferred income tax hability 1
sefiled Deferred tax labilties are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences Deferred income tax assets are recogmsed
only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit witl be
avallable, against which the temporary differences can be utiised
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer
probable that sufficient taxabte profits will be avaitable to aliow all or
part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred iIncome tax assets and habilities are offset when there

15 a legally enforceable rnight to offset current tax assets aganst
cufrent tax hlabilities and when the deferred income taxes asseis
and habilities relate to income taxes lewvied by the same taxation
authority on esther the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there 1s an intention to settle the balances on a net
basis Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply 10 the period when the hability s settled or the asset 1s
realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted at
the balance sheet date Deferred tax s charged or credited in the
statement of comprehensive income, except when it relates to items
charged or credited in other comprehensive income in which case
the deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive iIncome

Forelgn currencies

The financial staternents are presented in the currency of the
primary economic environment in which it operates (its functional
currency}

Transacttons in currencies other than the entity s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions At each balance sheet
date, monetary assets and habihties that are dencminated in foreign
currencies are retranstated at the rates prevaiing at that date Non-
monetary tems carmed at far value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the
farr value was determined Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of hustorical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated

Impairment

Financial assets

The Company assesses at the end of each reparting penod
whether there 15 objective evidence that a inancial asset or group
of financial assets 1s impared A financtal asset or a group of
financial assets ts impaired and imparment losses are incurred
only if there 1s objective evidence of mpairment as a resuli of one
or more evenis that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
( loss event™) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated

Trade and other recevables are considered past due (f any porlion
of an account has not been paid in full wathun the contractual
terms of the account The Company assesses Its ability to collect
receivables that are past due and provides for an adequate
allowance for doubtiul accounts based on the financial stabiity
recent payment history of the customer letters of credit in place
and other pertinent factors related to the creditworthiness of

the customer The allowance for doubtful accounts includes
spectfic amounts for those accounts that are deemed likely to be
uncollectible Upon permanent imparment the trade receivable 1s
written off against the aliowance for doubtful accounts
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Financial instruments

The Company classifies its financral assets and financial habilities
nto the following categones far value through profit or loss

and loans and recevables for financial assets and fair value
through profit and loss and other financial habiities for financial
habilities The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial instruments were acquired Management determines the
classification of its financial instruments at imitial recognitien

Effective interast mathod

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the finance
Income generated by a inancial asset and the amortised cost of

a financial hability iIncluding allocating interest expense over the
relevant period The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments {ncluding all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected Ife of the financiat hiability to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition

Loans and recevables

Trade and other receivables are non-denvative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted In an active
market They are included in current assets except for matunties
greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting persod

These are classified as non-current assets The Company's loans
and recelvables are recorded as deposits and irade and other
receivables in the statement of inancial position

Trade and other recevables are measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest rate method, less any impaument Interest

Income 1s recognised by apphying the effective interest rate except |
for short-term recesvables when the recognition of interest would be

immatenal

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and highly hquid
investments that can be readily converted into cash or that have an
ongmnal matunty of three months or fess

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are cbligations ta pay for goods or seraces that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers Accounts payable are classthed as current hiabihties if
payment IS due within one year or less

Trade and other payables are recognised inimally at fair value and
subsequently measured al therr amertised cost using the effective
interest rate method

Financial habiitias and equity w
Debt and equity Instruments are classified as either financial

llabilities or as equity n accordance with the substance of the

contractual arrangement

Equity instruments

An egquity instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residua
interest in the assets gf an entity after deducting all of its habiities
Equity instruments 1ssued by the Company are recogrised at the
proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs

Costs of equity transactions

Incrermental costs that are attnbutable directly to 1ssuing equity
instruments of the Company are recognised in equty, net of any tax
eifects Other costs not directly atinbutabie to the 1sswing of equity i




instruments are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income

Share-based payments

In accardance with IFRS2 share-based payment arrangements in
which the Company receives goods or services as consideration far
APR Energy plc equity Instruments are accounted for as equity-
settled share-based payment transactions regasdless of how the
equity instruments are obtained by the Company

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date The farr
value excludes the effect of non-market based vesting conditions
Details regarcing the determination of the fair value of equity-settied
share-based transactions are set out in nate 11

The farr value determined at the grant date of the equity-seitled
share-based payments to empioyees s expensed on a straight-hne
basis over the vesiing penod, based on the Company s estmate

of equity Instruments that will eventually vest At each balance
sheet date the Company revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expecled to vest as a result of the effect of non
market-based conditions The impact of the revision ot the onginal
estmates If any (s recognised n total comprehensive income such
that the cumulative expense reflects the rewsed estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity reserves

Share-based payments incurred an behalf of Group companies are
recharged accordingly

Investments

Investments in subsichary undertakings are stated in the balance
sheet of the Company at cost or neminal value of the shares
1ssued as consideration as applicable, less any provision for any
mparrment in value

Dividend distnibution

Dividena distnbution to the Company's shareholders 1s recognised
as a hability in the financial statements in the penod in which the
dmdends are approved by the Company's shareholders

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the apphcation of the significant accounting pohicies, which are
described mnote 3 management 1s required 10 make judgements,
estimates and assumptions abouwt the carmyng amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on histonical
expenence and other factors that are consilered to be relevant
Actual results may differ from these esbmates

The eshmates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis Rewsions to accounting estimates are recogrised in
the penod in which the estimate 1s revised if the revision affects only
that penod or in the penod of the rewision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future penods

Cnitical accounting estimates and assumptions

There are no key assumptions conceming the future, or other key
sources of estimation unceriainty at the end of the reporting pernod,
that have a sigmificant sk of causing a matenal adjustment to the
carrying amouris of assets and Yabiliies within the next inancial
year

Critical judgements in applylng the Company’s

accounting policies

The following are the cntical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations discussed above, that management made in the
process of applying the Company s accounting pelictes and that
have the most sigruficant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements

Impauwrrment of investment asseét

Determining whether the investiment asset 1s impared requires an
esttmation of the value in use of the underlying Investmenis The
value in use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future
cash flows expected to anse from the investments and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate present value No imparments
were recorded in the penods presented

5 Risk management policies

The Company's activilies give nse to a number of financial nsks,
particularly market sk comprised of foreign exchange, credit nsk
lquidity nsk, and capital nsk management

Market nsk

Market nsk includes foreign exchange nsk The Company seeks to
manage these risks to acceptable levels by maintaining appropnate
polcies and procedures

Foreign exchange nsk

The Company has an exposure to transacbonat foreign exchange
from purchases or sales in currencias other than US dollars In
order to minimise exposure to foreign exchange nsk the Company
pnmarily contracts in US dollars or In contracts with a price based
on US dollars at the date of transaction or payment If passible

Credit nisk

Credit nsk anses from cash and cash equivalents deposits

with banks and financial nstitutions, as well as exposures o
outstanding recevables {rom external pariies Due to the nature
of the Company’'s business management do not believe there 1s a
significant credit nsk to the Company

Lrqurdhity risk

Liquichty nsk results from insufficient funding being avarlable to
meet the Company s funding regurrements as they anse The
Company manages hquwdity nsk by maintaining adequate reserves
of cash and available committed facilities in subsidianes for short
and leng-term funding requirements  The Company monitors the
short-term forecast and actual cash flows on a daily basis and
medium and long-term requirements in line with the Company's
tong term planning processes

Capital nsk management

The Company s objective when managing capital 1s to safeguard
its ability to continue as a going concern In order to provide retuns
for ts equity holders and to mantain an optimal capital structure 1o
reduce the cost of capital

The Company 15 funded through a mixture of equity and debt
financing through subsidanes

The Company reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis

As part of this review, the Company consicers the cost of capitat
and the nsk associated with each class of capital
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

6 Investments

& million 2013 2012
Opering 1,204 5 1,204 5
Balance at 31 December 1,204 5 1,204 5

Details of the Company’s prncipal subsidiary undertakings are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements

7 Trade and other receivables

$ mullion 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Non-current
Amounts due from subsidianes 2692 2839
Current
Other debtors 04 02
2696 2841

In determiruing the recoverability of trade and other receivables the Company considers any change in the credit guality of the trade recewvable
from the date credit was granted up to the reporting date Credit nsk 1s imited due to substantially all the balance being amounts due from
subsidianes Accordingly the Directors beheve there is no credit prowision required, and na classes of recewvable contain imparred assets

Amounts due from subsidranes are repayable on demand and are interest free These amounts are shown as non-current as these balances
are not expected to be repaid within twelve months of the batance sheet date The carrying value of recervables 1s constdered to represent thesr
farr value

8 Trade and other payables

$ millon 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Amounts due to subsidiaries - 3167
Trade payables 05 06
Accrued expenses 06 10

11 3183

Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and on-going cosls as well as amounts due {0
subsidiaries Amounts due te subsidianes are repayable on demand and are interest free

The Directors consider that the carmang amounts of trade and other payables are approximate to their fair values

9 Share capital

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
8 miihon Number § milhon Number
Allotted, called up and fully paid

Qrdinary shares of 10p each 152 94,251,622 126 78,235,164
Ordinary shares Deferred shares
Number Number

Qutstanding shares at 31 December 2011 78,215,164 954,749,920
Share matching awards 20,000 -
Redemption of deferred shares - {954,749,920)
Outstanding shares at 31 December 2012 78,235,184 -
Acquisiion of subsidianes 15,453,129 -
Exercise of equity-settled share-based payrment 563,329 -
Outstanding shares at 31 December 2013 94,251,622 -

Under the Companies Act 2008, the Company's articles of association do not recogrise the concept of authonsed share capital
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On 28 October 2013, the Group acquired the GE Power Rental Business, compnsing Power Rental Op Co One LLC, Power Rental Op Co
Australia LLC Power Rental Assel Co One LLC Power Rental Asset Co Two LLC, Power Rental Op Co Canada ULC and Power Rental Op Co

Bangladesh Limited

The total consideration for the acguisiion was $361 5 millon payable in cash ($73 1 mulion) on complehon and 15,453,129 ordinary shares
aliotted and 1ssued crediled as fully paid up to the sellers  The farr value of this share 1ssue was $288 4 milion which was equal to the share

price on the closing date of the transaction

10 Other reserves

Capital redemption

$ mifion Merger reserve reserve Total
At 1 January 2012 4858 - 485 8
Redemption of deferred shares - 01 o1
Balance at 31 December 2012 4858 01 4859
Acquisition of subsidianes! 2841 - 2841
Balance at 31 December 2013 7699 01 7700

1 Includes $1 8 milhon of costs associated with the 1ssue of 15 453,129 ordinary shares related to the acquisition of the GE Power Rental

Business

11 Share-based payments
Detalls of the Company's share-based paymenis plans are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements

12 Related party disclosures

There have been no transactions with related parties duning ether penod besides the intercompany transactions, which are detaled in notes 7

and 8 See note 32 in the consolidated financial staterments for further details of related party transactions

13 Auditor’s remuneration
Auditor's remuneration ts disclosed in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements

14 Dividends

$ rmufhon 2013 2012
Declared and paid dunng the year

Final dividend for 2012 6 7 pence (2011 10 0 pence) per ordinary share 78 125
Interim dividend for 2013 3 3 pence (2012 3 3 pence) per ordinary share 50 39
Dividends paid 129 164
Proposed for approval by the shareholders at the AGM

Final dividend for 2013 & 7 pence (2012 & 7 pence) per ardinary share 99 85

The proposed final dmdend 1s subject to approval by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a llabilty

in these finaneial statements
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Shareholders’ information

Company Secretary Andrew Bradshaw

Registared Office APR Energy plc
54 Baker Street, London W1U 7BU

Auditor Deloitie LLP London
Chartered Accountants

Registrar Capita Asset Services, The Registry
34 Beckenham Road Beckenham Kent BR3 4TU

Tel 0871 664 0300 Overseas +44 20 8639 3399

Emal SSD@capita co uk

Financial Advisers Numis Secunties Ltd, Londen
JP Margan Cazenave, London

Annual General Meeting

Notice s hereby gven that the Annual General Meeting of APR Energy plc wili be hetd at
10 00am on 20 May 2014 at the offices of JP Morgan Cazenove Holborn Bars,138-142
Holborn, London EC1N 2NQ

Dividend

Full detals on the dvidend amount per share can be found on page 39 of thus report Set
out below 1s the relevant information for the proposed final dvidend for the year ended 31
December 2013

Ex-dividend date 2 Apnl 2014
Dividend record date 4 Aprl 2014
Dmdend payment date 3 June 2014

Dmdends will be paid wa cheque or shareholders can arrange for payment to be made by
mandate directly to their bank or bulding society account Any shareholder wishing dwvidends
to be paid drectly into a bank or building socrety account should contact Capita Asset Services
helpime on 0871 664 0300, from within the UK, or +44 208 639 3399 from outside the UK Calls
to the 0871 number cost 10 pence per minute plus your service provider s network extras, ines
are open Monday to Friday 8 30 am 10 5 30 pm Alternatively a form may be downloaded from
capitaassetservices com where you can also set up a dvidend mandate online Dwadends
pad by mandate will be paid through the Bankers Automated Clearing System {BACS)
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Financial calendar

Full Year results announced

26 March 2014

Annual Report posted
Apnl 2014

Annual General Meeting
20 May 2014

Q1 Interim Management
Statement

20 May 2014

Interim results announced
27 August 2014




Glossary

$
United States Dollars (unless ctherwise
noted)

Adjusted EBITDA

Operating profit adjusted 10 add back
deprecianen of property, plant and
equipment equity-settled share-based
payment expense, amortisation of
intangible assets and exceptional items
Exceptional items are those items believed
to be exceptional In nature by virtue of size
and/or incidence

Adjusted EBITDA margin
Adjusted EBITDA dwded by revenue

Adjusted earmings per share

Adjusted net income dvided by the
weighted average number of ordinary
shares The weightied average number of
ordinary shares used to calculate the 2013
adjusted bastc earmings per share was

81 044,059

Adjusted Issue Price

The placing price of the i1ssue of 40 514,700
ordinary shares pursuant to a placing on
behalf of the Company on 9 February

2010 as adjusted approprately for maiters
such as any subsequent conschdation

or subdivision of the ordinary shares or
allotment of ardinary shares by capitalising
the Company's profits or reserves and as
ieduced by the Value Return (if any) and by
the Discount Value (if any), as such terms
are defined n the Readmission Prospectus

Adjusted net income

Adjusted net income 1S net iIncome adjusted
1o add back amortisation of intangible
assets and excephional items Exceptional
tems are those items believed io be
exceptional In nature by virnue of size and/
or incidence

Adjusted ROCE (return on capital
employed}

Operating profit for the prewious twelve
months adjusted to add back amoriisation
of Intangible assets and exceptional items
diwmded by the average of the net operating
assets at the previous three balance sheet
dates (for 31 December 2013 this comprises
the 31 December 2013, 30 June 2013 and

31 December 2012 and for 31 December
2012 this comprises the 31 December 2012
30 June 2012 and 31 December 2011) “Net
operating assets” 1s defined as total equity
adjusted to exclude goodwill intangible
assets, borrowngs, Founder secunties,
deferred 1ax assets and habilives and current
tax assets and habilites

AERMOD (Atmospheric dispersion
modelling)

Used for modelling analysing and
visualising emissions dispersion

Annual General Meeting (AGM)
Meeting of shareholders of the Company
hetd each year 1o consider ordinary and
special business as provided in the Notrce
of AGM

APR Energy plc

APR Energy plc, a imited hability company
incorporated in the United Kingdom with
registered number 7062201 APR Energy
plc {the "Company" and together with iis
subsidiarnies, “APR Energy” or the ‘Group”)

APR Group

APR Cayman Limited an exemptect
company incorporated wath himited hability
under the Laws of the Cayman Islands
and Falconbndge Services, LLC, a Flonda
limited habibty company (providing certam
management and other senices to Group
companies) logether with ther respective
subsidiaries

Articles of Association or Articles
The articles of association of the Company
in force from time o tune

Board
The board of directors of the Company

Capacity or Fleet Capacity

“Capacity” represents the aggregate
megawatt capacity that the APR Group s
power generating equipment, including
both owned and leased equipment, would
be capable of delivening when operating
ai 100 per cent of their power output The
Directors consider committed capacity

to be an important indicator of the APR
Group's revenue generating capabihty
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co,
Carbon Dicxide

Code
2010 edition of the UK Corporate
Governance Code {foltowed voluntarily)

Companies Act or Act
The Companies Act 2006, as amended

Contracted utilisation

Contracted utihsation represents the
proportion of the Group s fleet capacity
subject to contract at a given point in time

Deferred shares

The detferred shares of 1 pence each In
the capital of the Company, subsequently
purchased by the Company in 2012 for a
total consideration of 1 pence

EIA
US Energy Information Adrmiristration

Falconbridge Acquisition Agreement
The agreement between the Company the
Subsichary and JCLA Holdings, LLC dated
13 June 2011 refating to the acquisition

of the entire 1ssued share capital of
Falconbndge

Founder securities
The C ordinary shares of 99 pence each in
the capital of APR Energy Holdings Limited

FCA
UK Financial Conduct Authonty

FSMA
The Financial Services and Markets Act
2000 of the UK as amended

a/kWh
Emissions in grammes per kilowatt hour

GEPM
Gas engine power module

Hub

Service centre with Jarge items of
equipment for storage service and
deployment
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Hz
Hertz - a unil of frequency

IEA
The International Energy Agency

IFRS
lntesnational Financial Reporting Standards

kVA
A thousand volt amperes

KwH
Kilowatt houss

Listing Rules

The listing rules made by the UK Listing
Authonty under section 73A of FSMA as
amended from time to time

MVAR
Mega Volt Ampere Reaclive

MW
Megawalt — a million watts of electricity

MW-Month
Megawatt monihs

NOx

Nitrogen oxides Pollutants created
through combustion at high temperatures
Comprises nitnc oxide and nitregen dioxide

Official List
The official ist maintained by the UK Listing
Authority

O&M
Operation and mamntenance

OPEC
Orgarusation of Petraleurmn Exporting
Countries

Operating Board
Board of directors of APR Energy Holdings
Limited

Order book
Contracted future orders expressed as
MW-Months

Ordinary shares
The ordinary shares of 10p each in the
capital of the Company

Peak shaving

Reduction of the amount of electncity
crawn from a power ulilily sn desrgnated
peak time peniods

PP&E
Property, plant, and equipment

Prermum Listing
A premium isting under Chapter 6 of the
Listing Rules

Readmission Prospectus

The prospectus dated 15 Sepiember 2011
for the admission and readrmission of the
Company's Ordinary Shares o the Official
List of the UK Listing Authonty and to
trading on the London Stock Exchange's
main market for isted securities

Regional Hub

Service distribution and commercial
centre located in strategic global regions
that handles large items of equipment for
storage, service and deployment

RFP
A request for proposal — used to secure
bids for the prowision of specified services

Secunties Act
US Secunties Act of 1933, as amended

Standard Listing
A standard hsting under Chapter 14 of the
London Stock Exchange Lrsting Rules
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